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Chairman’s Statement
EREE

To our Shareholders

In the second half of 2008, the economy was
seriously hurt by the global financial crisis. Our
performance was severely affected by the downturn
in the Mainland China property market and the
operating environments which led to a significant
impairment loss of HK$216,392,000 in investment
properties and goodwill recognised in the current
year.

Following the completion of its renovation, Shama
Luxe Chang An commenced operations in late June
2008 and achieved an occupancy rate of 43.90% in
August 2008. After the Beijing Olympics, the serviced
apartment sector in Beijing has recorded an increase
in vacancy rate and a decrease in monthly rental
per square meter. Obviously, the serviced apartment
sector was severely affected by the global financial
crisis and its corrupted demand. On 26 November
2008, we realise our investment in Shama Luxe Chang
An by entering into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement with Golife Concepts Holdings Limited
(“Golife”), a company listed on the GEM board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, for disposing
the investment at a consideration of HK$211,466,310
(subject to adjustment). The disposal has a strategic
meaning to us as we retain an indirect interest in
Shama Luxe Chang An through our 20.36% interest
in the issued share capital of Golife and become the
single largest shareholder of Golife. The disposal also
provides us with an opportunity to restructure our
business, concentrate our resources on the newly
expanded provision of management services business
and reduce our gearing ratio.

BER

RZBENETEF  2HERAKEEITE
BFE o AREE 2 RIFE B R Y T IE R
ERBEIMIBEATE  BYNLFEHRS
REVMFERBEERERE 216,392,000 7T °

REBFTRE FPH - RIXR_ZFZENEF
RARBEE R-ZFEENFNAZAZEERA
43.90% - Rt RRER » EERBEXLAET
¥R EEERENRESF A RAETR - &
R BRBEXNABTESEHREMBREER
TRBEFE R-ZEENF+-A=Z1+R
H AXEEZEBHEINEERERAATE
FE] —EAREBHEEXZMERRA A
E¥REmzAA)LERGHEEHE 0 XU
211,466,310 B (A FTHRE ) 2 KELHER
E BENDE e REZRE - HRAEE
FERNENBEBITRA Z220.36% fEmmiR
BRDHE « RECEEESZEERABIEZ
BE-RBARR MEHEHAEEBAEEREME
Z o HETALXEERUMEEAEK - BE
BEFRFEX 2 REEERBESREEAR
KEzEBEBE-
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The acquisition of Rich Daily Group Limited (“Rich
Daily”), a company providing management services
to the concierge departments of gaming promoters
in Macau, was completed on 28 August 2008. To
protect our interest, we have obtained a service
fee income guarantee from the vendor. If the actual
service fee income received and/or receivable is
less than the guaranteed services fee income, then
the initial consideration shall be adjusted pursuant
to the terms of the acquisition agreement. Although
Rich Daily experienced a decrease in its service fee
income in September 2008, no further decrease in
the monthly service fee income has been noticed.
The newly expanded business has generated a stable
cash inflow to the Group and has a positive impact
on the Group’s profitability.

Following the outbreak of global financial crisis,
banks tighten lending policy and global economy
slows down. To cope with volatility occurs in the
crisis, we undertook various fund raising exercises
to raise additional capital totalling HK$84,880,000
for the Group during the last quarter of 2008 and the
first quarter of 2009.

Although the global financial crisis has severely hit
the economy, we believe that the crisis presents
us an opportunity to invest at attractive prices. In
the coming year, we will proactively seek possible
diversified investments of the Group to broaden our
earnings base.

Finally, | would like to thank our board of directors,
shareholders and other stakeholders for their
continued support and our staff for contributing their

energy and skills this past year.

Heung Wah Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 April 2009
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Management Discussion and Analysis
THEEMWR SR

FINANCIAL REVIEW

On 26 November 2008, the Group entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement relating to
the sale of the entire issued share capital of Shinhan-
Golden Faith International Development Limited
(“Shinhan-Golden”) and World East Investments
Limited (“World East”) to Mega Shell Services
Limited (“Mega Shell”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Golife Concepts Holdings Limited (“Golife”),
at a consideration of HK$211,466,310 (subject to
adjustment). The major assets of Shinhan-Golden
and World East are their interests in the registered
capital of *RFHEEMEMBEARAT (“Beijing
Shama”). The principal activity of Beijing Shama
is property investment. As a result, the assets and
liabilities of Shinhan-Golden and World East and their
subsidiaries, namely Beijing Shama, Beijing Jianguo
Real Estate Development Co., Limited and EBFFX
{LBERAMRAT (“Shanghai Shengping”) (collectively
the “Disposal Group”), are re-classified as assets
and liabilities of disposal group classified as held
for sale in the consolidated balance sheet at 31
December 2008. The results of the Disposal Group
are presented separately as discontinued operations
in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2008.

Loss from continuing and discontinued operations
for the year ended 31 December 2008 amounted to
HK$224,508,000, whereas a profit of HK$25,694,000
was recorded in 2007. The deterioration was mainly
attributable to the increase in impairment loss
recognised in respect of goodwill of HK$104,519,000
in the current year and the recognition of the one-
off gain of HK$106,956,000 arising from bank loan
interest waived in 2007.

Bt % 0 B

RZZBENF+-—B=+RB XEEFX
EHRHEEWZE > ASEHE M Mega Shell
Services Limited ([Mega Shelll ' E X 18
ERERRABI(ENE D Z2ZENBAA)
H £ Shinhan-Golden Faith International
Development Limited ([ Shinhan-Golden])
¥ World East Investments Limited ([ World
East])2E2BTHRAE - KE%H 211,466,310
BT (AT F#E) o Shinhan-Golden & World
EastcFEEERHERNIL RSB R ER %
BRAFR(TERFBE ] 2FMER - TP
BreXIEXEBAYMERE BRIt R=FZ
NE+ZA=+—HZHEEEEEERY
Shinhan-Golden & World East * AR E B
A A FEHIE - Beijing Jianguo Real Estate
Development Co., Limited % L i 5 ¥ X
tERERABATLEREE))(ABIEES
BzEEREBNYEABFEEHECZHE
HAEERBE RBE-ZZENFE+=A
=St+—HLEFEZzGZeRRERY  HESEZ
XBENOHEVACKIEREER -

BE-ZENE+-A=+—HALFELFEL
ERORIEREEK ZEE R 224,508,000
7T MR ZEZ L F A5 R 25,694,000
BT BREENTEHRAFENDERR
BEEIEIE N 104,519,0008 7T » U R ERE
R-IEELFEREZBRTERMNEREEZ
— R MU EE 106,956,00058 7T ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis
THEWE SR

Results of continuing operations

The turnover for continuing operations increased from
HK$7,722,000 in the year ended 31 December 2007 to
HK$19,253,000 in the year ended 31 December 2008.
Of the total turnover, HK$2,000,000 was generated
from sub-licensing of film rights, HK$18,215,000 was
generated from provision of management services
and a loss of HK$962,000 was incurred by sales of
financial assets. The loss from continuing operations
deteriorated from HK$44,749,000 in the year ended
31 December 2007 to HK$96,736,000 in the year
ended 31 December 2008. Such deterioration was
mainly attributable to the recognition of impairment
loss in respect of goodwill of HK$101,965,000, which
was partly offset by the increase in gross profit
of HK$11,038,000, the decrease in administrative
expenses of HK$28,931,000 and a tax credit of
HK$13,854,000.

Cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2008
amounted to HK$493,000, which was wholly related
to provision of management services. The gross profit
margin for provision of management services was
97%. The gross profit margin for sub-licensing of film
rights was 100% as the cost of film library had been
fully amortised and/or impaired in previous years.

Other revenue decreased from HK$2,922,000 in the
year ended 31 December 2007 to HK$2,427,000 in
the year ended 31 December 2008. The decrease was
mainly attributed to the decrease in interest income
on bank deposits resulted from the decrease in the
average monthly balance of the Group’s cash and
cash equivalents as explained below.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
THEEMWR SR

At the end of financial year 2008, the directors
reassessed the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit allocated to the goodwill arising from
the acquisition of Rich Daily Group Limited (“Rich
Daily”) with reference to the valuation performed
by the independent professional valuers. In the
light of the downturn in Macau’s VIP gaming, the
directors determined that the goodwill should be
fully impaired and recognised an impairment loss
of HK$101,965,000 in the year ended 31 December
2008.

Administrative expenses (net of depreciation,
impairment loss and loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment) amounted to HK$25,768,000
for the year ended 31 December 2008, a 53%
decrease from HK$54,818,000 as compared to the
correspondence figure for the previous year. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the decreases
in share-based payment expenses of HK$28,674,000
and consultancy fee of HK$2,541,000, which were
partly offset by the surcharge of HK$3,637,000
paid to Inland Revenue Department in relation to
the compromise settlement on the Group’s offshore
income claim.

Finance costs for the year ended 31 December
2008 amounted to HK$3,350,000, representing the
imputed interest expense on the convertible notes in
an aggregate principal amount of HK$144,000,000
issued in August 2008 for the acquisition of Rich
Daily.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the
Group reached a compromise settlement with Inland
Revenue Department in settling a tax dispute over the
offshore sub-licensing income claim for an amount
of HK$12,021,000, which included a surcharge of
HK$3,637,000. As a tax provision of HK$22,238,000
had been made in previous years, a tax credit of
HK$13,854,000 was recognised.

REZZENFURFELERE  E52ZH
BYEXMMEMETZGEE ENTHER
#% Rich Daily Group Limited ([Rich Daily )
EEWIREBEBCREELSEVZIRE S
H-BERRMEBSEENE  EFEE - W=
ZENF+ A=+ -HILFEEHBHEEY
2 HORE - I ¥ 52 R {E &5 18 101,965,000 8

JC ©

BE-ZETEN\E+=-A=+—-HILEE 1T
B (NKRITE - REBEBREENE K
ER#ZEZEIR)A25768,0008 T B
F 2 #8 & 8 ¥ 54,818,0008 JT B 2 53% °
BMAODEEARBROEAXIF2HAXRED
28,674,000 % T & [ 8 & &l £ 2,541,000 %8
TR BHBERBERALEERFWA R
R FHERE M NE 3,637,000 % 7T Ar
e o

BE-_ZZN\F+-A=+—HBLFEZR
& & A £3,350,00058 Tt Ji & W B Rich
Dailym A =—ZZENFNABRTEAESLE
144,000,000 & T 2 A 2 iR =95 2 4 E | 2. 58
o

BZ-ZEEN\E+-A=+—-HILEE-
AEBEBRERHERARTERKAR
£12,021,0008B 2B B FEH > EFEE
3,637,0008 T 2K ME - AR REEFE
H B 18 3 15 22,238,0008 T M IBIE &
13,854,000 8 T O R °
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Management Discussion and Analysis
THEWE SR

Results of discontinued operations

The turnover generated from property investment
for the year ended 31 December 2008 amounted to
HK$20,826,000, a 614% increase from HK$2,917,000
for the previous year. The significant increase was
attributable to the commencement of operations
of Beijing Shama in late June 2008. The loss for
property investment amounted to HK$127,772,000
in the year ended 31 December 2008, whereas a
profit of HK$70,443,000 was recorded in 2007. The
deterioration was attributable to the recognition of
decrease in fair value of investment properties of
HK$74,045,000 and impairment loss in respect of
goodwill of HK$40,382,000 in 2008, whereas the one-
off gain of HK$106,956,000 arising from bank loan
interest waived was recognised in 2007.

Cost of sales increased from HK$858,000 in the year
ended 31 December 2007 to HK$7,176,000 in the year
ended 31 December 2008. The gross profit margin for
property investment dropped from 71% in the year
ended 31 December 2007 to 66% in the year ended
31 December 2008. The drop in gross profit margin
was due to the increase in overhead of Beijing Shama
following its soft opening in late June 2008.

Other revenue increased from HK$283,000 in the year
ended 31 December 2007 to HK$1,257,000 in the year
ended 31 December 2008. The increase was mainly
attributed to the increase in interest income on bank
deposits resulted from the increase in the average
monthly bank balances of Beijing Shama.

Other income for the year ended 31 December 2007
amounted to HK$106,956,000 representing the one-
off gain arising from bank loan interest waived by
China Merchants Bank.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
THEEMWR SR

In the light of the downturn in the Mainland China’s
property market, the Group recognised a decrease in
fair value of investment properties of HK$74,045,000
in the year ended 31 December 2008 with reference
to the valuation performed by the independent
qualified professional valuers valuing the investment
properties at HK$906,960,000 at 31 December 2008.

At the end of financial year 2008, the directors
reassessed the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit allocated to the goodwill arising from
the acquisition of Shinhan-Golden with reference
to the valuation performed by the independent
professional valuers. In the light of the downturn in
the Mainland China’s property market, the directors
determined that the goodwill should be fully impaired
and an impairment loss of HK$40,382,000 was
recognised in the year ended 31 December 2008.

Administrative expenses (net of depreciation)
increased from HK$11,635,000 in the year ended
31 December 2007 to HK$20,835,000 in the year
ended 31 December 2008. The increase was mainly
attributable to the commencement of operations of
Beijing Shama in the second half of 2008.

Finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2008
amounted to HK$25,289,000, a 30% increase as
compared to HK$19,494,000 in the year ended 31
December 2007. The increase was attributable to the
increase in the average monthly balances of the RMB
bank loan for the payment of renovation costs in
respect of the investment properties.

A tax credit of HK$22,214,000 was arisen from the
transfer of deferred tax to income statement in
relation to the recognition of the decrease in fair
value of investment properties in the year ended 31
December 2008.

10

ERTFEABYETESRE AREE2ZH
BYRERBEXMLEMR-ZTZENF+=A
=t+—-RYREYWFET 241E906,960,000
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FEBRREWE R FERD 74,045,000 %
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Management Discussion and Analysis
THEWE SR

Liquidity and financial resources

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group
mainly funded its operations through a combination
of equity attributable to the Company’s equity
holders, bank borrowings and convertible notes.
Equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders
at 31 December 2008 amounted to HK$894,423,000
(2007: HK$1,046,080,000).

At 31 December 2008, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to HK$7,218,000 (2007:
HK$531,396,000). The decrease in cash and cash
equivalents of the Group was mainly attributable to
the cash payment of HK$360,000,000 to Well Will
Investment Limited (“Well Will”) for the acquisition
of Rich Daily and the cash and cash equivalents
balances of HK$82,152,000 were re-classified as
assets of disposal group classified as held for sale in
the consolidated balance sheet.

At 31 December 2008, the total borrowings of
the Group amounted to HK$106,403,000 (2007:
HK$329,719,000), comprising the advance of
HK$600,000 made by China Star Entertainment
Limited (“China Star”) which is unsecured, interest-
free and has no fixed terms of repayment; and the
liability component of the convertible notes with
an aggregate principal amount of HK$144,000,000
issued to Well Will of HK$105,803,000 which are
unsecured, interest bearing at 5% per annum and
maturing on 28 August 2018. The gearing ratio
calculated as a percentage of total borrowings over
equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders
was 12% (2007: 32%). The improvement in gearing
ratio was attributed to the re-classification of bank
borrowings as liabilities of disposal group classified
as held for sale in the consolidated balance sheet.

Annual Report 2008 F#{

RBEERMBER

BE-ZENF+ZA=+—-HLEFE  &&
BXrEZBANAZRERSEABGERES
RITEERATBKRREE  RHLERMES -
RZBENFE+TZA=+—0  XQFRERF
B AL B894,423,0008 T(=Z Bt
% : 1,046,080,0008T) °

REZBENF+ZA=+—B  XEEZR
¢REESEEYWH7,2180008T(ZFEE L
F 1 531,396,000 7x) - AEBzHERE
SEEWRY > TEHMRBUEERich Daily[@
Well Will Investment Limited ([Well Willl)
> {434 360,000,00058 7T * URBERKRE
ZEYHEE282,152,000 8B TG EEER
REFDPBERAIPBABFLHECHERRNEE
FE o

R-ZBZENF+ZA=+—0  AEE2E
B 4 %8 £106,403,0008 T(Z BT + F :
329,719,000 t) r BEHFTEHEEEEER
AR(THEE ] EH 2 #F600,0008 T
DEEA  REREBETEERE ; UKkEWell
Will % 17 78 £ %8 144,000,000 38 7T = o # &
ZEHEEIH%HH105,803,00058 7T I E
BIF - REFRS% T ERR=ZZE—N\FENA
“+N\BEE - BIEEHATERUARD T RERS
BEAEEREGILFTEZEBLEERE12%
(ZEZLF :32%) c BEXEHETIHR
RGEEEEBRTERTEEEN»BEAR
EHEZHEHABIEBME -

11

China Star Investment Holdings Limited FEEREER AT




BB EHEED PoHwT sBUIP|OH JUSWISAAU| JBIS BUIYD

Management Discussion and Analysis
THEEMWR SR

At 31 December 2008, the bank borrowings of
Beijing Shama amounted to HK$319,418,000 (2007:
HK$329,018,000), representing the RMB bank
loan which is secured by certain of the investment
properties with a fair value of HK$853,835,000, the
bank deposits of HK$23,470,000 and a corporate
guarantee given by the Company, interest bearing at
110% of the interest rate prescribed by the People’s
Bank of China for loan period of five years and
repayable within three years.

Net current assets and current ratio

At 31 December 2008, the Group’s net current
assets and current ratio were HK$602,720,000 (2007:
HK$491,885,000) and 2.30 (2007: 5.19) respectively.

Capital structure

To reduce the overall transaction and handling costs
for dealing in the Company’s shares and allow the
Company to declare dividends to its shareholders
at an earlier opportunity, the directors proposed the
following changes to the capital of the Company (the
“Capital Reorganisation”) on 19 March 2008:

(a) the consolidation of every ten issued and
unissued existing shares of HK$0.10 each in the
share capital of the Company into one share of
HK$1.00;

(b) immediately after completion of the share
consolidation in (a) above, the reduction of the
nominal value of all issued and issued shares
of HK$1.00 each in the share capital of the
Company from HK$1.00 each to HK$0.01 each;
and
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(c) the cancellation of the entire amount of
HK$813,058,000 standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company at 31
December 2007 by transferring such credit
amount to the contributed surplus account of the
Company and the application of HK$518,374,000
in the contributed surplus account to set off
against the accumulated losses of the Company
of HK$518,374,000 at 31 December 2006.

The Capital Reorganisation was approved by the
shareholders on 30 April 2008 and became effective
on 2 May 2008.

In April 2008, the Company issued 10,009 new shares
of HK$0.10 each at an exercise price of HK$0.1146
per share pursuant to the exercise of share options
granted to an employee.

On 4 November 2008, the Company entered into a
placing agreement with Kingston Securities Limited
(“Kingston”). Pursuant to the placing agreement,
the Company has conditionally agreed to place
through Kingston, on a best effort basis, a maximum
of 500,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each by a
maximum of five tranches to independent investors
at a placing price, which must not be lower than
85% or more of the average closing prices of the
shares quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in the last 30
consecutive trading days up to and including the
date on which the placing price was fixed for such
tranche and should not be less than HK$0.05 per
share. The placing agreement was approved by the
shareholders on 19 December 2008. The first tranche
of placing of 200,000,000 new shares at a placing
price of HK$0.102 per share was completed on 11
February 2009 and the second tranche of placing
of 300,000,000 new shares at a placing price of
HK$0.091 per share was completed on 2 March 2009.
The net proceeds from the placing of 500,000,000
new shares amounted to HK$46,720,000.
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On 29 December 2008, the Company, Classical
Statue Limited (“CSL’), a substantial shareholder
of the Company, and Kingston entered into a top-
up placing agreement relating to the placing of
39,000,000 existing shares of HK$0.01 each held by
CSL to not fewer than six placees at a placing price
of HK$0.102 per share and the top-up subscription
of 39,000,000 new shares by CSL at a subscription
price of HK$0.102 per new share. The top-up placing
was completed on 9 January 2009 and raised
HK$3,820,000 (net of expenses) to the Group.

Material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and associated companies

On 29 May 2008, the Group acquired the remaining
3.3% interest in the registered capital of Beijing
Shama from Beijing Urban Development Group
Co. Ltd. at a net consideration of RMB84,000
(or HK$95,000), after deducting an amount of
RMB4,150,000 (or HK$4,705,000) paid to Beijing
Urban Development Group Co. Ltd. by the ex-owner
in 1997. The directors believe that the acquisition of
the remaining 3.3% interest provides the Group with
a better protection on its interest in Beijing Shama
and a greater flexibility in managing Beijing Shama.

On 29 August 2008, the Group acquired the entire
issued share capital of Rich Daily from Well Will at
an initial consideration of HK$504,000,000 (subject
to adjustment). The initial consideration was settled
by paying HK$360,000,000 in cash and issuing of
convertible notes in an aggregate principle amount
of HK$144,000,000, with an initial conversion price
of HK$1.60 per conversion share. Rich Daily is a
management services provider to the concierge
departments of gaming promoters in Macau. The
monthly service fee earned by Rich Daily is calculated
at 0.03% of the monthly rolling turnover generated by
the gaming promoters.
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On 26 November 2008, the Group entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement relating
to the sale of the entire issued share capital of
Shinhan-Golden and World East to Mega Shell
at a consideration of HK$211,466,310 (subject to
adjustment). On 8 April 2009, the conditional sale and
purchase agreement was completed. The adjusted
consideration of HK$212,731,827 was settled
in the following manner (i) the cash payment of
HK$6,847,230, (ii) the issue of 11,769,194 new shares
in Golife (adjusted for the capital reorganisation of
Golife as completed on 6 April 2009) credited as
fully paid at an issue price of HK$0.50 per share, (iii)
the issue of a promissory note of HK$100,000,000
by Golife and (iv) the issue of a convertible bond of
HK$100,000,000 with an initial conversion price of
HK$0.50 per conversion share (subject to adjustment)
by Golife. Upon completion of the sale and purchase
agreement, the Group holds 20.36% interest in the
issued share capital of Golife and Golife is treated
as an associated company of the Group for financial
reporting purposes. Golife is a company listed on the
GEM Board of the Stock Exchange.

Charges on assets

At 31 December 2008, certain of the investment
properties with a fair value of HK$853,835,000 and
the bank deposits of HK$23,470,000 have been
pledged to a bank to secure the RMB bank loan
granted to Beijing Shama.
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Material commitments

At 31 December 2008, the Group had the following
material commitments:

(a) capital expenditures of HK$10,408,000 in respect
of the renovation works of the investment
properties contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements;

(b) a commitment in respect of acquiring the
registered capital of Shanghai Shengping from
its owners at a price determined by the valuers
in Mainland China when the laws in Mainland
China allow foreign investors to own more
than 51% interest in the registered capital of
Shanghai Shengping; and

(c) an unused revolving facility of up to
HK$200,000,000 granted to Best Season
Holdings Corp. (“Best Season”).

Exchange risk and hedging

As the majority of the Group’s transactions, assets
and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and Renminbi, the exchange risk of the Group is
considered to be minimal. Accordingly, no financial
instruments for hedging purposes have been used by
the Group.

Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2008, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities (2007: nil).
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Employees and remuneration policy

At 31 December 2008, the headcount of the Group
was 118 (continuing operations: 22; discontinued
operations: 96). Staff costs (including directors’
remuneration) for continuing and discontinued
operations amounted to HK$9,574,000 and
HK$4,615,000 respectively in the year ended 31
December 2008. Employees are remunerated
according to their performance and work experience.
In addition to basic salaries, provident fund and
discretionary bonus, staff benefits include medical
scheme and share options.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

Continuing operations

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the
Hong Kong films market remained sluggish and the
demand for Hong Kong made-movies in Mainland
China, one of the major markets for Hong Kong
made-movies, remained weak. The number of films
produced by local producers had decreased. As a
result, the Group was not able to secure quality films
at reasonable prices for distribution. However, the
Group has concluded an agreement to sell its film
library at HK$2,000,000.

As volatility in equity market remained high in the
first three quarters of 2008, the Group carried out a
minimal trading in financial assets during the year.
Following the outbreak of the global financial crisis,
the Group sold all of its financial assets in order to
reduce equity price risk.
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The Group acquired the entire issued share of Rich
Daily at an initial consideration of HK$504,000,000
(subject to adjustment) on 29 August 2008. Rich Daily
is a management services provider to the concierge
departments of gaming promoters. The monthly
service fee earned by Rich Daily is calculated at
0.083% of the monthly rolling turnover generated by
the gaming promoters. Following the completion
of the acquisition, Rich Daily generates a constant
monthly cashflow to the Group. Although Rich Daily
experienced a drop in its services fee income in
September 2008 resulted from the outbreak of global
financial crisis, the monthly service fee income
has remained fairly stable in the fourth quarter of
2008. The directors believe that the newly expanded
management service business provides the Group
with a stable source of revenue and improves the
Group’s profitability.

Best Season has been established to invest in,
manage and conduct branding for real estate and/or
related properties in Macau. Due to the downturn in
Macau’s property market in the second half of 2008
and the concentration on the Group’s resources on
newly expanded business, the business development
of Best Season has temporarily been suspended. As
a result, no contribution was made from Best Season
in the year ended 31 December 2008.

On 23 December 2008, the Group terminated the
proposed acquisition of the entire interest in the
issued share capital of Exceptional Gain Profits
Limited and a sale loan from China Star as the
proposed acquisition had been hinged on the release
of security given by China Star relating to Kingsway
Hotel Limited to be replaced by security given by
the Company. Both the Company and China Star
had determined not to keep their shareholders and
investors lingering on the status of the proposed
acquisition or the proposed disposal, as the case
may be, as it has been more than one year since the
announcement of the proposed acquisition or the
proposed disposal, as the case may be.
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Discontinued operations

The soft opening of the Disposal Group’s investment
properties, namely Shama Luxe Chang An,
commenced in late June 2008. During the year ended
31 December 2008, rental income of HK$16,033,000
was generated from short-term leasing in the
“Olympic Month — August 2008”. The occupancy
of Shama Luxe Chang An was 16% during the
second half of 2008. The unsatisfactory occupancy
was a direct result of weak leasing demand in
the second half of 2008. The weaken demand for
serviced apartment in Beijing primarily resulted from
the negative impact of the global financial crisis
which caused a cut in the number of expatriates
staff stationed in Beijing by many multinational
companies. Beijing Shama is working with the
management company to formulate plans to improve
the occupancy and the cost structure of Shama Luxe

Chang An.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Given the recent global financial crisis and the
depressed state of global economy, the directors
forecast a tough 2009 and a persist downturn in
global economy for a long period of time. As such,
the Directors believe the best strategies for the Group
are to (i) restructure its business, (ii) enable the
Group to concentrate its resources on provision of
management services business, and (iii) improve the
Group’s gearing ratio. On the other hand, the Group
is seeking investment opportunities with attractive
prices to diversify its businesses and broaden its
revenue base.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to the year-end date, the Group has
entered into the following transactions:

(a)

20

On 16 February 2009, the Company and
Kingston entered into an underwriting agreement
in relation to the open offer of not less than
217,093,498 new shares and not more than
367,093,498 new shares at a subscription price
of HK$0.10 per share on the basis of one new
share for every two existing shares held by
qualifying shareholders on 9 March 2009. The
open offer was completed on 30 March 2009
and raised HK$34,339,000 (net of expenses) to
the Group.

On 20 February 2009, the directors proposed
to reorganise the capital of the Company (the
“Proposed Capital Reorganisation”) in the
following manner:

(i) share consolidation — that every ten
existing issued shares of HK$0.01 each be
consolidated into one consolidated issued
share of HK$0.10 (each a “Consolidated
Shares”); and

(ii) capital reduction — that (i) the total number
of the Consolidated Shares in the issued
share capital of the Company following the
share consolidation be rounded down to a
whole a number by cancelling the fractional
Consolidated Shares arising from the share
consolidation; (ii) the paid-up capital of
each Consolidated Share be reduced from
HK$0.10 to HK$0.01 by cancelling HK$0.09
so as to form a new share of HK$0.01; and
(iii) the amount of credit arising from capital
reduction be credited to the contributed
surplus account of the Company.

The directors also proposed to change the board
lot size for trading in the Company’s shares from
5,000 shares to 2,000 shares upon the Proposed
Capital Reorganisation becoming effective.
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The Proposed Capital Reorganisation was
approved by the shareholders at a special
general meeting of the Company held on 22 April
2009 and became effective on 23 April 2009.

On 11 March 2009, the Company entered into a
loan agreement with China Star. Pursuant to the
loan agreement, the Company has conditionally
agreed to make available a loan facility of up
to HK$200,000,000 to China Star. Each of the
advances made to China Star under the loan
facility carries an interest to be accrued at
the prime rate per annum as quoted by HSBC.
The drawdown of each advance is subject the
conditions, among others, that the Company has
sufficient fund available to make the advance.
Please refer to the Company’s circular dated
30 March 2009 for further details of the loan
agreement.

The loan agreement was approved by the
independent shareholders at another special
general meeting of the Company held on 22 April
2009.

On 18 March 2009, Rich Joy Investments
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Best Season entered into a
deed of termination to terminate the revolving
facility of up to HK$200,000,000 granted to Best
Season.

On 8 April 2009, the conditional sale and
purchase agreement dated 26 November 2008
entered into between the Group, Mega Shell
and Golife relating to the disposal of the entire
issued share capital of Shinhan-Golden and
World East was completed.

On 23 April 2009, Riche (BVI) Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, gave an
irrevocable undertaking in favour of Golife
and Kingston relating to the subscription of
94,153,552 offer shares at a subscription price
of HK$0.10 per offer share pursuant to an open
offer of Golife on basis of eight offer shares for
every one existing share held on the record date.
The total subscription price for the offer shares
is HK$9,415,355, which will be financed by the
internal resources of the Group.

Annual Report 2008 F#{

(d)

BERAEHERRAQAR-ZZN
FNAB-+ZRERTZRRBEFREL
#E IR-—FTFRFRMA=-+=A4E

A e

RZBZAFE=A+—HB  KQFEEAF
B2 VERGE - REBEERBE > &
ARACERGEBEOFEERERS
# 200,000,000/ 8 T2 EREE - BB
EXHEROTRERHCEBERTIRE
ERITABZREZEFNEEFERE -
BEBRZENZHRERR  EHhaE
APABEHBEREESTAELHBR -
EHERmEZE—SHE B2ELX
AFBEHA-ZZEEZNE=A=1+HZE
¥ o

ERHBREBLRRNRARANR-ZF
NFOBZ+ZRETZE -RREH
RE LAtk -

RZZEEAF=ZRA+NH X272z E
EMBATE %R EBRLD T HEBest
Season ] M & 1L » LUK IER F Best
Season £ % 200,000,000 78 jt Z fE IR @t
& o

R-ZBZ2EAFMANR - KEEE Mega
Shell & B 18 i i & Shinhan-Golden
K World EastzZ2#E#EITRAMMN =
EENFE+—-A=Z+ X BITLERHEE
BiHETK o

R-ZBEAFNA=-+Z=H XAAZ
=& KB A T Riche (BVI) Limited FiiR
BRATCHOHSEE—REERNE
BA\RBERDZEEETZEFNEL
HEE ZERBEERM010BITZA
BEERIE 04,153,552 B ER KD O E
MEREFNEEE TAIHEIAZ BE
Bz REEREEAHI,415,3558 T
BHRAEE 2 AIBERBA o

21

China Star Investment Holdings Limited FEEREER AT




BB EHEED PoHwT sBUIP|OH JUSWISAAU| JBIS BUIYD

Corporate Governance Report
ERELHBSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance, in line with the principles
of the code provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

In the opinion of the Board, the Company had
complied with the Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2008, except that the non-executive
directors of the Company are not appointed for a
specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws.

The Board periodically reviews and improves the
corporate governance practices and standards of
the Company with a view to continuously improve
the Company’s corporate governance practices by
assessing their effectiveness with evolving standards
to meet changing circumstances and needs.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules for securities transactions by the
directors of the Company. All the members of the
Board have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2008.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and comprehensible assessment of the
Company’s annual and interim reports, price-sensitive
announcements and other financial disclosure
required under the Listing Rules.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING (Continued)

The directors acknowledge that it is their
responsibilities for preparation of the financial
statements of the Group and ensure that the
financial statements are in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The directors also ensure that the timely publication
of the financial statements of the Group.

The directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made
all enquires, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditors of the
Company, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng, about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements
of the Company is set out in the Independent
Auditors’ Report on pages 49 to 51.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and
control of the Company and oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic direction and financial
performance. The management is delegated the
authority and responsibility by the Board for the
management of the Group under the leadership
of the Vice Chairman. In addition, the Board has
also delegated various responsibilities to the four
committees, namely the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Finance Committee, to assist the Board
in discharging its duties and to oversee particular
aspects of the Group’s activities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Decisions on important matters are specifically
reserved to the Board while decisions on the Group’s
general operations are delegated to the management.
Important matters include those affecting the Group’s
strategic policies, major investment and funding
decisions and major commitments relating to the
Group’s operations.

The day-to-day management of the Group is
delegated to the Vice Chairman and the management.
This delegation of authority includes responsibility
for developing and formulating business plans and
budgets of the Group for the Board’s approval,
operating the Group’s businesses within the
parameters set by the Board, keeping the Board
informed of material developments of the Group’s
businesses, identifying and managing operation
and other risk and implementing the policies and
processes approved by the Board.

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary
balance skills and experience desirable for effective
leadership of the Company and independence in
decision-making.

The Board currently comprises two executive
directors, namely Mr. Heung Wah Keung and Ms.
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany; and three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Tang Chak Lam,
Gilbert, Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul and Mr. Lien Wai Hung.
The biographies of the directors are set out under
the section headed “Profiles of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 46 to 48.

There is no relationship between members of the
Board except that Mr. Heung Wah Keung, the
Chairman, is the husband of Ms. Chen Ming Yin,
Tiffany, the Vice Chairman.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Board
at all times met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors with at least
one independent non-executive director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive directors an annual
written confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, four full
regular board meetings were held and the attendance
of each director is set out below:
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B o

REBE-ZZNF+-A=1t—-HLFEARC
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Number of Attendance

meetings attended rate

Name of director EEnA HESR X HER

Mr. Heung Wah Keung mEREE 4/4 100%

Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany BREAZR L+ 4/4 100%

Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert BEMELE 4/4 100%

Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul EEEE 4/4 100%

Mr. Lien Wai Hung EEELE 4/4 100%
CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN FEHEEERE

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for the
leadership and effective running of the Board, while
the Vice Chairman, taking the role of chief executive
officer, is responsible for recommending policy and
strategic directions for Board approval, implementing
the strategies and policies adopted by the Board, and
conducting the day-to-day management of the Group.

For ensuring the balance of power and authority, the
division of responsibilities between the Chairman of
the Board and the Vice Chairman are clearly defined
and have been set out in writing which was approved
by the Board on 31 August 2005.
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TERMS OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code requires that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election. The term of office for
non-executive directors is subject to retirement from
office by rotation and is eligible for re-election in
accordance with the provisions of the Company’s
bye-laws. At each annual general meeting, one-third
of the directors for the time being, (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but
not greater than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation. As such, the Company considers that
such provisions are sufficient to meet the underlying
objective of this code provision.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees
with clearly defined written terms of reference.
The main roles and responsibilities of these
committees, including all authorities delegated
to them by the Board, as set out in the terms of
reference, are published on the Company’s website,
www.chinastar.com. The independent views and
recommendations of the four committees ensure
proper control of the Group and the continual
achievement of the high corporate governance
standards expected of a listed company. The
chairman of each committee reports the outcome of
the committee’s meetings to the Board for further
discussions and approvals.

The majority of the members of each board
committees are independent non-executive directors.
The board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expenses.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises two
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr.
Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert and Mr. Lien Wai Hung, and
one executive director, namely Ms. Chen Ming Yin,
Tiffany. Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s remuneration policy and structure of
directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for establishing a
formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no director or any of his/her associates
will involve in deciding his/her own remuneration.

In determining any specific package for directors, the
Remuneration Committee takes into account factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment, responsibilities of the directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
whether any part of the remuneration package should
be performance-based.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the
Remuneration Committee met once to review the
remuneration packages of the directors and senior
management. All the committee members attended
the meeting.

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee

for the year ended 31 December 2008 is summarised

as follows:

(a) review of the Company’s policy and structure
for all remuneration of the directors and senior

management;

(b) consideration of the remunerations for all the
directors and senior management; and

(c) review of the level of fees for the directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive
director, namely Mr. Heung Wah Keung and two
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr.
Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert and Mr. Lien Wai Hung. Mr.
Heung Wah Keung is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The main function of the Nomination Committee is to
review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
on a regular basis and make recommendations to
the Board regarding any proposed changes, identify
individuals suitable and qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated
for directorships and assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors. In addition,
the Nomination Committee makes recommendations
to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors in particular, the
Chairman and the Vice Chairman.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the
Nomination Committee met once to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board. All the
committee members attended the meeting.

Finance Committee

The Finance Committee comprises one executive
director, namely Mr. Heung Wah Keung, and one
independent non-executive director, namely Mr. Ho
Wai Chi, Paul. Mr. Heung Wah Keung is the chairman
of the Finance Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Finance Committee (Continued)

The main function of the Finance Committee is to
review and approve banking facilities and financial
instruments to be granted or issued by the Company
for the Group’s needs, the provision of corporate
guarantees by the Company for its subsidiaries and
associates, financial assistant of the Company and
the provision of financing to third parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, no Finance
Committee meeting was held.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Tang Chak Lam,
Gilbert, Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul and Mr. Lien Wai Hung.
Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

The main function of the Audit Committee is to
assist the Board to oversee the financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control
procedures and the external audit function. The Audit
Committee reviews the interim and annual reports
before submission to the Board for approval. The
Audit Committee annually assesses the appointment
of the external auditors, taking into account the
quality and rigor of the audit, the quality of the audit
service provided, the auditing firm’s quality control
procedures, relationships between the external
auditors and the Company, and the independence of
the external auditors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2008, two Audit

EXZEE(A)
BEREEE(E)

REBEEZZEZENFTZA=T-HLEFERTE

Committee meetings were held and the individual BITMAERZESEE  MEKNEZERH
attendance of each member is set out below: RLEBRHMOT :
Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
Name of member REHSE HEEEE HER
Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert BEMEE 2/2 100%
Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul EERLE 2/2 100%
Mr. Lien Wai Hung EEELE 2/2 100%

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting
principles and policies adopted by the Company and
discussed with management the internal controls and
financial reporting matters. To monitor the integrity
of the financial statements of the Company, the
Audit Committee had reviewed the unaudited interim
results and audited annual results for 2008 and was
of the opinion that the preparation of such results
complied with the applicable accounting standards
and requirements and that adequate disclosure had
been made.

At the meeting held on 20 April 2009, the Audit
Committee had concluded that it was satisfied with
its review of the audit fee, process and effectiveness,
independence and objectivity of HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng. The Audit Committee has therefore
recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng be re-appointed as the Company’s external
auditors at the annual general meeting in 2009.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the Company engaged HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng to perform audit services and non-
audit services and incurred audit services fees
of HK$710,000 and non-audit services fees of
HK$938,000.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
internal control system and to ensure that a sound
and effective internal control system is maintained.
The Board is responsible for approving and reviewing
internal control policy while the responsibility of
day-to-day management of operational risks and
implementation of mitigation measures lies with
the management. As the internal control system
is designed to manage the Group’s risks within an
acceptable risk profile, rather than to eliminate the
risk of failure, and to achieve the business objectives
of the Group. Accordingly, it can only provide
reasonable assurance but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement of management and
financial information and records or against financial
losses or fraud.

Key control procedures of the Group’s internal control
system are as follows:

o Segregation of duties and functions of the
respective operational departments of the Group

° Monitoring the strategic plan and performance

° Designing an effective accounting and
information system

° Controlling price-sensitive information
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (Continued)

The Board has established an on-going process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant
risks faced by the Group and this process includes
updating the internal control manual when there
are changes to business environment or regulatory
guidelines.

The Group has conducted an annual review of the
effectiveness of its internal control system covering
all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance as well as risk management. Besides
the Group has also engaged HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Consultants Limited (the “Consultant”) to
conduct review and make recommendations for the
improvement and strengthening of the internal control
system.

The review by the Consultant is conducted with
reference to the principles outlined in Internal
Control and Risk Management — A Basic Framework
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The assessment covers the
major internal controls and measures, including
financial, operational and compliance as well as
risk management. Any material non-compliance or
failures in internal controls maintained by the Group’s
management and relevant recommendations for
improvements are reported to the Audit Committee.

Based on the assessments made by the Consultant,
the Audit Committee and the Board considered
that the key areas of the Group’s internal control
system are reasonably implemented with room for
improvement. The Group shall use its best endeavour
to implement the recommendations made by the
Consultant in order to further improve the internal
control system.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company reports to its shareholders twice a year.
Interim and annual results are announced to keep
shareholders informed of the Group’s performance
and operations. The general meetings of the
Company provide a forum for communication between
the shareholders and the Board. All shareholders are
encouraged to attend the annual general meeting to
discuss the progress of the Group’s business. The
Chairman of the Board and/or the Vice Chairman,
as well as chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Finance Committee, or in their absence, other
members of the respective committees, and where
applicable, the independent Board Committee, are
available to answer questions at the shareholders’
meeting. Separate resolutions are proposed at
shareholders’ meeting on each substantial issue,
including the re-election of directors. Our corporate
website which contains corporate information, interim
and annual reports, announcements and circulars
issued by the Company, enables the Company’s
shareholders to access information on the Group on
a timely basis.
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Report of the Directors
EFERE

The directors present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2008.

CHANGE OF NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the special
general meeting held on 30 April 2008, the name of
the Company was changed from Riche Multi-Media
Holdings Limited to China Star Investment Holdings
Limited with effect from 25 June 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2008 are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 52.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2008
(2007: nil). No interim dividend was paid during the
year (2007: nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years
ended 31 December 2008 is set out on page 172.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements during the year in the share
capital of the Company are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS
(Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s share options schemes
and details of movements during the year in the share
options of the Company are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2008.

RESERVES

Details of movements during the year in the reserves
of the Group and of the Company are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 56 and in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2008, the Company had no reserves
available for distribution.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Details of movements during the year in the

investment properties of the Group are set out in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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BANK LOAN

Particulars of bank loan of the Group at 31 December
2008 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Particulars of convertible notes issued by the
Company during the year are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Heung Wah Keung (Chairman)
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany (Vice Chairman)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert
Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul
Mr. Lien Wai Hung

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, Mr.
Heung Wah Keung and Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert
shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

Biographical details of the directors are set out under
the section headed “Profiles of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 46 to 48.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the
independent non-executive directors, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2008, the interests of certain
directors of the Company and their associates in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”), as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions - ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
of the Company

Report of the Directors
EFERE

mRBYM

ARBERIZEILFANITESRETBBS
REMBERAADEFEZLHRA( LRI DE
BIBRZ R EMBHAEBAB UM 2 FER
BB ARARARETRBAUFITESHAS
Mk e

EERROKAERRG 2 EE

REZZZENF+ZRA=1T—0  BRRXFARE
=5 R AR ([ 5 R BER 1) % 352 1%
FEZETMARE  RRAQAREBES
REFBERABDBRIBELTAREBETESR
SNRETFAMEEN  ALAETESRA
BEATRAQXAREEEEIR(ERERES
REFERBIFEXVER) 2 R0 R ARBER D P H#EA
ZRERMT

¥R — FAQASKREEIBLIZEER

Percentage of the
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Directors Note  Capacity Interest in shares of the Company
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£ Wiz &6 RER REFDH

Mr. Heung Wah Keung 1 Interest of controlled corporation 19,360,612 9.92%

mEREE SEFHAR 2 ER

Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany 1 Interest of controlled corporation 19,360,612 9.92%

BEAEZ £ RN RzER
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Long positions - ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
of the Company (Continued)

Note:

1. 19,360,612 shares are beneficially owned by Classical
Statue Limited, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Glenstone Investments Limited. Glenstone Investments
Limited is owned as to 60% by Porterstone Limited
and as to 40% by Mr. Heung Wah Keung. Porterstone
Limited is wholly owned by Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany.

Other than the holdings disclosed above, none of
the directors of the Company and their associates
had any interest or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations at 31 December
2008.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the
following directors of the Company had interests in
the following businesses (apart from the Company’s
businesses) conducted through the company named
below, its subsidiaries, associated companies or
other investment forms which are to compete or
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the principal businesses of the Company conducted
during the year:

Report of the Directors
EFERE
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RBE-ZZNFF+-_A=1t—-HLFER
RRBUTEBRUATEBRTIQFE - HE
DA BWERNAFHEMREFLNETHERER
BEEAQRRNFRNETIEEZXZBBRIA
BEBHB T 2B (R DB EBBRIN) hER#E
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Nature of competing

Name of director Name of company Nature of interest business
E=nR NCIECE: EEMtE BMEEBMHE
Mr. Heung Wah Keung China Star a. Chairman Film distribution
mERLE Entertainment ES BT
Limited b. Shareholder (interested
(“China Star”) in 21.21% in China
FEEKEEERA T Star)
(THEE D RERNHEEHES
21.21% fEz)
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, China Star a. Vice Chairman Film distribution
Tiffany FEE2 BEE B 0)
PREF 2 + b. Shareholder (interested
in 21.21% in China
Star)
RR(NRAIEZEHES
21.21% ##=)
Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul China Star Independent non-executive Film distribution
EERTE FE 2 director EFRT
BAFHITES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(@) On 28 February 2008, the Group and China
Star entered into a deed of variation pursuant
to which the parties mutually agreed to further
extend the long-stop date in the conditional sale
and purchase agreement dated 1 August 2007
(the “S&P Agreement”) relating to the acquisition
of the entire issued share capital of Exceptional
Gain Profits Limited and a sale loan by Legend
Rich Limited from China Star from 28 February
2008 to 31 March 2008.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) On 31 March 2008, the Group and China Star
entered into a deed of variation pursuant to
which the parties mutually agreed to further
extend the long-stop date in the S&P Agreement
from 31 March 2008 to 30 May 2008.

(c) On 29 May 2008, the Group and China Star
entered into a deed of variation pursuant to
which the parties mutually agreed to further
extend the long-stop date in the S&P Agreement
from 30 May 2008 to 31 July 2008.

(d) On 31 July 2008, the Group and China Star
entered into a deed of variation pursuant to
which the parties mutually agreed to further
extend the long-stop date in the S&P Agreement
from 31 July 2008 to 31 October 2008.

(e) On 31 October 2008, the Group and China Star
entered into a deed of variation pursuant to
which the parties mutually agreed to further
extend the long-stop date in the S&P Agreement
from 31 October 2008 to 31 January 2009.

(f) On 23 December 2008, the Group and China
Star entered into a deed of termination pursuant
to which the parties mutually agreed to terminate
the S&P Agreement.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2008, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO shows that the following
shareholders had notified the Company of relevant
interests in the issued share capital of the Company:

Long positions — ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

Report of the Directors
EFERE

FERR

RZZZENF+ZA=+T—R » RNAARERE
ZRPERFIFEIBIRFEZETERRETH
BR o TIRRECHEARQRAEEALF D H
TRAZBBRER

FE — XAFEBREEMBIZEAER

of the Company

Percentage
of the issued

Interest in share capital
Interest in underlying Total of the
Name Capacity shares shares interest Company
HEERAEER
£ EL) REE HEROGES “HERz TREABEIH
Classical Statue Limited Beneficial owner 19,360,612 - 19,360,612 9.92%
EXBAA
Glenstone Investments Interest of controlled 19,360,612 - 19,360,612 9.92%
Limited corporation
ZEHARzER
Porterstone Limited Interest of controlled 19,360,612 - 19,360,612 9.92%
corporation
REFDR 2 ER
Mr. Heung Wah Keung Interest of controlled 19,360,612 - 19,360,612 9.92%
mERELE corporation
REFDQR 2 ER
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Interest of controlled 19,360,612 - 19,360,612 9.92%
Tiffany corporation
REARZ L ZEFEARzER
Kingston Securities Other 39,000,000 - 39,000,000 1413%
Limited Hity
SREESHERLT
Ms. Chu Yuet Wah Interest of controlled 39,000,000 - 39,000,000 14.13%

FRELL
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Long positions — ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

FTERR#E)

FE — XPABREEIIEBIZEEBR

of the Company (Continued) (&
Percentage
of the issued
Interest in share capital
Interest in underlying Total of the
Name Notes Capacity shares shares interest Company
EADRDE
£ Kz & RoER EEROES BEZ fTREESH
Ms. Ma Siu Fong 2 Interest of controlled 39,000,000 - 39,000,000 14.13%
BLErL corporation
ZEFEARzER
Northbay Investments 3 Beneficial owner 12,941,217 - 12,941,217 9.95%
Holdings Limited BERBEEA
Asia Vest Partners VIl 3 Interest of controlled 12,941,217 - 12,941,217 9.95%
Limited corporation
FERHARZER
Asia Vest Partners X 3 Interest of controlled 12,941,217 - 12,941,217 9.95%
Limited corporation
TR ARz ER
Asia Vest Partners 3 Interest of controlled 12,941,217 — 12,941,217 9.95%
Limited corporation
TR ARz ER
Mr. Andrew Nan Sherrill 3 Interest of controlled 12,941,217 - 12,941,217 9.95%
MERLE corporation
ZEH AT 2 ER
Well Will Investment Beneficial owner - 90,000,000 90,000,000 46.11%
Limited ERBEEA
Mr. Ng Cheuk Fai Interest of controlled - 90,000,000 90,000,000 46.11%

REQRE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Long positions — ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1. Classical Statue Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Glenstone Investments Limited. Glenstone Investments
Limited is owned as to 60% by Porterstone Limited and
as to 40% by Mr. Heung Wah Keung. Porterstone Limited
is wholly owned by Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany.

2. Kingston Securities Limited is interested in 39,000,000
shares by virtue of its capacity as the placing agent
in relation to a top-up placing as announced by
the Company on 29 December 2008. 51% and 49%
of shareholding of Kingston Securities Limited are
respectively owned by Ms. Chu Yuet Wah and Ms. Ma
Siu Fong. Ms. Chu Yuet Wah and Ms. Ma Siu Fong are
deemed to be interested in the 39,000,000 shares.

3. 12,941,217 shares are beneficially owned by Northbay
Investments Holdings Limited. 35.5% and 64.8% of the
shareholding of Northbay Investments Holdings Limited
are respectively owned by Asia Vest Partners VIl Limited
and Asia Vest Partners X Limited, and both of them
are indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Andrew Nan Sherrill
through Asia Vest Partners Limited.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not
been notified of any other relevant interests or short
positions in the issued share capital of the Company
at 31 December 2008.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

The Group has a management services contract with
HEAEYEER (£8) BRAR (“Shama”) in respect
of the Group’s investment properties in Beijing, the
People’s Republic of China for a period of ten years,
with an option for Shama to extend another two “five-
year period”, starting from the date of handover of
the investment properties to Shama for management.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme
are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Details of the compliance by the Company with the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices are set out
on pages 22 to 33.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 December 2008.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, sales generated from the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for 100% of the
total sales and there was not supplier to the Group.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Details of the significant subsequent events are

set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2008 have been audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng who retire and, being eligible,

offer themselves for re-appointment.

On Behalf of the Board

Heung Wah Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 April 2009
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
EERSREEBARRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Heung Wah Keung, aged 61, is the Chairman of
the Company. He is responsible for the development
of the overall strategic planning of the Group and
liaising with various government authorities in the
People’s Republic of China. His wife, Ms. Chen Ming
Yin, Tiffany, is the Vice Chairman of the Company. He
joined the Company in August 2001. Mr. Heung has
over 20 years of experience in the entertainment and
multi-media industries. He is the founder of Win’s
Entertainment Limited and One Hundred Years of Film
Company Limited. Mr. Heung is also the chairman of
China Star Entertainment Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, and the vice chairman of the Hong
Kong Kowloon and New Territories Motion Picture
Industry Association Limited.

Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany, aged 52, is the Vice
Chairman of the Company. She is responsible for
the overall management of the Group. Ms. Chen
is the wife of Mr. Heung Wah Keung. She joined
the Company in August 2001. She has over 15
years of experience in the entertainment and multi-
media industries. She has produced a number of
blockbuster films for Win’s Entertainment Limited
and One Hundred Years of Film Company Limited.
Ms. Chen is the vice chairman of China Star
Entertainment Limited. In 2003, she was selected as
one of 2003 Women in Entertainment — International
Power by The Hollywood Reporter.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEARRE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert, aged 58, is a practicing
solicitor in Hong Kong since 1987 and is a senior
partner of Messrs. Gilbert Tang & Co.. He joined
the Company in February 2002. He was a director
of Pok Oi Hospital in 1993 and a member of the
Kowloon West Advisory Committee of Hong Kong
Bank Foundation District Community Programme
between July 1991 and November 1995. Mr. Tang
holds a Bachelor of Law Degree from the University
of Buckingham in the United Kingdom, and a Diploma
in Chinese Law from the University of East Asia in
Macau.

Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul, aged 58, is the sole proprietor
of Paul W. C. Ho & Company, Certified Public
Accountants (Practising), and is an associate of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, United Kingdom and a fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ho
joined the Company in September 2004.

Mr. Lien Wai Hung, aged 45, is a practicing solicitor
in Hong Kong since 1997 and is a partner of Messrs.
Leung & Lien, a firm of solicitors in Hong Kong. He
graduated from the University of East London with a
LLB Degree in the United Kingdom. Mr. Lien joined
the Company in April 2005.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
EERSREEBARRE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy, aged 46, is the company
secretary and the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company. Prior to joining the Company in September
2003, he worked in the accounting, finance and
taxation field for over 15 years and has over ten
years of working experience in Hong Kong listed
companies. He is an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
CPA member of CPA Australia and a non-practicing
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He holds a Bachelor of Administration
Degree from the University of Ottawa in Canada
and a Master of Commerce Degree in Professional
Accounting from the University of New South Wales
in Australia.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

HLB B & 8 F B A

Hodgson Impey Cheng

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA STAR INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS RICHE MULTI-MEDIA
HOLDINGS LIMITED)

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial
statements of China Star Investment Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 52 to
171 which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31 December 2008 and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for
the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
5 3 B BB 3R

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors of the Company, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
55 3 B BB 3R

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the Company as at 31 December
2008 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 April 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement
Fekax

For the year ended 31 December 2008

BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

2008 2007
—E2EBN\F —EELF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Krat FET FET
(Restated)
(E%))
Continuing operations HEREER
Turnover ] 7 19,253 7,722
Cost of sales HE A (493) —
Gross profit EF 18,760 7,722
Other revenue and other income HEblUkz R =i A 8 2,427 2,922
Impairment loss recognised in  EEREEHEEE
respect of goodwill (101,965) —
Administrative expenses THRX (26,462) (565,393)
Loss from operations KEEE 9 (107,240) (44,749)
Finance costs mE & A 10 (3,350) —
Loss before taxation FRELAIE 1B (110,590) (44,749)
Taxation Fi I8 13 13,854 —
Loss for the year from continuing REZHBE KL £~
operations REEEE (96,736) (44,749)
Discontinued operations ERIEREEK
(Loss)/profit for the year from RECKRIEREEK 2
discontinued operations REEZ (FHE),TaA 25 (127,772) 70,443
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(FE),BF (224,508) 25,694
(Loss)/profit attributable EATRERFEA
to equity holders of the PEAL (BB, Rl
Company (224,508) 25,694
(Loss)/earnings per share FREAQNFREFTEA
attributable to equity holders FELEER(EE)
of the Company during the B — BEXRR#E
year — basic and diluted
From continuing operations REFELCEETS 14 HK(49.56) centsifll  HK(43.47) cents{l
From discontinued operations REC KIS 14 HK(65.46) centsiE1l HK68.43 centsi Ll
From continuing and REFELEREAIE
discontinued operations K 14 HK(115.02) centsi&{l HK24.96 centsi Ll

62
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
TEEEARE

At 31 December 2008
R-EENF+=-A=1+—H

2008 2007
—E2ENE —EELHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
HraE FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BMENERE 16 2,155 6,000
Investment properties REWHE 17 - 887,450
Goodwill EES 18 — 39,456
Intangible assets BEERE 19 456,857 —
Club membership EEsE 172 172
459,184 933,078
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 - 32,783
Trade receivables e ANERE 21 6,839 1,245
Deposits, prepayments and Ze - ANREREM
other receivables FE U FR1E 22 1,627 31,830
Tax prepayments FEIBE 23 - 12,120
Cash and cash equivalents HERRELSEEY 24 7,218 531,396
15,684 609,374
Assets of disposal group PEABELEZ
classified as held for sale HEMEREE 25 1,049,412 —
1,065,096 609,374
Total assets EE#E 1,524,280 1,542,452
EQUITY IR
Capital and reserves RATBREZFEA
attributable to equity holders PEAG IR A< 2 &
of the Company
Share capital N 26 1,952 195,186
Reserves #i& 892,471 850,894
894,423 1,046,080
Minority interests DE R R ER — 3,896
Total equity BRrELARE 894,423 1,049,976
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
TEEEARE

At 31 December 2008
R-FENF+=F=+—H

2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kt FET FET
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Secured bank loan — due after BEFETER
one year — R—FREH 28 - 301,485
Convertible notes AR EE 29 105,803 -
Deferred taxation IRFER 18 30 61,678 73,502
167,481 374,987
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables EFtE AR M ESFRIE 31 32,956 19,245
Receipts in advance and FERREREWRE
deposits received 32 477 47,041
Amounts due to related FESEAE N RIFKIE
companies 88 600 701
Secured bank loan — due within BIEFETER
one year — R —F R 28 — 27,533
Tax payable FEH 418 731 22,969
34,764 117,489
Liabilities of disposal group TEABEEHEZ
classified as held for sale HEMAREE 25 427,612 =
462,376 117,489
Total liabilities BEAE 629,857 492,476
Total equity and liabilities BRERABEHEE 1,524,280 1,542,452
Net current assets REBEEFE 602,720 491,885
Total assets less current EEAERRBAE
liabilities 1,061,904 1,424,963

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23
April 2009 and signed on its behalf by:

Heung Wah Keung
R
Director

EFE
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Balance Sheet
BEARE

At 31 December 2008
R-EENF+=-A=1+—H

2008 2007
—BENE —EELF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
KiaE FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG E 34 366,305 4,873
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, prepayments and e ANRER
other receivables Hib e s 22 - 2 250
Cash and cash equivalents HeERBEEEEY 24 278 489,538
278 491,788
Total assets EEH#AE 366,583 496,661
EQUITY iz A
Capital and reserves RATREZEAEN
attributable to equity holders AR &S
of the Company
Share capital [N 26 1,952 195,186
Reserves s 27 214,983 262,946
Total equity AR 216,935 458,132
LIABILITIES 8E
Non-current liabilities FkRBEME
Convertible notes AR EE 29 105,803 =
Deferred taxation IEFERL 18 30 6,855 —
112,658 —
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables FEstE AR HEAM
i ANETCE 31 1,080 943
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE A B B A RIFRIE 34 35,910 37,586
36,990 38,529
Total liabilities BEAEE 149,648 38,529
Total equity and liabilities BEREEHAE 366,583 496,661
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE (&%) EEFE (36,712) 453,259
Total assets less current EEHBERABERS
liabilities 329,593 458,132

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23
April 2009 and signed on its behalf by:

Heung Wah Keung

BE3
Director

EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FeREEEx

For the year ended 31 December 2008

BE—EENFL+ZA=1—HILFE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
KLAREREARL
(Accumulated
Share-based  Convertible losses)/
Share Share Capital ~ Contributed Special payment notes Exchange Retained Minority
capital premium reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests Total
HREA (BitEE)/
B g Exfif KAz KHEE Xk TRRZERR HARE REEA bt HHBRES i
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
74 74 74 - A7 74T 74T 74T 723 74 74 74
(note g) (note b) (note ¢)
(ia) (Kb (Wc)

At 1 January 2007 H-25tE-5-R 64,843 380,626 19,844 80,108 (19,955) = = 7,201 (133,026 399,636 3,096 403,532

Issuance of new shares BIHRG 127103 416,604 - - - - - - - 543,707 - 543,707

Share-based payment expenses  ARBFAZAZER - - - - - 32,282 - - - 32,82 = 32,28

Exercise of share options fikEhE 3,240 15,828 - - - (3.840) - - - 15,208 - 15,208

Exchange difference arising from  FESANEATRE

translation of investments in ErzEREE
foreign subsidiaries - - - - - - - 20,533 - 29,533 - 29,533
Net profit for the year REEHR - - - - - - - - 25,694 25,694 - 25,694
At 31 December 2007 and HoZEtE
1 January 2008 +ZB=1-AR
“EENE
-B-A 195,186 813,068 19,844 80,10 (19,955) 26,442 = 36,734 (107,832) 1,046,080 3,096 1,049,976

Capital reorganisation (note 26)  RAEA(H26)

- capital reduction — Bl (193,235) - - 193,235 - - - - - - - =

— share premium cancellation ~~ — EERAEE - (818,058) - 813,058 - - - - - - - -

- setoffaccumulated losses ~ — HESBSmHY

against contributed surplus 2ithg = - - (518,374) - - - - 518,374 - - -

Exercise of share options TERkE 1 - - - - - - - - 1 - 1

Share-based payment expenses  HRBFAZAZER - - - - - 3608 - - - 3,608 = 3,608

Acquisition of remaining interest Wi -BHEATZH

in a subsidiary BiER - - - - - - - - - - (3,896) (3,896)

Issuance of convertible notes BT TRREE

- equity component - hERs = = - - - - kY - - 4,547 - 4,547
Deferred tax recognised BRIZELHE - - - - - - (6,855) - - (6,855) - (6,855)
Exchange difference arising from ~ fFEEAKBARRE

translation of investments in EEZEYER

foreign subsidiaries - - - - - - - 34,550 - 34,550 - 34,550
Net loss for the year TEEEEH - - - - - - - - (oaB08  (24508) - (50
At 3t December 2008 HoBENE

t2A=1-A 1952 = 19,844 568,022 (19,955 32,050 34,692 71,284 186,534 894,423 - 894,423

Notes: Bt -

(a) The capital reserve of the Group represents the (@) FTEBEREEBEDIEMNBLARZRARRGE
difference of the share capital and share premium of the {BEd[@ Classical Statue Limited B2Z% 120 &%
subsidiaries and the nominal value of the 880 shares £ A1 Riche (BVI) Limited (Ai%#8 Ocean Shores
issued by Riche (BVI) Limited (formerly known as Ocean (BVI) Limited) PTE%47 =2 880 IR IR < EE K H
Shores (BVI) Limited) prior to the allotment of 120 shares HWEBATRRTROFMEE S HIBEELE.
to Classical Statue Limited and the amount arising from
issue of share by a subsidiary.

(b)  The contributed surplus account of the Group represents (b) AEBMZES g@aﬁ;‘g*ﬁg‘gm:ggzﬂz)\g
the net amount transferred from the share capital, share T+ -HR-EENENA =+ HETZREREYS
premium account and to the retained profits/accumulated uj(étg;ﬁz»hg],;ggi;g IR - RSB ERR
losses account pursuant to the special resolution passed R TR T Bt EIRER 2 EAE o
at the special general meetings held on 22 August 2003
and 30 April 2008.

(c) The special reserve of the Group represents the (c) AEBZEREENIEEENRBE-SSAF

difference between the fair value and the contracted
value of consideration in respect of the acquisition of
Shinhan-Golden Faith International Development Limited
during the year ended 31 December 2006.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
REBE&RER

For the year ended 31 December 2008
E-EE\FL A=t —ALEE

2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETtHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KEEH
Loss before taxation from REFELSEEL 2
continuing operations MRELATE B (110,590) (44,749)
(Loss)/profit before taxation from REBRILEEEE 2
discontinued operations BREL AT (E1R) &R (149,986) 83,599
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRBLAT (B518) & F (260,576) 38,850
Adjustments for: HE
Interest income FIE WA (3,639) (2,990)
Dividend income ST ON - (78)
Waiver of secured bank loan He B RFRITERFE
interest - (106,956)
Fair value changes REVMEZAFEEE
on investment properties 74,045 (43,853)
Finance costs MEEH 28,639 19,494
Depreciation of property, plant M BRERREINE
and equipment 5,033 1,158
Impairment loss recognised in CRIABBRERSE
respect of goodwill 142,347 37,828
Impairment loss recognised in CRRE S EWRIE
respect of trade receivables WERBE - 9
Loss on disposal of property, HEVE  BERREZ
plant and equipment BE 3 3
Share-based payment expenses LURHOEX LA 2BX 3,608 32,282
I
Operating cash flows before EEESRHAI2KE g
movements in working capital RERE (10,540) (24,253) T
Decrease in inventories FERD 3,814 12,371 ﬂ
Increase in trade receivables g 5 FEWCRRIE B N (5,806) (318) P
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, &% -~ FEMRIER i &
prepayments and other FEWFRER L, (35 h) T
receivables 20,505 (12,576) :aog
Increase/(decrease) in accruals EstEAREAM =
and other payables FEAFFRIE I I, CRLA) 27,672 (963) -
Decrease in receipts in advance  FEWFIER A (7,094) (13,857) 2
(Decrease)/increase in amounts  FE{tBIE A T FIE o
due to related companies GR2) /1 hn (101) 95 2
[
Cash generated from/(used in) SEMELE(FTARS :]E:
operations 28,450 (39,501) 2
Tax refund/(paid) BB (B4)BE 3,736 (4,671) g
©
Net cash generated from/(used K& EFEFELS (FiA)Z b
in) operating activities REeEFE 32,186 (44,172) £
i
o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
REBeERER

For the year ended 31 December 2008

BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

2008 2007
—BENF —EFELHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Interest received EEIISE 3,639 2,990
Dividend income & B A - 78
Proceeds from disposal of HEME  BERSEEZ
property, plant and equipment eI - 220
Effect from acquisition of KENEARZER 2 E
interests in subsidiaries (364,821) —
Additions of investment REMHERE
properties (42,202) (116,960)
Purchase of property, BEYE BRERSZE
plant and equipment (22,397) (4,908)
Net cash used in investing REFTEFAZEESTE
activities (425,781) (118,580)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEE
Interest paid EFE (25,289) (19,494)
Issuance of new shares and BITHRORTEERE
exercise of share options 1 562,775
Repayment of secured bank loan {EEHIEFERTER (28,602) 5,359
New secured bank loan raised IR HIEFRITER - 65,922
Net cash (used in)/generated BEEE(FrH), FIEEZ
from financing activities REeFHE (53,890) 614,562
Net (decrease)/increase in cash REREREZEY
and cash equivalents Om2) B (447,485) 451,810
Effect of foreign exchange rate SNEH IR S8
changes 5,459 16,446
Cash and cash equivalents at FHNZzRERRESEEY
beginning of year 531,396 63,140
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZASRRESEEY
end of year 89,370 531,396
Analysis of the balances of RERBSEENEFIN
cash and cash equivalents
Included in cash and cash FTAGEEEEBERMEZ
equivalents per the consolidated WRERBELZEY
balance sheet 24 7,218 531,396
Included in assets of disposal FADEARABELERZ
group classified as held for sale  HE&EABIEE 25 82,152 -
89,370 531,396
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as
an exempted company with limited liability and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The address of the registered office of the
Company is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company’s principal activity is investment
holding and the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong
Dollars (HK$’000), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for
the first time, a number of new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretations
(the “new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) that are relevant to its operations and
effective for accounting periods beginning on 1
January 2008. A summary of the new HKFRSs is
set out as below:

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial Assets
(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share
Transactions
HK(IFRIC) — Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit
Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements
and their Interaction

Annual Report 2008 fF#f
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008

gt_‘t—v

2.
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FENFrZA=F—HULFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material
effect on how the results and financial position
of the Group for the current or prior accounting
periods have been prepared and presented.

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not early applied the following
new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations that have been issued but are not
yet effective.

HKFRS (Amendments)  Improvements to HKFRSs'

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements’

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs”

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements®

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation’

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
(Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Eligible Hedged Items®

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
(Amendments) Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate’

HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards®

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and Cancellations’

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations’

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving Disclosures about Financial

Instruments’

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments®

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 Embedded Derivatives’

and HKAS 39

(Amendments)

FERFTR] RAGIER] BB M B M E £
(T EEBHMHREER D) @)

R EBY BB EALEBHAS
HERBEETHEcRAEBXE )52971

BRRZERR2ZINFTABREKRE
2

Eﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬁfﬂ HAREREBUBHREE

AEBETEREFEAUTEEMER R

EMZHTREIETER ~ BRI ARE

2o

BARKREEN BB REEN 2 E
(BFTR)

BRSTERNE 15 B BHRE?

(&437)

BBSHENF 3% BERA’
(&453T)

BEGHENF 7R GARBUBBRR®
(&431)

RS EAERER  UHESRIAR
BEGTEE1% \EBREL 2 EF
(BFTK)

BBeHENE % RERYMER®
CCHEN

ERUBREENE 1S  RWBLF  AREHER
REBEEAE7E  SBEAFZRERSE’
(BFTR)

ERUBREENE 1Y EARRERUE
(&453T) REED®

BRNBREENE? RERERTE
(#BFTR)

ERUEREENFEIE  ERAH
(&437)

EARKREENETE SRIARECXE’
(BETR)

BRNBREENES 2ELD’

BB (ABURRERE  AEfEIA

Z58) —2BER
RERETEANEI0H
(BE%)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes’

HK(IFRIC) — Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real
Estate’

HK(IFRIC) — Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation®

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17 Distributions of Non-Cash Assets to
Owners’

HK(IFRIC) — Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2009 except for the amendments to
HKFRS 5, effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 30
June 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
October 2008

Effective for transfers on or after 1 July 2009

The adoption of HKAS 1 (Revised) may result
in a change in presentation of the primary
statements of the consolidated financial
statements. The application of HKFRS 3
(Revised) may affect the accounting for
business combination for which the acquisition
date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after
1 July 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the
accounting treatment for changes in a parent’s
ownership interest in a subsidiary. The directors
of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised standards,
amendments or interpretations will have no
material impact on the results and the financial
position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

4.

62

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable HKFRSs, which is a collective
term that includes all applicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”), and Interpretations (“Ints”)
issued by the HKICPA and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements included applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under historical cost
convention except for certain financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss and investment properties which
are carried at fair value. The preparation
of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the
Company’s accounting policies.

Assets of disposal group classified as
held for sale are stated at the lower of
carrying amounts and fair values less costs
to sell. The accounting policy of note 4(y)
to the consolidated financial statements
has mentioned the amendments and
classification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The Group’s books and records are
maintained in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”) as
the directors of the Company control and
monitor the results and financial position of
the Group in HK$.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed during the year are included in
the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All intra-group transactions, balance,
income and expenses are eliminated on
consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of
consolidated subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.
Minority interests in the net assets consist
of the amount of those interests at the date
of the original business combination and
the minority’s share of changes in equity
since the date of the combination. Losses
applicable to the minority in excess of the
minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity
are allocated against the interests of the
Group except to the extent that the minority
has a binding obligation and is able to
make an additional investment to cover the
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Business combination

The acquisition of a business is accounted
for using the purchase method. The cost of
the acquisition is measured at the aggregate
of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity instruments issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable
to the business combination. The acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that meet the conditions for
recognition under HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations are recognised at their fair
values at the acquisition date, except for
non-current assets (or disposal groups) that
are classified as held for sale in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-Current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations, which
are recognised and measured at fair value
less costs to sell.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is
recognised as an asset and initially
measured at cost, being the excess of the
cost of the business combination over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment,
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost
of the business combination, the excess is
recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement.

The interest of minority shareholders in
the acquiree is initially measured at the
minority’s proportion of the net fair value
of the assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Revenue recognition

Revenue from distribution of films is
recognised when video products or master
materials of films are delivered to customers
and the title has passed.

Revenue from sub-licensing of film rights
is recognised upon delivery of master
materials of films to customers.

Revenue from sales of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised when sale and purchase
contracts became unconditional.

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in
advance, from properties under operating
lease is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the respective leases.

Service fee income is recognised when the
services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is
recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the interest rate applicable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

66

Impairment of assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is any indication
of impairment of assets, or whether there
is any indication that an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated. An impairment loss is
recognised whenever the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is charged to the
consolidated income statement in the year
in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, when the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant policy for that revalued asset.

(i) Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the higher of its net selling price and
value in use. The net selling price is
the amount obtainable from the sale of
an asset in an arm’s length transaction
while value in use is the present
value of estimated future cash flows
expected to arise from the continuing
use of any asset and from its disposal
at the end of its useful life. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of asset that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii) Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss of goodwill
is reversed only if the loss was
caused by a specific external event
of an exceptional nature that is not
expected to recur, and the increase in
recoverable amount relates the reversal
effect of that specific event.

A reversal of impairment losses is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to the consolidated
income statement in the year in which
the reversals are recognised.

(f) Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of
the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on
taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
is the profit for the year, determined in
accordance with the rules established by
the taxation authorities, upon which income
taxes are payable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

68

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be
payable or recoverable on differences
between the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the balance sheet
liability method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible
temporary difference can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill (or negative goodwill) or from the
initial recognition (other than a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on
investment in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the assets
to be recovered.

4.

TESHERERBEA)

(f)

BLE(E

EEBESHRMBHRRPEERE
18 2 BRI 1B 2 5t 5 FE SR B0 A A A
HERER 2 Z8m A RE
ZBE UERAEERGEREEE
RE - EEBEREBESERME
FERBIE IS =R - MIELERIH
EEDNRURHBEANAEREMR
Bz ERBUB R BF IR - BFR —
BXZH FEEB(REBHE)NR
EEBEHUMNRE DS R EA
EERBEMSIBZERKREHET
FERRBER - FAEEEE
Ao ATERAZSEEREE -

EEBEREIZENE QR KRB
ERNAREMSI B Z2ERHE K=
MM » WEANEE A EF T
ZHEBOMERZREIEERA
RERFEBE ZERERN

EEBHEEZREERSEEE
AfEtes » WRR TR EHRER
g A U = 2 Ep S B 40 B E R AF R
I, o

Annual Report 2008 3R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited
in the consolidated income statement,
except when it relates to items charged or
credited directly to equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after the property,
plant and equipment has been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the consolidated
income statement in the period in which it
is incurred. In situations where it can be
clearly demonstrated that the expenditure
has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained
from the use of the property, plant and
equipment, the expenditure is capitalised as
an additional cost of that asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the
cost of property, plant and equipment,
using the straight-line method, over their
estimated useful lives. The principal annual
rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 33.3%
Office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 15%

The gain or loss arising from disposal of
property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the net sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset and is recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the year
the asset is derecognised.

(h) Investment properties

On initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are
measured using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair
values of investment properties are included
in the consolidated income statement in the
year in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised
upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use
or no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the investment
properties (calculated as the difference
between the net sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the consolidated income statement in the
year in which the investment properties are
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Investments in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an enterprise controlled
by the Company. Control exists when
the Company has the power, directly or
indirectly, to govern the financial and
operating policies of an enterprise so as
to obtain benefits from its activities. In the
Company’s balance sheet, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a
subsidiary or an associate represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the relevant subsidiary or
associate at the date of acquisition.
Such goodwill is carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an
acquisition of a subsidiary is presented
separately in the consolidated balance
sheet. Capitalised goodwill arising on an
acquisition of an associate is included in
the cost of the investment of the relevant
associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

(2

Goodwill (Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill arising from an acquisition is
allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a financial year, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that
financial year. When the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit
pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
the consolidated income statement. An
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed
in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary
or an associate, the attributable amount
of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

n

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately
are recognised initially at cost. After
initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses.
Expenditure on internally generated goodwill
and brands is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis
over the assets’ estimated useful lives from
the date when they are available for use.

Both the period and method of amortisation
are reviewed annually.

Inventories

Inventories on finished goods are stated
at lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out
method.

Inventories on stock of properties, which
are held for trading, are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value is determined by reference
to sale proceeds received after the balance
sheet date less selling expenses, or by
management estimates based on the
prevailing market conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Financial instruments

The Group classifies its investment in
securities in the following categories
depends on the purpose of such investment
were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its investments at
initial recognition and re-evaluates this
designation at every reporting date.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

A financial asset is classified in this
category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term
or if so designated by management.
Assets in this category are classified as
current assets if they are either held for
trading or are expected to be realised
within 12 months of the balance sheet
date.

(ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They arise
when the Group provides money, goods
or services directly to a debtor with
no intention of trading the receivable.
They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12
months after the balance sheet date.
These are classified as non-current
assets. Loans and receivables included
loan receivables, convertible notes
receivables and trade receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets
are non-derivative that are either
designated in this category or
not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment
within 12 months of the balance sheet
date.

Purchases and sales of investments are
recognised on trade-date - the date on
which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the investments. Investments are
initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Investments are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risk and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
and held-to-maturity investments are
carried at amortised cost using effective
interest method. Realised and unrealised
gains and losses arising from changes
in the fair value of the financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss category
are included in the consolidated income
statement in the year in which they arise.
Unrealised gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of non-monetary
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FENF+-A=1—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

securities classified as available-for-sale
financial assets are recognised in equity.
When securities classified as available-for-
sale financial assets are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments
are included in the consolidated income
statement as gains or losses from
investments in securities.

The fair values of quoted investments are
based on current bid prices. If the market
for a financial asset is not active (and for
unlisted securities), the Group establishes
the fair value by using valuation techniques.
These include the use of recent arm’s
length transactions, reference to other
instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis, and option
pricing models refined to reflect the issuer’s
specific circumstances.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. In the case of equity
securities classified as available-for-sale
financial assets, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered in determining
whether the securities are impaired. If any
such evidence exists for available-for-
sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
- measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in
the consolidated income statement - is
removed from equity and recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated
income statement on equity instruments
are not reversed through the consolidated
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
effective interest rate. The amount of the
provision is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, other
short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less,
and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities
in the consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FENF+-A=1—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Transaction costs are incremental costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition,
issue or disposal of a financial asset
or financial liability, including fees and
commissions paid to agents, advisers,
brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory
agencies and securities exchanges, and
transfer taxes and duties. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

(q) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases
when the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets concerned to the
Group. Assets held under finance leases
are capitalised at the lower of fair values
or the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding liability to the
lessor, net of interest charges, is included in
the consolidated balance sheet as a finance
lease obligation. Finance costs are charged
to the consolidated income statement over
the term of the relevant lease so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of charge
on the remaining balance of the obligations
for each accounting period.

All other leases are classified as operating
leases and the annual rentals are charged
to the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the relevant lease
term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r) Translation of foreign currencies

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the functional
currency). The financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong Dollars.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying
cash flow hedges or qualifying net
investment hedges.

Translation differences on non-
monetary items, such as equity
instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Transaction
difference on non-monetary items,
such as equities classified as available-
for-sale financial assets, are included
in the fair value reserve in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r) Translation of foreign currencies
(Continued)

(iii) Group companies

The results and financial positions
of all the Group entities (none
of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as
follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each
balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(b) income and expenses for each
income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences
are recognised as a separate
component of equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability for
bonuses when there is a contractual
obligation and the amount can be
estimated reliably.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme
contribution scheme, the assets of
which are held in separate trustee-
administered funds.

is a defined

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme
at 5% to 10% of the employees’
relevant income, with the employees’
contributions subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$20,000.
The Group’s contributions to the MPF
Scheme are expensed as incurred. 5%
of relevant income vests immediately
upon the completion of service in
the relevant service period, while the
remaining portion vests in accordance
with the MPF Scheme’s vesting scales.
Where employees leave the MPF
Scheme prior to the full vesting of the
employer’s contributions, the amount
of forfeited contributions is used to
reduce the contributions payable by
the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Employee benefits (Continued)
(iii) Share-based compensation

The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of
the share options and restricted share
awards is recognised as an expense in
the consolidated income statement.

The total amount to be expensed over
the vesting period is determined with
reference to the fair value of the share
options and restricted share awards
granted. At each balance sheet date,
the Company revises its estimates
of the number of share options that
are expected to become exercisable
and the number of restricted share
awards that become vested. It
recognises the impact of the revision
of original estimates, if any, in the
consolidated income statement, and
a corresponding adjustment to equity
in the consolidated balance sheet will
be made over the remaining vesting
periods.

The proceeds received, net of any
directly attributable transaction costs,
are credited to share capital and share
premium accounts when the share
options are exercised and when the
restricted share awards are vested.

(t) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the
construction of any qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use. Other borrowing costs
are expensed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Contingent liabilities and contingent

assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation
that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also
be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it
is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably.
A contingent liability is not recognised
but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow occurs so
that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset
that arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. A contingent
asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FENF+-A=1—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related
if one party has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to
be related if they are subject to common
control or common significant influences.
A transaction is considered to be a related
party transaction when there is a transfer
of resources or obligations between related
parties.

(w) Financial guarantees issued and
provisions

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee
(being the transaction price, unless the fair
value can otherwise be reliably estimated)
is initially recognised as deferred income
within creditors and accruals. Where
consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

34

4.

TESHEERBEA)

(v)

(w)

BEALXRS

fid — A RRE D B RS 5 —
50 BAME B R S R E R
BEEASED RESTRRAREE
B il EZHEEFHILABDEKR
T8 ATHREREHE - HER
FEEREEATEHER  BIZE
REWARBEALRS °

BB HBER

MBERREREGRXBA(EER
ADERBITARERA)ZTE
EEH UBRESEARBEERE
ARBEZRER T ERREBPERFT
ERHOBERZEH -

fig A SR 3 KB B AR - BRI
NFPEERZER  RIFZAF
EHREBEEMMGET)ROBIREN
AR BT BR XA VIR FE UL A o i
£ 8% 1T 5% ¥ R B U ER B AT W BRAR
B ZREARBEARZEEE
MAKRBEBRMTTER - HAEEA
B AR E T WE - R AE
RAEAE I WA B o BB B X R
BRERAER o

Annual Report 2008 3R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2008

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Financial

(x)

guarantees issued and

provisions (Continued)

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a present obligation as a result of a
past event, and it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle that obligations.
Provisions are measured at the directors’
best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the obligation at the balance sheet
date, and are discounted to present value
where the effect is material.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component
of the Group that is engaged either in
providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or
services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which
is subject to risks and rewards that are
different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal
financial reporting system, the Group has
chosen business segment information as the
primary reporting format and geographical
segment information as the secondary
reporting format for the purposes of these
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FENF+-A=1—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x) Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment revenue, expenses, results,
assets and liabilities include items directly
attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis to that segment. Segment revenue,
expenses, assets, and liabilities are
determined before intra-group balances and
intragroup transactions are eliminated as
part of the consolidation process, except to
the extent that such intra-group balances
and transactions are between group entities
within a single segment. Inter-segment
pricing is based on similar terms as those
available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total
cost incurred during the period to acquire
segment assets (both tangible and
intangible) that are expected to be used for
more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise income
and expenses of the Group which cannot be
reasonably allocated to a specific business
segment. The interest benefit of the capital
of the Group is also included as unallocated
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y) Disposal groups classified as held for
sale and discontinued operations

(i)

Disposal groups classified as held
for sale

A disposal group is classified as held
for sale if it is highly probable that
its carrying amount will be recovered
through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use and the
disposal group is available for sale in
its present condition. A disposal group
is a group of assets to be disposed
of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly
associated with those assets that will
be transferred in the transaction.

Immediately before classification as
held for sale, the measurement of all
individual assets and liabilities in a
disposal group is brought up-to-date
in accordance with the accounting
policies before the classification. Then,
on initial classification as held for
sale and until disposal, the disposal
group, is recognised at the lower of
its carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.
Impairment losses on initial
classification as held for sale, and
on subsequent remeasurement while
held for sale, are recognised in the
consolidated income statement. As
long as a disposal group is classified
as held for sale, the non-current asset
is not depreciated or amortised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y) Disposal groups classified as held
for sale and discontinued operations
(Continued)

(ii) Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a
component of the Group’s business,
the operations and cash flows of which
can be clearly distinguished from the
rest of the Group and which represents
a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or
is part of a single co-ordinated plan
to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of
operation, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued
operation occurs upon disposal or
when the operation meets the criteria
to be classified as held for sale (as
referred to in (i) above), if earlier. It
also occurs when the operation is
abandoned.

Where an operation is classified
as discontinued, a single amount
is presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement, which
comprises:

—  the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss
recognised on the measurement
to fair value less costs to sell, or
on the disposal, of the assets or
disposal group(s) constituting the
discontinued operation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(a) Impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets

The Group performs annual tests on whether
there has been impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in notes 4(j) and
4(k) to the consolidated financial statements
respectively. The recoverable amounts
of cash-generating units are determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates
and assumptions made by management on
the future operation of the business, pre-
tax discount rates, and other assumptions
underlying the value-in-use calculations.
Information about the assumptions and the
risk factors on impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets is stated in notes 18 and
19 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Trade debtors

The aged debt profile of trade debtors is
reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that
the trade debtor balances are collectible
and follow up actions are promptly carried
out if the agreed credit periods have been
exceeded. However, from time to time, the
Group may experience delays in collection.
Where recoverability of trade debtor
balances is called into doubts, specific
provisions for impairments are made based
on credit status of the customers, the aged
analysis of the trade receivable balances
and write-off history. Certain receivables
may be initially identified as collectible,
yet subsequently become uncollectible
and result in a subsequent write-off of the
related receivables to the consolidated
income statement. Changes in the
collectibility of trade receivables for which
provisions are not made could affect our
results of operations.

(c) Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group
estimates the useful lives of property, plant
and equipment in order to determine the
amount of depreciation expenses to be
recorded. The useful lives are estimated
at the time the assets are acquired based
on historical experience, the expected
usage, wear and tear of the assets, as well
as technical obsolescence arising from
changes in the market demands or service
output of the assets. The Group also
performs annual reviews on whether the
assumptions made on useful lives continue
to be valid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d) Estimate of fair values of investment

(e)

properties

As described in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements, the investment
properties were revalued at the balance
sheet date on market value basis by
reference to an independent professional
valuation. Such valuation was based on
certain assumptions, which are subject to
uncertainty and might materially differ from
the actual results. In making the judgement,
the Group considers information from
current prices in an active market for similar
properties and uses assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions at each
balance sheet date.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes
in numerous jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the
worldwide provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS

Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is
currently organised into five operating divisions,
namely distribution, sub-licensing, sales of
financial assets, property investment and
provision of management services. These
divisions are the basis on which the Group
reports its primary segment information.

Principal activities are as follows:

(i) Distribution

817 RTEY
(ii) Sub-licensing

BREITE EREE
(iii) Sales of financial assets

HESHEE

(iv) Property investment

MELRE

%5 BRBEDH

E 3 Sk

REEMS  AKERKIAHRIT H
RETHE HESTREE WXERER
RHEEERBALELENMN - 2EETD
RIBZEHFIZHREEEZIHEH -

EFRFZBUOT

Distribution of films
Sub-licensing of film rights

Sales of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

SHERAFETAE

Leasing of rental properties

HEHB 2=

BMRZEMEE

(v) Provision of management services Provision of management services to concierge

RUHEEIRE

department of gaming promoters appointed by
Macau casinos

ERMBESZREZERERESRENRETERS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (Continued)

Business segments (Continued)
Segment information about these businesses for
the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 is

presented below.

Consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2008

For the year ended 31 December 2008
E-EE\FL A=t —ALEE

EXBDERIE D HB (4

EBOH(E)

BE_ZZEN\FR-_ZZLHF+-A
St-HLEFERBAZEXEB 22 AE
2T o

BHE_ZZEN\F+-A=1+—RHLEFE
ZEakEk

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BALEEER
Provision of
Sub- financial management Property
Distribution licensing services  Unallocated Total  investment Consolidated
BT ERROE RECHEE RMAEERY AIE Azt ES &4

HK$°000 HK$'000

HK$000 HK§000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK§000

FET FER 7L FEL Z-7 7L AR

Turnover 22 - 2,000 18,215 - 19,253 20,826 40,079
Segment results before RITERAGERERE

impairment loss recognised 2 A%

in respect of goodwill - 2,000 17,122 - 18,760 (60,395) (41,635)
Impairment loss recognised i EEIHEFESE

respect of goodwill - - - (101,965) - (101,965) (40,382) (142,347)
Segment results Gk - 2,000 (84,243) - (83,205) (100,777) (183,982)
Unallocated corporate income  RAEEERA 2,421 1,257 3,684
Unallocated corporate AAREERS

expenses (26,462) (25177) (51,639)
Loss from operations REEE (107,240) (124,697) (231,937)
Finance costs HEER (3,350) (25,289) (28,639)
Loss before taxation RERER (110,590) (149,986) (260,576)
Taxation #E 13,854 22,214 36,068
Loss for the year KEERR (96,736) (121,772) (224,508)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

6.

94

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 6.

SEGMENTS (Continued)

Business segments (Continued)

Consolidated balance sheet at 31 December

EBOH(E)

EBoWRIBED I E)

R-ZBENF+ZA=T-BZKREH

2008 ERER
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
FEEERE BALEEER
Sales of  Provision of
Sub- financial management Property
Distribution licensing assets services  Unallocated Total  investment Consolidated
BT BEROE HECHEE RUEERE L) h EL &R
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FEr FET FET FEr FET FEr FEr 7T
Assets BE
Segment assets PEE 9,559 2,019 - 461,301 1,989 474,868 1,049,412 1,524,280
Liabilities 8k
Segment liabilities AHEE (722) - - (54,823) (146,700) (202,245) (427,612) (629,857

Other segment information for the year ended

BE_Z2ZEN\F+-A=+T—-RLEFE

31 December 2008 2 H 7 EE R
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
FELEER BALEEER
Sales of  Provision of
Sub- financial management Property
Distribution licensing assets services  Unallocated Total  investment Consolidated
BT BRROE HECHEE ROEERR L) Eh EL &4
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FiEr FEn TEr FiEr FEn TEn FiEn FEr
Capital expenditures BRER 864 - - - 376 1,240 63,359 64,599
Depreciation g 566 - - - 125 691 4,342 5,033
Impairment loss recognised ~ BEZHEFE - - - 101,965 - 101,965 40,382 142,347
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\FF+-A=1+—HIFE

6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 6. ¥¥-FRMWEDI(E)
SEGMENTS (Continued)

Business segments (Continued) XKD (E
Consolidated income statement for the year BE-—ZEE+tHE+-_H=1+—HILEE
ended 31 December 2007 (Restated) ZixaWEEz(ES)
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
RREEXR BALEEER
Sales of  Provision of
Sub- financial  management Property
Distribution licensing assets services  Unallocated Total investment Consolidated
¥ ERUGE HECREE RUBERR AR hy nERE Ga

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T T FEn FEn Fiér Tz Fiér

Turnover X8 = = 1122 = = 1122 2917 10,639

Segment results before ATCEIHEHERE
impairment loss recognised 22 £

in respect of goodwill - - 1,122 - - 1,122 45,912 53,634
Impairment loss recognised in  BERHEHEFE

respect of goodwill - - - - - - (37,828) (37,828)
Segment results THEE - - 1722 - - 1722 8,084 15,806
Unallocated corporate income  RAEEERA 2,922 107,239 110,161
Unallocated corporate AABEERR

expenses (55,393) (12,230) (67,623)
(Loss)/profit from operations &4 (§5i8) /& (44,749) 103,093 58,344
Finance costs HEER - (19,494) (19,494)
(Loss)/profit before taxation  Bxial (B5ig) /&7 (44,749) 83,599 38,850
Taxation Lid] - (13,156) (13,156)
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(FR) /%A (44,749) 70,443 25,604
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (Continued)

6.

96

Business segments (Continued)

Consolidated balance sheet at 31 December
2007 (Restated)

6. EBIMRMUED W E)

EBOH(E)

R-ZBELtHF+-A=1+-BHZKREHE
EREBEXR(EY)

Continuing operations

Discontinued
operations
BRLEEER

Sub-
licensing

ERRORE

HK$'000
T

Sales of  Provision of
financial  management
assets services

HESHEE RUCEEY

HK$'000 HK$'000
T Fér

Property
investment
HK$7000
FEr

Assets
Segment assets

1,032,536

Liabilities
Segment liabilities

(2,026)

(458,823)

Other segment information for the year ended
31 December 2007 (Restated)

BE_Z2TLtF+T-A=T—-RLEE

Sub-
licensing

BRRAORE

HK$'000
2

Capital expenditures
Depreciation
Impairment loss recognised

ZEMSBWER(ES)

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations

FESERH BRLEEER
Sales of  Provision of

financial  management Property

assets services investment

HESHEE RUEERE MERE

HK$'000 HK$7000 HK$'000

FEr F#r F#r

- - 121,856

- - 595

- - 37,828
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (Continued)

Geographical segments

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong,
Macau and The People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). The following table provides an analysis
of the Group’s turnover and segment results by
geographical market, irrespective of the origin of
goods and services.

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\FF+-A=1+—HIFE

EBoWRIBED I E)

& 5 B

REEBFEEBUAEE  BRFIRBE
ARKMB(THE] - TRAAEER
HWENSEE D 2 EXEBR D BEE(T®
EmRRBHIRM) 254 o

Turnover Segment results
2008 2007 2008 2007
—FEN\FE —ETtF ZFIN\F —TTtH
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(B3) (E3)
Continuing operations  HERKE XK
Hong Kong 5B 1,038 7,722 1,038 7,722
Macau R 18,215 — (84,243) =
Discontinued operations B2#& 1k &&
X%
The PRC FE 20,826 2,917 (100,777) 8,084
40,079 10,639 (183,982) 15,806
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

6.

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (Continued)

Geographical segments (Continued)
The following is an analysis of the segment
assets, segment liabilities, capital expenditures

and depreciation, by geographical area in which
the assets and liabilities located:

Segment assets

Segment liabilities

EBoWRIBED I E)

HE D (E)

UTAREEREBBMEHESI N ZS
MEE - PHEEBE - EXBRIRITED
A

Capital expenditures Depreciation

AHEE AHEE BRI il
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Z2R\F “ETLE -TE\F CERLE CRWNF CEILE CIR\E CEELE
HK$000  HK$'000 HKS$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000
TEr AT Tér FEx Tér TEr TEr AT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (E51) (E51) (E51)
Continuing FESEXK
operations
Hong Kong BA 13,548 509,916 147,422 31,627 1,240 11 691 563
Macau i Ji 461,320 - 54,823 2,026 - - - -
Discontinued B LR
operations £5%
The PRC HE 1,049,412 1,032,536 427,612 458,823 63,359 121,856 4,342 595
1,524,280 1,542,452 629,857 492,476 64,599 121,867 5,033 1,158
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7. TURNOVER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
E-EE\FL A=t —ALEE

—E 3t

Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Consolidated
BELEXR BRALEEXR k)
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“BE\§ CZERLE  ZBEN\§ CETLF CBBN\f CBELFE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TAr AT AT FET AT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E351) (E51) (E5)
Sub-licensing of ERESRTE
film rights 2,000 - - 2,000 -
Sales of financial HERLTEFA
assets at fair value BERZ
through profit or SHEE  FH
loss, net (note) (Hzt) (962) 7,722 - - (962) 7,722
Rental income HelA - - 20,826 2,917 20,826 2,917
Service fee income RHEEHA 18,215 - - 18,215 -
19,253 7,722 20,826 2,917 40,079 10,639
Note: Kt

The Group’s proceeds from the sales of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and the corresponding
carrying amounts together with the transaction costs
were separated into “Turnover” and “Cost of sales”
respectively, in prior year’s consolidated income
statement. During the current year, the Group changed
its presentation, as in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, it is more appropriate to present the gains
or losses from the sales of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss in “Turnover” on a net basis.

An analysis of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss is as follows:

RBEFEZFEWRER  AEEKIMA258H
ERATVEFABERZERNEEZMERER
HERAEERRS MAREXE IRIHENK
R -HRESAREFREERIEXEIZS
HERATFEFABRSRZEMEENEEZR
BEABEE BMAKRERAFEERHZ5A
Fo

ZATEHARRRZSRABEZHHMT :

2008 2007
—EE\F —BELE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
(Restated)
(E31)
Sales of financial assets at fair value through HERATFEFTABRRZ
profit or loss EREE 2,627 35,822
Cost of financial assets at fair value through BRAFEFABRERZESH
profit or loss BEZRA (3,589) (28,100)
(962) 7,722
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

7. TURNOVER (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

To conform with the current year’s presentation, the
carrying amounts of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss disposed of together with the
transaction costs for the year ended 31 December 2007
of HK$28,100,000 have been offset against turnover,
resulting in the decreases in turnover and cost of sales
for that year by the same amount. These changes do not
have any impact on the results of the Group in respect of

the prior years.

8. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

7. EXB(#H)

BiaE ()

ABREAFEEZRENAN BHEZZZLHE
+ZA=+—HLEEE fIEERAFETA
ERX2eREERAEERRE RAGH
28,100,000 8 T E ¥£5  BEHZEFEZ
EHEENHERARDEESHE - ZEEFHE K
EERBEEE 2EBTEIM

8. HtzmRHEAMKA

S48 o

=

Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Consolidated
BELEER BRILEEER k)
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ZEE\E  ZEELF  CEE\F  CERLE  ZBEI\F  CE3tE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TEr Tén &7 TEn TEr Tén
(Restated) (Restated)
(E3) (E31)
Other revenue Hita
Dividend income from  #EATE AB#
financial assets at KLEREEL
fair value through BREWA
profit or loss - 78 - - - 78
Interest income on RITEHZ
bank deposits FEKBA 2,427 2,836 1,212 154 3,639 2,990
Sundry income HBIEWA - 8 45 129 45 137
2,427 2,922 1,257 283 3,684 3,205
Other income HittA
Waiver of secured HeEERRT
bank loan interest EXRFIE - = - 106,956 - 106,956
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

9. (LOSS)/PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

(Loss)/profit from operations has been arrived

after charging:

For the year ended 31 December 2008
E-EE\FL A=t —ALEE

RN, (B8)

B (FB) SR MR TSR E ¢

Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Consolidated
BELEER REJE S L)
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ZEEN\E CEBLE ZBR\E  ZERLE BRI\ IR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FA7T FE1 TA7n FE1 FA7r FEn
(Restated) (Restated)
(&350) :27)
Auditors’ remuneration %< 600 600 - - 600 600
Depreciation of n% - BER
property, plant and  REBHE
equipment 691 563 4,342 595 5,033 1,158
Impairment loss ERAEZEK
recognised in RERESE
respect of trade
receivables - 9 - - - 9
Loss on disposal of ~ HENE  BEK
property, plant and R ZEB
equipment 3 3 - = 3 3
Share-based payment  FEERIFRH L
expenses in respect  RAF AR
of consultancy ZBX
services 985 6,370 - - 985 6,370
Operating lease rentals HEY¥2
in respect of rented  E&AKEE
premises 1,640 2,186 174 129 1,814 2,315
Staff costs including B IFA
directors’ (BREEEHS)
remuneration
— Salaries — % 6,808 6,787 4,615 1,562 11,423 8,349
— Contributions — BINER
to retirement HE3
benefits scheme 143 114 - - 143 114
— Share-based — LRHER
payment Xtz B%
expenses 2,623 25,912 - — 2,623 25,912
9,574 32,813 4,615 1,562 14,189 34,375
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 8 M58 R

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. MEE A
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Consolidated
BRALERR BRLEEXR i)
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“BE\E  CERLE “BE\E ZERLE “BE\E ZERLE
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000
AT TEx Tér FAT FET Tér
(Restated) (Restated)
27)) (E31)
Interest expense on AR AEREH
secured bank loan EEZEER
wholly repayable RITER
within five years FIERX - - 25,289 19,494 25,289 19,494
Imputed interest TRRER
expense on HERIE
convertible notes 3,350 - - - 3,350 -
3,350 - 25,289 19,494 28,639 19,494
11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 11. EEWE

The board of directors of the Company is
currently composed of two executive directors
and three independent non-executive directors.
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11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The aggregate amount of emoluments payable
to the directors of the Company during the
year was HK$360,000 (2007: HK$360,000).
The remuneration of each director for the
years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 is as

below:—

11.

For the year ended 31 December 2008
E-EE\FL A=t —ALEE

EEMEE)

ERENFAANEESIMERES
360,000 T (= ZFZ £ ¥ : 360,000
i) HE-BENFR-FFLE+=
BA=t+-RLEE SEESZHFHN
T

Contributions to
Salaries and retirement Share-based
Fees bonuses benefits scheme  payment expenses Total
ne HEREA BRI B NRGF A2 2HX &t
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ZRENE ZEREE CEENEF CETLF CRENF CERLF CERNF CEREE BRI DERLE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of director 3.2 Fiér FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr
Mr. Heung Wah Keung BIERRE - = - = - = - = - =
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, ~ BEIEZE
Tiffany - - - - - - - - - -
Mr. Tang Chak Lam, ~ EE#%EE
Gilbert 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul ~ fIEELAE 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
Mr. Lien Wai Hung BRELE 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
360 360 - - - - - - 360 360

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the

Group to the directors as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office. None of the directors has

waived any emoluments during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The emoluments paid to the five highest paid

12. ZTEBREHFAL

FRERNFEAEERLERSHFA LT ZM

individuals of the Group during the year were as £ :
follow:
2008 2007
—EENE —EELHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries and other allowances Frek MR, 4,699 4,773
Contributions to retirement benefits R @EFIFHEIHK
scheme 48 48
Share-based payment expenses UM EX Xz 376 7,289
5,123 12,110

None of the five highest paid individuals of the
Group was a director of the Company (2007: nil).

Their emoluments were within the following

bands:

BEZMENFUTEE :

AEEIEBEFALTPLEEAT 2
EH(=TTLE M)

Number of employees

EEAH
2008 2007
—2E/\F —BEtF
Nil - HK$1,000,000 £%1,000,000 T 3 —
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7t £ 1,500,000 7 1 —
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 £ 2,000,000 58 7t — 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 T £ 2,500,000 7T 1 &

HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 - HK$4,000,000

2,500,001 8 L £ 3,000,000 % 7T -
3,000,001 # 7T £ 3,500,000 # 7T -
3,500,001 % T £ 4,000,000 7 7T -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

13. TAXATION

For the year ended 31 December 2008
E-EE\FL A=t —ALEE

13. HIE

Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Consolidated
BRALERR BRLEEXR i)
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ST\ CBRLE  CEET\F  SERLE CIINF CERLE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000
AT TEx Tér T FET Tér
(Restated) (Restated)
27)) (E31)
Current tax credit REHEER (13,854) - - - (13,854) -
Deferred taxation EEBE A 30)
(note 30) - - (22,214) 13,156 (22,214) 13,156
(13,854) - (22,214) 13,156 (36,068) 13,156

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax, the PRC
Corporate Income Tax or Macao Complementary
Profits Tax has been made for the year ended
31 December 2008 (2007: nil) as the Group
either has no estimated assessable profits or
its estimated assessable profits are wholly
absorbed by the estimated tax losses brought
forward.

On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative
Council passed the Revenue Bill 2008 which
includes reduction in corporate profits tax
rate by 1% to 16.5% effective from the year
of assessment 2008/2009. Accordingly, Hong
Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profits of certain
subsidiaries in Hong Kong for the year ended 31
December 2008 (2007: 17.5%).
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2

R-ZZZENFARAZTAXB  BEBUE
BRE-_ZZNFRAKIER &
- B=FBN/ Z2REARVEE
B EEMNEREFHEI%E16.5% °
Bt B=2—_FENF+-A=+—H
ILEE  BRENGHIOIRE RS THE
RE 2 ERBUERZ 16.5% 5 H (=
ZTLF 1 17.5%) °
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FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

13. TAXATION (Continued)

On 16 March 2007, the PRC promulgated the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax by Order No. 63 of the
President of the PRC, which will change the tax
rate from 33% to 25% for certain subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008. Deferred tax balance has
been adjusted to reflect the tax rates that are
expected to apply to respective years when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled.

An objection was lodged by Ocean Shores
Licensing Limited (“OSLL”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, against
the estimated assessments for the years of
assessment from 1994/1995 to 2000/2001 in
relation to the offshore claims of sub-licensing
income. Provision for taxation of HK$22,238,000
had been made in the Company’s 2007 audited
consolidated financial statements. In February
2008, OSLL reached a compromise settlement
on the estimated assessments with the Inland
Revenue Department for settling the estimated
tax liabilities in an aggregate amount of
HK$12,021,000, which included a surcharge
of HK$3,637,000. Therefore, a tax credit of
HK$13,854,000 was recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2008.
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13.

BIE ()

RZZZELF=ZR+H HEUFTEH
FRCEREMPEARKNBE RS
Fﬁ SHE B-ZEENF-A-BEH
HETHEBRARZHEMI3%HR25% °
EERBRARCTHEAR - URRAHE
Fﬁﬁ“ﬁ%ﬁ PREENFEEBFEZH

RDF 2EEHE R T Ocean Shores
Licensing Limited ([ OSLL]) 7k & % 3
TRERAZE=RRER 8 —hAam/
—ANEBEE-ZET —ETZ-RHUEF
EzhstdBRERE - AATER=
SR FERERGREVBRERPED
22,238,000 B T2 HIEEE HR_-ZZ
NEZ R » OSLLEEHI i 3 17 i iR R (4 5t
B LB A 12,021,000 T 2 K
EEBRK Eqﬂ’aﬁs 637 0005%7‘:2
MmE - it REZE ENE+Z
B=+t—HBILEEECHER 13854000,%
TRZBEIE R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
E-EE\FL A=t —ALEE

13. TAXATION (Continued) 13. BIE(#)
The taxation for the year can be reconciled AEERBEUERASKRERR ZBRBA
to the (loss)/profit before taxation per the (B518) & FIEERNT ¢

consolidated income statement as follows:

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated
RREERE BRLEERH LG
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
)t “ERE “RINE TRtk )t TRtk

HK$'000 %  HKS'000 % HK$'000 %  HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HKS'000 %
T B4 TEr  BAM TR Afy TEn Bfk  TEr BAM FEn AW

(Restated) (Restated)
(E3)) (E3))
(Loss)/profit before BRI ()
taxation /& (110,590) (44.749) (149,986) 83,599 (260,576) 38,850

Taxation at income  RFF&HiH=

tax rate of 16.5%  16.5% (=

(2007: 175%)  EEtE:

17.5% )3t
EZHE (1846 165 (18%1) 5 (M) 165 14630 5 (4299 165  67%9 175

Effect o different ~ WEfTHE

tax rates of EfElE

subsidiaries AATER

operating i other %7 Z&

jisditions o9 01 9 () (924 62 1% U3 (oM 39 Ny 307
Tax effect of income fERERERRH

that is not taxable  RERT

indetermining ~~ BHhAZ

taxable profits hinge (2,229) 20 (187) 04 (200) 04 (9.622) (115 (2,429) 0.9 (9,809) (25.2)
Utiisation of tax ~ BB A

losses previously 228

not recognised 5 - - - - - - (7o) @1 -
Tax effect of FAEERH

expenses that are AR

not deductible  HEXHZ

ndetermining  HHYE

700 (55

taxable profits 17,684 (16.0) 5,996 (13.3) 1319 (4.9) 624 0.7 25063 (9.7) 6,620 17.0
Taxlosses not yet  KEEs2Ht

wopised BB 3610 (B2 200 (5 282 (9 1B 02 4 (H) oM 55
Tax refund £ (13,854) 12.5 - - - - - - (13,854) 53 - -

Deferred tax ELHE
(credi)/charge  (#£)/
b - - = - (22,249) 148 13156 187 (22,214) 86 13,156 339

Taxation (credt) ~ AEEHE
chargeforthe  (#%)/
year % (13,854) 12.5 - - (22,214) 14.8 13,156 157 (36,008 13.8 13,156 39
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per
share is based on the (loss)/profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company for the years
ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during these years.

The calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/
earnings per share is based on the following

14. SR (EE) BF

SREAS(BE) BANEBE-ZE
NER-BE+F+-A=+—HALF
EAD T RAERA AR (R5E) A
REZFENDRTBERNETY
Bt o

SREARBEER) BRDIRET
IBIEETE

data:
2008 2007
—EEBN\F —EETLHF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FETT FET
(Restated)
(&%)
(Loss)/profit for the year RATREREAEBEREE
attributable to equity holders (&18) %R
of the Company
From continuing operations REFELSEER (96,736) (44,749)
From discontinued operations RECKRILEEER (127,772) 70,443
From continuing and discontinued REFELERDKILE
operations RS T (224,508) 25,694
2008 2007
—BENF —EELHF
’000 ‘000
TR TR
(Restated)
(E%)
Number of ordinary shares TEREE
Weighted average number of FRERTEBER
ordinary shares in issue InE 9
during the year 195,187 102,941
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14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue for the purposes of basic and diluted
(loss)/earnings per share has been adjusted to
take into the effect of the share consolidations
that became effective on 21 May 2007 and 2 May
2008. Details of the share consolidations are
set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the years
ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 were the
same as the basic (loss)/earnings per share.
The Company’s outstanding share options
and convertible notes were not included in
the calculation of diluted (loss)/earnings per
share because the effects of the conversion of
the Company’s outstanding share options and
convertible notes were anti-dilutive.

DIVIDEND

The directors of the Company do not recommend
the payment of any dividend for the year ended
31 December 2008 (2007: nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
E-EE\FL A=t —ALEE

14. SR (EE) BR &)

15.

R EERERARBF(ER) BT
FFAZERTEERMNETLSHEEFEE
AE U ARZZEZELFRA=-1+—
BR-ZZEZNFEEA_BHERZROE
e ROSHZFBARGESH
B RMIEE26 ©

BE_ZZEN\ER-_ZFEZELFE+=A
St-HLEFE2EREF(ESR) &
MESREX(BER) BRNER - AR
RBEARBZRITEBRERTRER
BEARBEER  RAESREE(E
8)/BREYBEEARRRZRITERS
RERAJRKRERE -

[ g=\
RAAREBEFARBREBE_ZTZTN

F+-A=+—HLEFEZFARKRE(=Z
TLFE) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FENF+-A=1—HIFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. ¥ - BERRE

The Group AEE
Furniture
Leasehold Office Motor and
improvements equipment vehicles fixtures Total
BENxEE BAERME AE BRREE @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FEr FEn FEn FEn
Cost R
At 1 January 2007 RIEE+E-F-H 2,381 761 1,633 1,098 5,873
Additions FE - 4,907 - - 4,907
Disposals mE - (562) (376) - (938)
Exchange alignments ERA% - 8 - - 8
At 31 December 2007 and ~ R=BEtE+=A
1 January 2008 =T-AR-EENE
-A-H 2,381 5,114 1,257 1,098 9,850
Additions NE 1,074 20,510 813 - 22,397
Disposals k= = 2) - (5) (7)
Exchange alignments ENAE - 290 - - 290
Transfer to assets of disposal EHENEABELEZ
group classified as held WEARIEE Wi 25)
for sale (note 25) (709) (25,752) = = (26,461)
At 31 December 2008 RZ2BNE
+ZB=+-H 2,746 160 2,070 1,093 6,069
Accumulated depreciation ~ EifiE
At 1 January 2007 RIBEtE-F-H 1,307 477 956 665 3,405
Charged for the year rEEER 358 608 121 65 1,158
Elimination on disposals HERHHE - (423) (292) = (715)
Exchange alignments ENAE - 2 - - 2
At 31 December 2007 and ~ R=BEtE+=A
1 January 2008 ST-AR-EENE
-A-H 1,665 664 791 730 3,850
Charged for the year EEER 439 4,283 256 55 5,033
Elimination on disposals HERLE - (1) - (3) 4
Exchange alignments ENAE - 75 - - 75
Transfer to assets of disposal EHZNEABELEY
group classified as held WERREE M2 25)
for sale (note 25) (79) (4,961) - - (5,040)
At 31 December 2008 RZBENE
+=A=+-H 2,025 60 1,047 782 3,914
Net book value EEEE
At 31 December 2008 RZBENE
+ZA=+-H 721 100 1,023 311 2,155
At 31 December 2007 RoEStE
+=A=1+-H 716 4,450 466 368 6,000
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FREMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
E-EE\FL A=t —AULEE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. BEWYE
The Group AEE
2008 2007
—BENF —EELF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
At 1 January R—HA—H 887,450 678,000
Additions NE 36,495 101,347
Transfer from inventories HBEREFE 5,707 15,613
Fair value changes recognised in the SEWBEXRTECERZ
consolidated income statement N EEE (74,045) 43,853
Exchange alignment [E MR 51,353 48,637
Transfer to assets of disposal group EEEZESEAZ{EHEZ
classified as held for sale (note 25)  HEARIEE (17 25) (906,960) -
At 31 December R+=—BA=+—H - 887,450

The fair values of the Group’s investment
properties as at 31 December 2008 and 2007
have been arrived at on the basis of the
valuations carried out on these dates by Grant
Sherman Appraisal Limited and DTZ Debenham
Tie Leung Limited respectively. Grant Sherman
Appraisal Limited and DTZ Debenham Tie
Leung Limited, both are independent firms of
professional valuers not connected with the
Group, are members of the Hong Kong Institute
of Valuers and have appropriate qualifications
and recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations.
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FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FENF+-A=1—HIFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair value of investment properties shown
above comprise:

. REWE(4E)

LR ENE N TFEELRE

The Group AEE
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FETT FET

Outside Hong Kong, held on: BEAUMEE  BRTHARX
58

Long-term leases REIELN - 887,450

All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purpose are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted
for as investment properties.

At 31 December 2008, the investment properties
of the Group were located in the PRC and
re-classified as assets of disposal group
classified as held for sale. Certain of investment
properties with a fair value of approximately
HK$853,835,000 have been pledged to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group (2007:
HK$ 852,081,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2008

BE_ZEZEN\F+A=1+—HILFE
18. GOODWILL 18. &
The Group
rEE
HK$’000
FET
Cost R
At 1 January 2007, 31 December 2007 and R=TZE+tF—H— EI > —ggti
1 January 2008 +ZA=+—HR=ZEENF
—HA—H 117,412
Acquisition of subsidiaries (notes a and b) WEKIEB AT (KiFakb) 102,891
At 31 December 2008 R=-BEENF+Z=ZA=1+—H 220,303
Accumulated impairment 2 RE
At 1 January 2007 R-ZEZtF—-HF—H 40,128
Impairment loss recognised 2R EEE 37,828
At 31 December 2007 and 1 January 2008 R-ZZE+FF+_A=+—HEK=-Z
ZENF—HA—H 77,956
Impairment loss recognised EERREEE 142,347
At 31 December 2008 R=-BENF+=A=+—H 220,303
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2008 R=-BENF+=A=+—H -
At 31 December 2007 R=-ZZBLtF+=-A=+—H 39,456
Notes: Kt
(a) On 29 May 2008, the Group further acquired 3.3% () R-ZBENERA=-+NA REHEE—

of the registered capital of tTHBEEERBEBRLD
7 (“Beijing Shama”). The total cash consideration
of the acquisition was approximately HK$4,824,000.
As a result, a goodwill of approximately HK$926,000
was arisen from this acquisition.

On 29 August 2008, the Group acquired a 100%
of the issued share capital of Rich Daily Group
Limited (“Rich Daily”). The total consideration of
the acquisition at fair value was approximately
HK$504,000,000, which was settled by cash and
issuance of convertible notes (note 35). As a result,
a goodwill of approximately HK$101,965,000 was
arisen from the acquisition of Rich Daily.
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SWELESEEHERZEERAT (1
EWIE ) EMEARZ3.3%  WEEEE
£ REHNH4,824,0008 7T ° FHItk - X
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RZZEENFNA=Z+THAA > ZXEEK
B Rich Daily Group Limited ([Rich
Daily) E TR A 2100% ° &2 F &
T Wi 2 2K {EX % 504,000,000 %
T UBRERBTURREE AR ZM
(KEE35) o At » W Rich Daily B4
$249101,965,0008 7T °
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FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

18. GOODWILL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Goodwill arising from the acquisitions of Shinhan-
Golden Faith International Development Limited
(“Shinhan-Golden”) and its subsidiaries and
Rich Daily has been allocated to the business
segments of property investment and provision of
management services respectively, which are the
cash-generating units (“CGUs”).

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are
determined from value-in-use calculations. One
of the key assumptions for the value-in-use
calculations is the discount rates. Discount rates of
16.08% per annum (2007: 15.43% per annum) for
property investment and 17.68% per annum (2007:
N/A) for provision of management services were
applied in the value-in-use models which use cash
flow projections based on the financial forecasts
approved by the directors of the Company. The
valuers estimate discount rates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risk specific to the CGUs.

Impairment of goodwill

During the years ended 31 December 2008 and
2007, the directors of the Company reassessed
the recoverable amounts of the CGUs with
reference to the valuations performed by Grant
Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent
firm of professional valuers, and determined
that the impairment losses in respect of
goodwill of approximately HK$142,347,000 and
HK$37,828,000 were recognised respectively.
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18. BE (&)

Kiat (&) -

(c)

[A Y8 Shinhan-Golden Faith International
Development Limited ([Shinhan-
Golden ) R H & A A K& Rich Daily fE
ECHEECERREIHMEMERERREMR
BERE2EKII  ZEPBABESE
ABEN(BEEEEM]) -

BeEEBNzARESENZRERAEERE
FEME - FRAEESFEZEP—EHIE
BERANER - EAEEABEER 2
REARYWEREMS S F16.083% (=
ZELE FF15.43%) RARIEHEER
BMEEF1768% (ZZEZEtF (F8
B) RAKBAQXAESHEZIHERE
BIEH 2 RS RETER o HEL AR AT
WERMEFINEE > RFEAITRERREEE
2EEEERESELENZEERBRZ
5 R ©

BB R E

REE-TBNER-FBLE+=A
St-ALEER ESRBUEX
b (B 87 47 P AP A5 IR D AR AT 2
E#% ARDEECEHNTBERLE

SENzANEESR TEEHEZ

BB & B 2 B £142,347,000 T K&
37,828,000 8 T E B °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
E-EE\FL A=t —ALEE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BIEEE
The Group
rEE
HK$’000
FET
Cost R
At 1 January 2007, 31 December 2007 and R-ZZT+tHF—HF—H
1 January 2008 —EELHF+ZA=+—-HK
—EZN\&—-HF—H -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35) WeiE — R B A B (A7aE 35) 456,857
At 31 December 2008 R-ZBZBNF+Z-A=+—H 456,857
Accumulated amortisation Rt #d
At 1 January 2007, 31 December 2007, R=_BE+HFE—H—H -
1 January 2008 and 31 December 2008 —EE2tLF+ZA=+—H"
—EEN\F-F—-HK
—EEN\F+ZA=1t—H -
Carrying amounts BREE
At 31 December 2008 REZEBENFE+Z=ZHA=+—H 456,857
At 31 December 2007 R-ZBELF+=-A=+—H —
The intangible assets represent the carrying |ILEEIERich Daily s B R ZEZRE
amounts of services agreements held by Rich B-BEEEERERAUEHEE  FEESH
Daily. The intangible assets have indefinite useful ey o
lives and no amortisation been made.
The directors of the Company reassessed the E2RBIYEXMGEMTPETEERIFE
recoverable amounts of the services agreements TZEEE AAREBCEFIERBHZE
with reference to the valuation performed by ZAKREEE IBEELRBEFECER
Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent o

firm of professional valuers, and determined that
no impairment loss is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

19.

20.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 19. B EE (&)
The recoverable amounts of the services REHEz2AREEERSREAEBEE
agreements were assessed by reference to AEFIAFG - EAEEABERSX 2
value-in-use calculation. A discount rate of TREABF17.68%  RAKEBEARLR
17.68% per annum was applied in the value- AEEMECHEEIAMELEZRERE
in-use model which uses cash flow projections FER FIREZHBEATF - FEFER
based on financial forecasts approved by the FIREEz2RERER IR ZER
directors of the Company covering a ten-year ERfAE FERZBREENERER
period. There are a number of assumptions and ZH, ZEYFRHAAEEEEEREH
estimates involved for the preparation of the FEHMmENBREMEE - TANBKRE
cash flow projections for the period covered by EREA BERMETEEBZHER
the forecast. Key assumptions include gross B o
margin and growth rate which are determined
by the management of the Group based on its
expectation for market development. The discount
rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the industry.
INVENTORIES 20. &
The Group
rEE
2008 2007
—BENF —EZ2LHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Properties held for sale FIEHE 2 - 32,783

All inventories were carried at cost during the
years.

Properties held for sale solely comprised of
certain units of apartments held by Beijing
Shama of which sale and purchase agreements
were entered into and full considerations have
been received by Beijing Shama in respect of
these units of apartments (note 32). However,
the transfers of legal titles of these units of
apartments have not yet been completed at the
date of approval of the financial statements.
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FIBEEEIRFREEATIR

EREHEZMEBRERILTTERE
BERETABEN  LERDBERESE
NBEMNFTLEEHRLC WIEHNA
B(FEES2) - AT BRERZEFLEEN
ZEEMBRE RN IEZS M B RRK
ZBTEK °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

20. INVENTORIES (Continued)

At 31 December 2008, properties held for sale
of the Group were re-classified as assets of
disposal group classified as held for sale (note

25).

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES

For the year ended 31 December 2008
E-EE\FL A=t —ALEE

20. FE#)
R-ZZZENF+ZA=+t—8 ' A5H

ZEHEHENXER 2 BRI BRFE
HEzHEARIEE (fEE25) -

21. EZEWAE

The Group
rEE
2008 2007
—ET)N\F —ETtHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
0-30 days ZZE30H 4,443 215
31-60 days 31£60H - 429
61-90 days 61290 H - 107
Over 90 days 90 H L E 2,396 503
6,839 1,254
Less: Impairment loss recognised in & ‘EHERAZE S EWHRE
respect of trade receivables BEEE - (9)
6,839 1,245

Notes:

(a) The following is an aged analysis of the trade

(@) REHEBR BEZERUBRINKREBER

receivables net of impairment loss at the balance ZERBOMWNT -
sheet dates:
The Group
rEE

2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
0-30 days Z=£230H 4,443 213
31-60 days 31£60H - 424
61-90 days 61290H - 106
Over 90 days 90 HU E 2,396 502
6,839 1,245

The Group allows an average credit period of 90

days to its customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FENF+-A=1—HIFE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

118

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but
not impaired are as follows:

21. EZBWREE)
iz (&)

(b) EBEMERMEERSEKRRIEZERE

The Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$°000 HK$°000

FHET FET
0-30 days Z=230H - =
31-60 days 31260H - =
61-90 days 61290 H - =
Over 90 days 90 HE £ 2,396 502
2,396 502

At 31 December 2008, trade receivables of
approximately HK$2,396,000 (2007: HK$502,000)
were past due but not impaired. The Group is in
negotiation with those customers for settlement
of these debts. The directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no impairment is necessary in
respect of these balances as there had not been
a significant change in credit quality on these
balances.

Aging of impaired trade receivables:

R-ZEENF+ZA=+—H EZE
UL FX 18 49 2,396,00058 T(=Z B Z £ F :
502,000 t) AEBBHERRBE K&
ErFEEZEREFREEZSEBETE
He ARBAESZRABNZEEBZEE
BEUWHEHBREREE  HBARNZSE
ERIE R E R -

(c) EREEZEWRIIAZERE :

The Group
AEE
2008 2007
=t LS S
HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

0-30 days - 2
31-60 days - 5
61-90 days - 1
Over 90 days - 1
- 9

The carrying amounts of trade receivables
approximate to their fair values.

(d) EBZEWFEZREEREAFERS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o &
FEMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2008
E_EE)\FTZA=1—HILEE
22. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 22, & ANRERAEMERRE
RECEIVABLES
The Group The Company
rEE NN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENFE ZEBTLHE Z—BENE —E2ZTLH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FEr
Deposits e 827 2,529 - 1,350
Prepayments FRE 15 25,207 - 550
Other receivables Hit EUIR 785 4,094 - 350
1,627 31,830 - 2,250
The carrying amounts of the deposits, Re BAREREMERRIEZERE
prepayments and other receivables approximate BEREAFERS -
to their fair values.
23. TAX PREPAYMENTS 23. ANBIE
The Group
rEE
2008 2007
—BENF —EZ2LHF
HK$°000 HK$°000 L
FET FET =
i
it
Tax reserve certificates fEF = - 3,055 ﬁ(
Tax paid in advance IR - 9,065 &
18k
©
- 12,120 2
E
—
(2]
Tax reserve certificates borne interest rates BE-ZTtHE+-A=+—BuLtHEE 2
ranged from 2.33% to 2.68% per annum for the BB EUERENF233EE2.68EH =
year ended 31 December 2007. B o ;
E
(2]
(0]
g
IS
&n
©
C
5
o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008

B2 _TEN\F+-A=1+—HIFE
24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. BERBETEEY
(a) Balance sheet (a) EEEEBXR
The Group The Company
AEH RAFE
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENFE ZEELHE ZEENF ZEZTLH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FEx FET FE
Deposits with banks RITREM SRR
and other financial EE
institutions - 463,391 — 463,391
Cash and bank balances H&RiR{TEE 7,218 68,005 278 26,147
Cash and cash BEeRBEEEEY
equivalents 7,218 531,396 278 489,538
The effective interest rates of deposits with BE-_ZZ/N\E+-A=+—HLHF
banks and other financial institutions for the B BT REMEREBER CERF
year ended 31 December 2008 ranged from MNENFOSEZISE(ZEZLFE .
0.5% to 3.5% per annum (2007: 2.2% to FRE22EE43E) °
4.3% per annum).

(b) Cash and cash equivalents at the end (b) ZREBEEREXRTIRUBREER
of the financial years as shown in the EHZHRERBRESEYTEES
consolidated cash flow statement can EEABEXR2EREEYHERNOT
be reconciled to the related items in the
consolidated balance sheet as follows:

The Group The Company
AEH P N/NE
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\F ZETtFE ZEENF ZEZTLH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Cash and cash RERRESEEY
equivalents
Included in cash and FTAGEEESRE
cash equivalents as per KR ZHER
consolidated balance HEeEEEY
sheet 7,218 531,396 278 489,538
Included in assets SFADEASEN
of disposal group EZHEARE
classified as held for E (Kt 25)
sale (note 25) 82,152 — - -
89,370 531,396 278 489,538
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Continued)

(c) The carrying amounts of cash and

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\FF+-A=1—HIFE

24. RERBEEEN &)

(c) RERBITEBZEAEATIE

bank balances are denominated in the BB
following currencies:
The Group The Company
AEE RATF
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE ZETtF ZTENE —ZTE2LHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE FET FET FET
Renminbi AREE 82,136 39,119 - —
United States of America 37t
Dollars 36 36 - —
Hong Kong Dollars BT 7,198 492,241 278 489,538
89,370 531,396 278 489,538

The conversion of Renminbi denominated
balances into foreign currencies is subject
to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC

Government.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

25. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF

DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS

On 26 November 2008, Riche (BVI) Limited
(“Riche”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) with
Mega Shell Services Limited (“Mega Shell”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Golife Concepts
Holdings Limited (“Golife”), relating to the sale
of the entire issued share capital of Shinhan-
Golden and World East Investments Limited,
both of them are wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company, to Mega Shell at a consideration
of HK$211,466,310 (subject to adjustment).
Pursuant to the Agreement, the consideration
would be settled by Mega Shell in the following
manner: (a) HK$5,581,713 (subject to adjustment)
to be paid in cash; (b) HK$5,884,597 by
procuring Golife to allot and issue 11,769,194
new shares in Golife (adjusted for the capital
reorganisation of Golife as completed on 6 April
2009) credited as fully paid at an issue price
of HK$0.50 per share; (c) HK$100,000,000 by
procuring Golife to issue a convertible bond; and
(d) HK$100,000,000 by procuring Golife to issue
a promissory note.

The Agreement was approved by the
shareholders at the special general meeting of
the Company held on 12 February 2009 and
completed on 8 April 2009.
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25. PEABFHEZHEARNEER

BEUAREBRLEREER

R-ZZBENFEF+—AZ=Z+7B ' KXAF
2 & & K B 2 dRiche (BVI) Limited
(TRiche )R EFBEEZERERAR(E
MiE )z 2 EKE DX T Mega Shell
Services Limited ([Mega Shelll) &T
YERHGEEHRE(HBE]D  REE
B Mega Shell HEXRAT 22 EMH
B A B Shinhan-Golden & World East
Investments Limited Z & 2B & 3% 17 I
K KB B211,466,31058 Tt (H] F 7
) REFEWZE  KEKHMega Shell
BTHAEREZAS : (a) 5,581,713 B (A
THRE)EURE X (b) 5884,597
BLTEBRREEENESRKROS0E T ZHE
TEB R 1T11,769,194 R A BR %I
EHRE2ENEIRD(RENER =
ZEZENFNARARHAZRAEAFET
FE) X5 (c) 100,000,000 jTiEB
REBFNERTURRKRES T &(d)
100,000,000 TE B R EEMEZIT
SN E-S-2

BRERAQDAR-ZEZNF_A+Z
ARTZRREBA RS LERRALE
YR=ZZZFNFHANBREK -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

25. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF

DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED

OPERATIONS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2008
E-EE\FL A=t —ALEE

25. PEABFHECHEARNEER

BEUARERIEREXRK#E)

Assets of disposal group classified as held PEABELHEZHEAREE
for sale
2008 2007
—EENE —EE2LF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Property, plant and equipment M- BERRZE 21,421 —
Investment properties BEYE 906,960 =
Inventories FE 28,969 —
Trade receivables B ERAIE 212 =
Deposits, prepayments and other B FAREREM
receivables FE U FR I8 9,698 =
Cash and cash equivalents BERBESZEEY 82,152 =
1,049,412 -
Liabilities of disposal group classified as held PEARBELEZHEARERE
for sale
2008 2007
—E2ENE —EELHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Accruals and other payables FEst & AR 2t FRIE 13,961 —
Receipts in advance S E O] 39,470 —
Secured bank loan BIRFRITER 319,418 —
Deferred taxation IR FE T 18 54,763 —
427,612 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

25. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF 25.

PERBEHECHEARNEER

DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED

OPERATIONS (Continued)

BEUARERIEREXRK#E)

Analysis of the results of discontinued BARIEREEE 2 EBEINT
operations
2008 2007
—BENF —EELF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Turnover BT 20,826 2,917
Cost of sales HE A (7,176) (858)
Gross profit EF 13,650 2,059
Other revenue H{ib Uz 1,257 283
Other income H A - 106,956
Fair value changes on investment REMEZ RN FELE
properties (74,045) 43,853
Impairment loss recognised in ERERAEBERERE
respect of goodwill (40,382) (37,828)
Administrative expenses THAX (25,177) (12,230)
(Loss)/profit from discontinued RECKRIELEEKL >
operations (B518), & Fl (124,697) 103,093
Finance costs mMEEMA (25,289) (19,494)
(Loss)/profit before taxation from RECKIEEEER >
discontinued operations BRELAT (B518) & F (149,986) 83,599
Taxation 18 22,214 (13,156)
(Loss)/profit for the year from RECKRIEEEEK Y
discontinued operations REE (EE)E5R (127,772) 70,443

Analysis of the cash flows from discontinued

ERIECEXRBCRSREDN

operations
2008 2007
—EENE —EFELHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Operating cash flows REPERE 160,660 218,036
Investing cash flows REEERE (63,073) (121,857)
Financing cash flows MEEESRE (53,891) 51,787
43,696 147,966
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FREMBRERMEE

26. SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company

during the years were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2008
E-EE\FL A=t —ALEE

26. |RA&

RRBFRZRAEBMNT :

Number of shares Share capital

Lk I
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENE “EELE “EENE “EELE
’000 000 HK$°000 HK$’000
& & FEx FiEx
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each ~ SREMB0.01EL (CZEELE &
(2007: HK$0.10 each) REE0.10%T) EBR
Authorised: EE
At 1 January R-BA—-H 6,000,000 20,000,000 600,000 200,000
Share consolidation (note a) B E6 (Hita) - (18,000,000) - -
Increase in authorised share BIEERE (Hiib)
capital (note b) - 4,000,000 - 400,000
Capital reorganisation REEA
— share consolidation (note ¢ (i) — REAEH (Hite () (5,400,000) - - -
— capital reduction (note ¢ (i) — BRAKIE (Hie (i) - - (594,000) —
Increase in authorised share EmEERK (fza)
capital (note d) 1,400,000 - 14,000 -
At 31 December R+=B=1-H 2,000,000 6,000,000 20,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid: BEIRAR:
At 1 January R-B—H 1,951,860 6,484,340 195,186 64,843 ’E
Share consolidation (note a) B3 &bt (Hfita) - (7,294,680 - - B
Capital reorganisation hrg4 ﬁ(
— share consolidation (note ¢ (i) — RBEH (Wie () (1,756,683) - - = R
— capital reduction (note ¢ (i) — RARHIR (e (i) - = (193,235) - %
Issuance of new shares (note e) BTHRG (Hite) - 1,296,860 - 12,969 #
Exercise of share options (note f)  {TEBMRIE (H/32r) - 324,000 - 3,240 ®
Issuance of new shares (note g) BITHRG (Witg) - 155,620 - 15,562 £
Issuance of new shares (note h) BITHRG (i) - 162,100 - 16,210 -
Issuance of new shares (note i) BITHRG (W) - 173,000 - 17,300 Z
Issuance of new shares (note j) BITARG (W) - 650,620 - 65,062 2
Exercise of share options (note k) {TEEEMRIE (k) 10 - 1 - T
[
(0]
At 31 December R+=A=t-H 195,187 1,951,860 1,952 195,186 *%
E
IS
o
g
i
o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

126

On 18 May 2007, the shareholders approved the
share consolidation on the basis of every ten shares
of HK$0.01 each in the issued and unissued share
capital of the Company into one share of HK$0.10
each in the issued and unissued share capital of the
Company. The share consolidation became effective
on 21 May 2007.

On 11 December 2007, the shareholders approved
the increase in the authorised share capital of
the Company from HK$200,000,000, divided
into 2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each, to
HK$600,000,000, divided into 6,000,000,000 shares
of HK$0.10 each, by the creation of an additional
4,000,000,000 new shares of HK$0.10 each.

On 30 April 2008, the shareholders approved the
following changes to the capital of the Company
(the “Capital Reorganisation”):

(i) the share consolidation on the basis of every
ten issued and unissued shares of HK$0.10
each in the share capital of the Company
into one share of HK$1.00 each in the share
capital of the Company;

(i) immediate after completion of the share
consolidation in (i) above, the reduction of
the nominal value of all issued and unissued
shares of HK$1.00 each in the share capital of
the Company from HK$1.00 each to HK$0.01
each; and

(iii) the cancellation of the entire amount of
HK$813,058,000 standing to the credit of
the share premium account of the Company
at 31 December 2007 by transferring such
credit amount to the contributed surplus
account of the Company and the application
of HK$518,374,000 in the contributed surplus
account to set off against the accumulated
losses of the Company of HK$518,374,000 at
31 December 2006 entirely.

The Capital Reorganisation became effective on 2
May 2008.

26. A (4#)

(b)

()

REZZ2LFRA+NA - RRUERS
a6t BERBEB TRAQDBAEHTRAR
BITRATESREEO0.01BTZRME G
B—REDACBITRABITREAFER
HE010BITZRG - ROESHN=ZZ
tHERA=-t+—H&EHK-

R-ZZZLF+-A+—B  BREHES
8 #2 3% 4,000,000,000 f & & M f50.10
BT Z2HFRMD  BEAQBZEERANE
200,000,000 Jt(% %2,000,000,000
BREREEIOE T ZRM)EME
600,000,000 7% Jt (2 % 6,000,000,000 A%
SREE0.108 T ZKRM) °

REZZBZNFMA=1+H - RRHAEUT
RRBRAZE (TRAZEA]) :

i) ROEH BEZXRFIREATE
THREREECIOETZERTR
RETRODEHE -READARA
HEREE1.0087TZKRH

(i) BHELA(GzZBROEHTERE &
ARATRRAPEREE1.008TZ
FIEERTRARTRO ZEER
F,R1.00/8 TH R ZEEKR0.018
T R

(iiiy HFHEARBAR-ZEZLE+-A
S+-AzBRAEEREZMER
£ %8813,058,00058 T+ A X A
GZERSEERZEAQATAZER
BRE TEABEHABRBRERZ
518,374,000/ T A =2 EHE AR D
AR=ZEEXRF+=ZA=+—-HZ
R3HE58518,374,00058 7T °

RABEAN-—ZZNFHEA-HERK -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

(h)

On 19 December 2008, the shareholders approved
the increase in the authorised share capital
of the Company from HK$6,000,000, divided
into 600,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each, to
HK$20,000,000, divided into 2,000,000,000 shares
of HK$0.01 each, by the creation of an additional
1,400,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each.

On 30 March 2007, 1,296,860,000 new shares
of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued to
Classical Statute Limited (“CSL”), a substantial
shareholder of the Company, at a price of HK$0.04
per share pursuant to the placing and subscription
agreements dated 19 March 2007. The net proceeds
of approximately HK$50,500,000 were intended
to be used for financing possible diversified
investment of the Group and general working
capital of the Group.

On 17 May 2007, the Company allotted and
issued 324,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each
pursuant to the exercise of share options granted
to the Group’s employees. The exercise price was
HK$0.047 per share.

On 31 May 2007, 155,620,000 new shares of
HK$0.10 each were allotted and issued at a
price of HK$0.55 per share. The net proceeds of
approximately HK$83,300,000 were intended to
be used for investment in other relevant business
opportunities that may arise in the future and for
general working capital of the Group.

On 11 July 2007, 162,100,000 new shares of
HK$0.10 each were allotted and issued at a price
of HK$0.50 per share by way of placing of new
shares under general mandate. The net proceeds
of approximately HK$78,900,000 were intended
to be used for expansion of the Group’s property
investment business.

On 7 August 2007, 173,000,000 new share of
HK$0.10 each were allotted and issued at a price
of HK$0.83 per share by way of top-up placing.
The net proceeds of approximately HK$139,800,000
were intended to be used for expansion of the
Group’s property investment business.
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BE—FEN\FF+-A=1+—HIFE

26. A (4#)

BiaE ()

(d

(e)

(h)

RZZEFENF+ZA+NAB  BREMESE
iB 1% 3% 1,400,000,000 f% &= % M {E0.01
BL2HBRM BEAQAZEERANEH
6,000,000 38 7t (% £ 600,000,000 i% 5 IR
E{E0.01 8T 2 )& ZE 20,000,000
# (% £2,000,000,000 % & K @ &
0.01BTZB’14) °

RZZBEELF=A=+H BRER=-ZZ
tE=ZA+NBTIZERERZFE S
EEBR0MEBLTZEEAARTAZEE
f% 3 Classical Statute Limited ([CSL]J)
B 2 & 3 171,296,860,000 i% & iR M &
0LOTBTZHBRM  IBREREN
50,500,000 & Jt & F 1F 3 15 7= & @ 7] &g
ZERNERERAELSEEzZ—REEE
%o

R-ZZEZFELFRA+ER AQAFAEEF
AEERECERERITEMBRE R BT
324,000,000 iz 3 BR E{E 0.01 /8 T 2 37 B¢
o TEEESR0.047 8T -

R-ZFEELEFRA=1+—0 EEKR0.55
7B JT 2 A% Bl % & 817 155,620,000 IR &
REEO0.108B T 2 H D ° FTISRIBFEE
#783,300,000 % Jt #i fE % & R H b 4§ 2k
AREHE s EERRE ARER 2 —REE

R-ZEZtFtHA+—H RBRE-—REZE
DEREHBK MO 2 ARNIEER0.508 T2
B % il 3% &% 3% 17 162,100,000 R & R |
E0.10B T 2B - FIBREFHEY
78,900,000 B T AEREZ RSB 2 W%
BEEK -

R-ZZ+tFENRAtH UWEEAFRE
A RNIRETR0.83 BT 2 ERE K T
173,000,000 B S AR EI{E 0.10 8 T Z #T IR
3 - Fr18 7B F 5849 139,800,000 7% T ##
AERZAEEZEREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008

BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

1)

(k)

128

On 18 December 2007, 650,619,987 new shares
of HK$0.10 were issued at a price of HK$0.30
per share by way of open offer to the qualifying
shareholders on the basis of one offer share for
every two existing shares. The net proceeds of
approximately HK$189,000,000 were intended to
be used for the proposed acquisition of a 100%
equity interest in Modern Vision (Asia) Limited as
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
23 July 2007 and circular dated 5 November 2007
and general working capital of the Group.

On 8 April 2008, the Company allotted and issued
10,009 new shares of HK$0.10 each pursuant to the
exercise of share options granted to an employee
of the Group. The exercise price was HK$0.1146 per
share.

26. BRA(#&)

BiaE ()

(0]

R-ZFEZELF+=-A+N\H AR
EZ2FAREBROOBTZEXREDE
B % IR R 3 17650,619,987 I 5 IR [ &
0108 TZH IR EERBRMREE
RODEE —REERD - IBREBFEL
189,000,000 TR AEA QAR =—ZZ=
tFEFLtA-T=AHBEZAMRE=-ZZF Lt
F+—RAEBHRZBRAEEZZWE
Modern Vision (Asia) Limited 2 100%
RAERUR BEAEE 2 -—REEE
%o

R-ZZEENFOANE AAAEEF
AEEREECERERITEMB R R BT
10,009 E R EE0.108 T 2 FH KRB °
TEEASRO0.11468 T -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

27. RESERVES

The Company

For the year ended 31 December 2008
E-EE\FL A=t —ALEE

27. #1E
P N

Share-based Convertible

Share Contributed payment notes Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
NRGAFS  TRREE
R EE BARY Itk it ZHEE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FiEx FEx FiEx FEx FiEx FiEx
(note)
(#iit)
At 1 January 2007 R=BELE
—-R—H 380,626 163,456 - - (518,374) 25,708
Issuance of new shares TR % 416,604 - - - - 416,604
Share-based payment ~ MURGF
expenses Tf2H% - - 32,282 - = 32,282
Exercise of share options {78 i & 15,828 - (3,840) - — 11,988
Net loss for the year ~ AEEERTFE - - - - (223,636) (223,636)
At 31 December 2007 R=ZEZt&E
and 1 January 2008 TZA=+-HR
“ERN\E
—-R—H 813,058 163,456 28,442 — (742,010) 262,946
Capital reorganisation ~ RAEA (##26)
(note 26)
— capital reduction  — RAHIH - 193,235 - - - 193,035
— share premium — HZHEROEE
cancellation (813,058) 813,058 - - - - 'E
— set-off accumulated — REEABEHH m
losses against HETER o
contributed ﬂ
surplus = (518,374) = = 518,374 = I
Share-based payment ~ MURAH fid
expenses Tf2HE% - - 3,608 - = 3,608 E;
Issuance of convertible E{TAHRREHE 2
notes — equity - RERS E
component - - - 41,547 - 41,547 %
Deferred tax recognised 222 ELEHE - - - (6,855) = (6,855) 2
Net loss for the year ~ AFEFEFE - - - — (279,498) (279,498) s
T
At 31 December 2008 R=ZENE E
+=A=1+-H - 651,375 32,050 34,692 (503,134) 214,983 %
:
IS
9]
©
£
i
o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

27. RESERVES (Continued)

Note:

The contributed surplus account of the Company
represents the difference between the underlying net
assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company
as at the date of the group reorganisation and the
nominal amount of the Company’s share capital issued
as consideration for the acquisition as well as the net
amount transferred from the share capital, share premium
account and to accumulated losses account pursuant
to a special resolution passed at the special general
meetings held on 22 August 2003 and 30 April 2008.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus account of the
Company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus, if:

(i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.
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27. f#fE(#)

BRER-—ZZE=FNA-+-RAK=ZZN\FHE
A=1THETZRREFNARE LEBZRHIRE
R ADFAZEHBBREA DR AREZKHE
ARREEEARMZAEEE FEEARD AME
REBREZARTRAZEAERBRA - RE
BEREREZN SRR FHEZEME -

BREBRE-NAN-—FREE(EEF) - AAF
ZEHBHBREREATOIK o R HRTHER - 8
RRBFEERFRS R EDHEBHBERTE L
DK

() ARARFIRIIKEBEZEBEEIHAE
& =R

iy ARAEEVLZREERZENEEE -
ERITRARROEER2AM
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

28. SECURED BANK LOAN

For the year ended 31 December 2008
E-EE\FL A=t —ALEE

28. FEARITER

The Group
rEH
2008 2007
—BENF —EFLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Secured bank loan BIRFRITER - 329,018
The maturity of the secured FiEEPRRITER 2
bank loan is as follows: HEAZOT :
Within one year —FR - 27,533
Between one and two years —EWE - 64,308
Between two and five years MEZRF - 237,177
Over five years BEELE - —
- 329,018
Less: Amount due within one year Bt B REBEET 2R —
shown under current liabilities FREHFZRIE - (27,533)
— 301,485

The secured bank loan is denominated in
Renminbi.

The secured bank loan bears interest at rates
ranging from 6.53% to 8.14% per annum for
the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007:
6.16% to 7.35% per annum). The secured
bank loan is secured by certain of the Group’s
investment properties in the PRC with fair
value of approximately HK853,835,000 (2007:
HK$852,081,000) and the Group’s bank
deposits of approximately HK$23,470,000
(2007: HK$16,832,000). The carrying amount of
the secured bank loan approximates to its fair
value, which has been re-classified as liabilities
of disposal group classified as held for sale as
referred to note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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BEMBITERDUAREIIE -

BE-ZEZEN\F+-A=+—HLHF
E X BEARTEFRIZFFNERCS3ESR
BIABEB(ZZEZELHF : FFX6.16EZE
7.35E)5HE c BEFW|ITERIIUDQF
E# % 853,835,000 8 T(ZEF L F :
852,081,000 jt) 2 & T A KB EH KR
EYERAEBIRITERLN 23,470,000
BR(ZEZELF :16,832,0008 ) I
Re BEARTERZEHABEHERAEQATF
BEE BEARTERCEHIES
FEBBBERMTS 2 BASEL
ECHEARER -

131

China Star Investment Holdings Limited FE £ EGR AT




BN EEHEED PoHwT SBUIP|OH JUSWISOAU| JBIS BUIYD

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 29 August 2008, the Company issued two
convertible notes with a principal amount of
HK$72,000,000 each to Well Will Investment
Limited. Each of the convertible notes bears
interest at a rate of 5% per annum and carries
a right to convert the principal amount into
shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of
the Company at an initial conversion price of
HK$1.60 per share (subject to adjustment). The
effective interest rate of the liability component
of each of the convertible notes is 9.75% per
annum.

The movement of the liability component of
the convertible notes during the year ended 31
December 2008 is as follows:

29. TJARERE

R-ZZZENEFNA=-TNB  XAFM
Well Will Investment Limited 317w/ {3
K€ %872,000,000/8 T 2 AR EE o
AEREESERFMNESEFE I
MR IRYL LBRESRKR1.608T
(IFRAB)BASELBARDARK
FEREECOIEB T ZRM - AR
ZEESEEEBIZERNERFRE

9.75& o

THEREEEENINEE-_ZZTNF
ToA=T-RLEFERZEBHNOT :

The Group and
the Company

AEERART

2008 2007

—BENF —EZLHF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

At 1 January B—A—H - =

Proceeds of issue BATASRIE 144,000 -

Equity component IRES D (41,547) —
Liability component at the date of REBEITEHHZEERS

issue 102,453 —

Imputed interest expense for the year XEE 2 HEREH X 3,350 —

At 31 December Rt+t=BA=+—H 105,803 —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
E-EE\FL A=t —ALEE

30. DEFERRED TAXATION 30. EIEBIA

The followings are the major deferred tax
liabilities and assets recognised and movements

UITHETECRAEEHEREREE

REBEE
thereon:
The Group rEH
Revaluation
Accelerated  Estimated of
tax tax investment Convertible Intangible
depreciation losses  properties notes assets Total
MEBERE MIHBEE RENRER TRREE BYEE EH)

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET

At 1 January 2007 R=E2tE

—H—H 254 (254) 56,317 - - 56,317
Exchange alignment ~ [EX:@#Z - = 4,029 = - 4,029
Charged to consolidated H#4 KEZMB
income statement - - 13,156 - - 13,156
At 31 December 2007 R=ZEEtE+=A
and 1 January 2007 =+-HAR=%%
t#-A-H 254 (254) 73,502 - - 73,502
Acquisition of a Wi —EHE LR
subsidiary (note 35) (Hi£35) - = = = 54,823 54,823
Issuance of convertible E{TABRREE
notes - - - 6,855 - 6,855
Exchange alignment ~ [EX:@#Z - = 3,475 = - 3475
Credit to consolidated s A& WERK
income statement - - (22,214) - - (22,214)
Transfer to liabilities ~ ERZ A EAZEN
of disposal group EZHEARIBE
classified as held (Bt 25)
for sale (note 25) - - (54,763) - - (54,763)
At 31 December 2008 R=ZFENF+=A
=+-H 254 (254) - 6,855 54,823 61,678
The Company P /NI
Convertible
notes
TREZE
HK$°000
FEm
At 1 January 2007, 31 R-EE+F-A-
December 2007 and B Z5%tF
1 January 2008 +ZA=t-HR
ZEEN\E-A-
Issuance of convertible Z{TAEREE
notes 6,855
At 31 December 2008 R=ZEENE+=A
=+-H 6,855
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

30. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

31.

The Group

At 31 December 2008, the Group had unused
estimated tax losses of approximately
HK$205,791,000 (2007: HK$21,112,000)
available for offsetting against future taxable
profits. A deferred tax asset of approximately
HK$254,000 (2007: HK$254,000) has been
recognised. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the remaining balance
of approximately HK$37,557,000 (2007:
HK$6,778,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams.

30. ELEBIIR (&)
REH

EA—%%)\EJr—HEJr—E K&
B & #205,791,000/8 t(= & & +
% :21,112,000/8 7t ) 2 KRB AL 5T
KEBUMHKEARERB SR O
254,000 (= & & t £ : 254,000
BLI)IZELEBEEECERI - B
RABEETHEZER 8 &R
¥ #937,557,0008 T(=Z 2 T + & :
6,778,000 & T) EFRELHIBEE ©

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES . BotERARHEMEBEMARKIE
The Group The Company

biN- 3L | PN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENFE —EELF —EENF —EZLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Accruals FEstE A 6,571 5,646 1,080 943
Other payables Hib e RIE 26,385 6,769 - -
Tax payables B8 - 6,830 - —
32,956 19,245 1,080 943

The tax payables represented the provision
for land appreciation tax on certain units of
apartments sold by Beijing Shama prior to 2003
(note 20). According to the PRC Tax law and
regulation, 30% of land appreciation tax was
accrued in the consolidated financial statements.
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Fgﬁﬁlﬁi‘ajtawi%#_ TT = F A
EFABBEM 2 L it EHRE (M
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31.

32.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
(Continued)

At 31 December 2008, tax payables have been
re-classified as liabilities of disposal group
classified as held for sale as referred to note 25
to the consolidated financial statements.

The carrying amounts of accruals and other
payables approximate to their fair values.

RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE AND DEPOSITS
RECEIVED

31.

32.

For the year ended 31 December 2008
E-EE\FL A=t —ALEE

FEEt B AR H BN RE (&)

R-ZZBENF+ZA=+—H BB
HEEH D ERAGES M B WMRM T 257
MO BRFFEHEZHEAREE -

BAERARAEMEMNREZREAEER
NFEMREE -

AUREREWEZES

The Group
rEE

2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Receipts in advance FE U FRIE - 46,557
Trade deposits received CRESRE 477 484
477 47,041

Receipts in advance represented the full amount
of considerations received from sales of certain
units of apartment, details of which are set out in
note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
Since the transfer of legal titles of these units of
apartments have not yet been completed at the
date of the approval of the financial statements,
no revenue could be recognised for the year
and the total amount was recorded as receipts
in advance, which has been re-classified as
liabilities of disposal group classified as held for
sale as referred to note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

33. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED 33. ENBEQRNRE
COMPANIES

The Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EEN\F —EELHF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
China Star Entertainment Limited HFEEEEERAA
(“China Star”) and its subsidiaries (THEEDREKBE LA
(the “China Star Group”) THEHRELEH]) 600 701
The amounts due to the China Star Group are EATEEEEREAEKT 22K
unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no BETENES -

fixed terms of repayment.

34. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 34. MBATER
The Company
AT

2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost FELEHIRG  BERA 83,553 83,553
Impairment losses recognised EERREEE (83,553) (83,553)
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U It B A =) FRIE 1,339,161 709,207
Impairment losses recognised ERERBEEE (972,856) (704,334)
366,305 4,873
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
E_EEN\F A=t —HULFE

34. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34. MBATER (&)
The carrying amounts of the interests in MEARER 2 REERFANEHEAW
subsidiaries are reduced to their recoverable EE£%E FETKEEEDSEEHE
amounts which are determined by reference to REMBAGRMEL 2 ARREBEER
the estimation of future cash flows expected to EFUEBE °

be generated from the respective subsidiaries.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, BEMBARREAEER  RERE
interest-free and repayable on demand. The MRERBEEZE R=ZZENF+=A
carrying amounts of amounts due to subsidiaries =St—BEMANEBEARREZRAEAEHE
at 31 December 2008 approximate to their fair HAFEES -

values.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are BUHMEBARREASEIER ZERE
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed EEERE  KABEERE  NZ=
repayment terms. In the opinion of the directors ENFE+ZA=+—08 EKWHELQF
of the Company, the carrying amounts of the MEZRAEEEQAFERES -

amounts due from subsidiaries at 31 December
2008 approximate to their fair values.

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 KATZHBLARR-ZEENE+_A
December 2008 are set out as follows: =+—HZF#BWT :

Particulars of issued

Country/place of share capital/
incorporation registered capital
Name of subsidiary S AR AL BRTRE Principal activities
)= PNCIECY BxR i EMEARFFE FEXK
Beijing Jianguo Real Estate British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of Dormant
Development Co., Limited KBREZHE US$1 gme

1REE1ET2EBR

Best Season Holdings Corp. British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares of Dormant
RBELEE US$1 each Tmex
100 R BREE1ET
ZEBR

China Star Investment Holdings Limited FEEREER AT
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FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008

BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

34. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

MEARERE

Country/place of
incorporation

ot A X2
xR/t

34. MBATER (&)

Particulars of issued
share capital/
registered capital
BRITRE
AMERFE

Principal activities

TEXEK

Bluelagoon Investment
Holdings Limited

Dragon Leader Limited

Gainful Fortune Limited

Legend Rich Limited

Ocean Shores Licensing
Limited

Rich Joy Investments Limited

ERREARAT

Riche Advertising Limited

138

British Virgin Islands
REEZES

British Virgin Islands
REBEZHES

British Virgin Islands
REEZES

British Virgin Islands
REBRUEHE

British Virgin Islands
RBRUEE

Hong Kong
b

British Virgin Islands
RBRUEHE

1 ordinary share of
US$1
TREE1ZT2EBR

1 ordinary share of
US$1
1TREEI1IEZEIZEER

160,000,100 ordinary

shares of HK$1 each

160,000,100 RS KR E
E1BTzEBR

1 ordinary share of
US$1
TREE1ZT2EBR

10,000 ordinary shares

of US$1 each
10,000 X B AR E &
1EXTZEER

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

2BREREE1BTIZE
BR

1 ordinary share of
US$1
1TREEI1IEZEIZEBR

Investment holding, sales
of financial assets,
distribution of films and
sub-licensing of film
rights in the PRC

REEZR  HESRE
B RHERTEY
EREFRITR

Investment holding

REER

Holding of film rights
BRESRTE

Investment holding

REEZER

Holding of film rights
outside Hong Kong
REBLIIMEBRHEES

BITE

Dormant
g

[=Rn==)

Sales of financial assets

HELRERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2008

. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

MEARERE

Country/place of
incorporation

ot A X2
xR/t

gi—v

ENFTZA=F—HILFE

34. MBATER (&)

Particulars of issued
share capital/
registered capital
BITRE
AMERFE

Principal activities

TEXEK

Riche (BVI) Limited

Riche Distribution Limited
EXRTERATA

Riche International (Macao
Commercial Offshore)
Limited

EXER(AMBRERR®) A
NS

Riche Multi-Media Limited
EXLERERAT

Riche Pictures Limited

EXFERRLT

Riche Video Limited

Annual Report 2008 fF#f

British Virgin Islands
REEZES

Hong Kong
BB

Macau

-

Hong Kong
b

British Virgin Islands

KBRUES

Hong Kong
b

1,000 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

1,000 RBREEI1ET
ZEBR

1,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each

1,000,000 RE R HEE 1
BrzERR

1 share of
MOP100,000

1 RE BRI
100,000 7T Z B 13

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

2HEEREE1BTIZE
BR

1 ordinary share of
US$1

TREE1ZT2EBR

10 ordinary shares of
HK$100 each

20,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$100 each*

10REBREE100E T
ZEBER

20,000 Hﬁﬂﬁ@ﬁwo
BT ZEREZEE
B *

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REBREER

Sub-licensing of film
rights in Hong Kong and
sales of financial assets

REBEREZRITER
HESRERE

Distribution of films and
sub-licensing of film
rights in the PRC

RABEBTEZRERE
SR

Distribution of films and
other video features in
the PRC

RABEZTEFR
e

Hith%

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REBREER

Distribution of video
products in Hong Kong
REBBRITERER
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FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008

BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

34. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

MEARERE

Country/place of
incorporation

ot A X2
xR/t

34. MBATER (&)

Particulars of issued
share capital/
registered capital
BRITRE
AMERFE

Principal activities

TEXEK

Rich Daily Group Limited

Shinhan-Golden Faith
International Development
Limited

Stable Income Limited
BRARAF

World East Investments

Limited KRBRELHES
LFH BRI EREERAR the PRC
(formerly known as “Beijing  #HE
Jianguo Real Estate
Development Co. Ltd” AT#S
[t REEEEREER
nE])
* The non-voting deferred shares, which are not

held by the Group, carry practically no rights to

British Virgin Islands
REEZES

British Virgin Islands
RBRUEHE

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands

100 ordinary share of
US$1 each

100 REREE1ER
ZEBER

10,000,000 ordinary

shares of US$1 each

10,000,000 REREE
1XTRZEER

1,000,000 ordinary

shares of HK$1 each

1,000,000 R B R EIE 1
BTZERR

1 ordinary share of

US$1
1TREE1XTZEBR

Registered capital of

Provision of management
services

BEEERE

Investment holding in the

PRC
RABEREZR

Travel business

Distribution of films
and sub-licensing of
film rights in the PRC
through a PRC agent

ZBRPEREENPEE
TEEREREZHRT

&

Property investment in the

US$15,000,000 PRC
AfEAR RABEREME
15,000,000 % 7T
* ZEEREREEROERLEEND =

BRE ~ BEUE A E R

FXARDBREK

dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or
vote at any general meeting of Riche Video Limited
nor to participate in any distribution on winding up.

The Company directly holds the interest in Riche

(BVI) Limited. All other subsidiaries are indirectly
held by the Company.
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34.

35.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

All of the subsidiaries are wholly-owned by the
Company, except Best Season Holdings Corp.
which was 75% owned by the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year, or at any time
during the year.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 29 August 2008, the Group acquired the
entire issued share capital of Rich Daily at
an initial consideration of HK$504,000,000,
which was satisfied by the Group by paying
HK$360,000,000 in cash and issuance of
convertible notes in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$144,000,000. The amount of
goodwill arising from the acquisition was
approximately HK$101,965,000.

Annual Report 2008 fF#f

34.

35.

For the year ended 31 December 2008
E-EE\FL A=t —ALEE

BB X Rl R (4F)

FEMBARYMAADZEES
Best Season Holdings Corp. HA&EE
HEHT75%

B I B A B A AR B S AN B AR A
YEEMERER 2BBES -

WiE—EHEA R

RZZEZENFNAZ+NEB KEEK
BB Rich Daily 22 EEBITRAE » 915
X {8 & 504,000,00058 5t * A& E LL
3 € % 14360,000,0007% Tt MU K& &
17 7 & %2 %8144,000,00078 T = o #
BREEXN EREMEEZEENA
101,965,00058 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FENF+-A=1—HIFE

35. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 35. WiE—REMWE AR (#E)
(Continued)
Rich Daily entered into three services RiCQ Dailyﬁii%?ﬁﬁﬁ%?&ﬁ%éfﬁﬂ
> =5 [ $8 AT 2 —
agreements with three gaming promoters in %ﬁﬁnﬁhﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ%—@ﬁﬁﬁm
Macau for the provision of management services %: EE?}%%H&)\D&I@&;?EEEF)?EE
) , i EFTEERE 2 0.03%E ©
to their concierge departments. The service
fee income is calculated at 0.03% of the rolling
turnover generated by the gaming promoters.
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount
before Fair value Fair
combination adjustment value
SO AT EE
AR RREE NP EFAE AF{E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Intangible assets (note) BEEE (M) — 456,857 456,857
Cash and bank balances RERRITEER 1 — 1
Deferred taxation IEFEF 18 — (54,823) (54,823)
Net assets acquired B EEFE 1 402,034 402,035
Goodwill [GES 101,965
504,000
Fair value of purchase UTHAXZABER
consideration settled by: BzA¥HE:
Cash RE 360,000
Issuance of convertible BTABRRERE
notes (note) (H1E) 144,000
504,000
Net cash flow from acquisition Wig— BB AT =2
of a subsidiary: REMBFHRE -
Cash paid EfRE (360,000)
Cash and bank balances Frus BB IR & R ER1T
acquired e 1
(359,999)
Note: Htat

The fair values of the intangible assets and the
convertible notes were determined based on the
valuations performed by Grant Sherman Appraisal
Limited, an independent firm of professional valuers
and not connected with the Group, as at the date of
acquisition.
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35.

36.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2008

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
(Continued)

Details of the acquisition were disclosed in the
Company’s circular dated 30 May 2008.

During the year ended 31 December 2008,
Rich Daily contributed a profit of approximately
HK$18,215,000 to the Group since the date
of acquisition. If the acquisition had been
completed on 1 January 2008, turnover for
the year ended 31 December 2008 would have
been HK$18,215,000 and profit for the year
ended 31 December 2008 would have been
HK$18,215,000. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of turnover and results of the
Group actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2008, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.

COMMITMENTS
(a) Lease commitments
As lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of rented premises which
fall due as follows:

BE—ET)\FL=H=+—HAULEFE
35. WiE—REMB AT #E)

WEZHFBRADRANR-ZEZNFHA
=HHTBEZBERPIKE -
REBEZ-ZENF+ZA=+—-HLF

E R > Rich Daily B Yt B B LA R B
E B AER 18,215,00058 7T © fitf It
%EF—? e NF—A—HZEK > AE
ENF+ZA=1+— Emirz
M%%%%mzw@m%m mE&zE=
EENF+ZA=1T—BHLEFEZEF
##%18,215,000/8 7t - BEZEREMHR
B BRF—ERMAEEEWRER=-F
ENF-A—HERZEBRTEERE

:I'_—?

Bz ExBmREE  TTREARKE
AR o
36. #IE
(a) HAEFRE
ERABEA
REEH  AEERBERT IR

A EMETTHEELERY
ZBERBREEESHEEMOT ¢

The Group
rEH

2008 2007

—EEN\F e o -5

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Within one year —FR 845 1,856
In the second to fifth year inclusive $£=-ZHER (BIFERE

M) 473 341

1,318 2,197

Operating lease payments represented
rentals payable by the Group for its office
premises. Leases are mainly negotiated for
an average term of two years and rentals
are fixed for an average of two years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FENF+-A=1—HIFE

36. COMMITMENTS (Continued) 36. &AIE#E)
(a) Lease commitments (Continued) (a) HERIEGE)
As lessor ERHBA
At the balance sheet date, the Group had REER > AEEREBEEBEFITY
contracted with tenants for future minimum RTIHRERHzAEEREYE
lease payments under non-cancellable FTHRELERN 2 ARREES
operating leases in respect of the Group’s W
investment properties, which fall due as
follows:
The Group
rEH
2008 2007
—BENF —EE2LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Within one year —FRA 4,492 _

BN EENHEED PoHwT SBUIP|OH JUSWISOAU| JBIS BUIYD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

36. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Other commitments

(i)

At the balance sheet date, the Group
had capital commitments contracted
but not provided for in the consolidated
financial statements:

For the year ended 31 December 2008
E-EE\FL A=t —AULEE

36. AiE(#)

(b)

H &

REZER  AEBBEECIY
BARGEHBRERELBE
ZEAREIE

The Group
rEH

2008 2007

—EENE —EELHF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET
Acquisition of a 100% interest  UX#& Exceptional Gain
in the issued share capital Profits Limited & 2
of Exceptional Gain Profits TRAZ2100% xS

Limited and a sale loan REEEER - 447,000
Acquisition of a 3.3% interest WL FFE T ME R

in the registered capital of 2 3.3% fE=

Beijing Shama - 4,538
Renovation works in respect of BEREKREYHEZEET

the investment properties = 10,408 28,750

Pursuant to the undertaking letters
issued by the owners of EBEFF{t
B RAFMRAT during the year ended 31
December 2003, they will transfer their
ownership in the registered capital of
FEFFLERBR AT to the Group
at a price to be determined by the
valuers in the PRC when the laws in
the PRC allow foreign investors to own
more than 51% in the registered capital

of iR FILEREBRAT.
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RELBFFXCERAR
RFRZEBEAREBE-ZE=
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Hz &G E - fi FEDEGI AR
HEREEHER LBF T
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51% z s @ RIS E
hEMEE 2 BREREARLE
BRI ERER QA M
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

36. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Other commitments (Continued)

(iii)

Pursuant to a facility agreement dated
11 May 2007 entered into between Rich
Joy Investments Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Best Season Holdings Corp. (“Best
Season”), a 75% owned subsidiary
of the Group, Rich Joy Investments
Limited has agreed to grant Best
Season a revolving facility of up to
HK$200,000,000 for the purpose
of its business and working capital
requirements. At the balance sheet
date, Best Season had not drawn down
the facility.

37. CONTINGENCIES

At 31 December 2008, the Group has neither
material contingent assets nor liabilities.

38. BANKING FACILITIES

The Group’s secured bank loan of approximately
HK$319,418,000 (2007: HK$329,018,000) at 31
December 2008 were secured by:

(a) a legal charge over certain of the Group’s
investment properties with the fair value
of approximately HK$853,835,000 (2007:
HK$852,081,000);

(b) a legal charge over the Group’s bank
deposits with balance of approximately
HK$23,470,000 (2007: HK$16,832,000); and

(c) a corporate guarantee provided by the
Company.
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37.

38.

36. AiE(#)

(b) EAbEIE(HF)

(i) RBEXREFRIT (KD
A2 EMNE QA )HEBest
Season Holdings Corp.
(IBest Season] ' &N&EE#
B5% 2MBRARIR-FZ
tHERAT—HII L ZRmER
& BEHEREERAGCEEE
RHEBREEESNEMD
Best SeasonfX HERAEIE &
%200,000,0008 7T - R&EH
B - Best Season I #EIZEVE
& o

HARAEE

R-ZZFZENF+ZA=+—H ~5H
WEEBARKREEREE -

RITRE

R-ZZENF+ZA=+—-0 " F&H
ZBEBIRITEFL 319,418,000 T
(Z=Z L 329,018,000 7t ) J3 XA
TRIEFEEM

(a) AHKEAQF{EX853,835,0005% T
(ZZEZ+ % : 852,081,000 7T )
ZETREMEZEERT

(b) AEERITEFEMRE T4 23,470,000
BrT(ZZEZ £ F:16,832,000%
T ZEERRT R

() HAARRREMZDBER -
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39.

40.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

LITIGATIONS

At 31 December 2008 and up to the date
of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Group was not engaged in any
litigation or arbitration of material importance
and no litigation or claim of material importance
known to the directors of the Company to be
pending or threatened against any member of
the Group.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the
“Option Scheme”), was adopted on 21 January
2002 to replace the share option scheme
adopted on 19 January 2000, and will expire
on 20 January 2012. The purpose of the Option
Scheme is to enable the board of directors of
the Company to grant share options to selected
eligible persons as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the
Group.

Under the Option Scheme, the board of directors
of the Company may grant share options to the
following eligible persons:

(a) any director or proposed director, employee
or proposed employee of, or any individual
for the time being seconded to work for,
any member of the Group or any controlling
shareholder or any company controlled by a
controlling shareholder.

(b) any holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any controlling
shareholder or any company controlled by a
controlling shareholder.
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39.

40.

For the year ended 31 December 2008
E_EEN\F A=t —HULFE

any
ok

£

i

R-ZBENF+ZA=+—HREEX
REVBBRREMEAY  AEELE
BREMEEFRDRIE - MHBMEADQ A
BEfMA AEETAKEQTAHMES
ABREREERABER ©

UROBEAXN2ZRS

RARR-FEE-F-A=-+—BEMN
BRESTE(HERESS D LEHK
R-ZZEZF-AThERNZBRE
8 AR -F-——F-A=-tHE
e BRESEEERAFALTAESEN
MEESERATIRHIBREFERRE
HAEKEZEMABEEEMZERHE
# -

REBRETE > ARFESS @[
TEERATRHBRE

(@) AEEZEMKERAHEMEZEE
RER MR EERRIZES 22 F
ZREAESIREES - BEEHIR
FREE  EMEFEREHR2ZA
+ o

(b) HEAKEZEMREQAHEM
ERRRSIEMBEERRES 2
REFBITEMEBS AL -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

40 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

148

any business or joint venture partner,
contractor, agent or representative of,

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

any person of entity that provides
research, development or other
technological support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other
services to;

any supplier, producer or licensor of
films, television programmes, video
features, goods or services to;

any customer, licensee (including any
sub-licensee) or distributor of films,
television programmes, video features,
goods or services of; or

any landlord or tenant (including any
subtenant) of, any member of the
Group or any controlling shareholder or
a company controlled by a controlling
shareholder.

40. IBB AN 2R S (&)

) AKEzEMKE QAR EMERE
MR RS AR R R IZE S 2 A 7

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

BRHUME MABRFHEMRK
it < BERAEEERE - Ff - &
EYRHMBH 2272 EMA
=+ ;

BRUHEEY - E8REHE - ¥8
Em > EMSRE 2 E[AHE
B RAERREA

ERH#ER EHEHE &
HEM  EYIARB2EAE
F-ZRANBREREIMNERS
BA)REITRE =

FEAEERAL(REEAD
AHRF) > EAEBRAE
%z'ﬁé N EK@,% N 'f—%IEAER'f'%
% o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all share options to
be granted by the Company under the Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not exceed 10% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the Option Scheme. Such limit may
be refreshed by shareholders in general meeting
from time to time. The maximum number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding share options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Options Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the Company’s shares
in issue from time to time.

The maximum number of shares issued or to be
issued upon exercise of share options granted
under the Option Scheme and any share option
schemes of the Company to any eligible person
in any 12 months period shall not exceed 1%
of the Company’s shares in issue. Any further
grant in excess of such limit must be separately
approved by shareholders with such eligible
person and his associates abstaining from
voting.

Any grant of share options to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company (or any of their associates) must
be approved by independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any grant of share options
to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive directors of the Company (or
any of their associates) in excess of 0.1% of
the Company’s shares in issue and having an
aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000
in any 12 months period, is required to be
approved by shareholders in general meeting in
accordance with the Listing Rules.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
E_EEN\F A=t —HULFE

40. IBB AN 2R S (&)

HITEAQXARBEBRETERAQF
FREMBRESSSTREZAER
REMATERTZESROEE - 15
BEAEBRESTIEARQRAE R
BRM10% ° ZRFBEABEADFRBKRK
BLEREEN - BTERBEBRETS
R 75 2 AR AR E o AR A ST B R 2 P
BRITEMBEFTEZBREN T2
TZEBEROHAE  THEBBETFZA
DA HITRD30% °

AR 1218 B 8B A R 1T R 15 88 I
SFERARAEMEMERETERE
ZBREMEEFASERALRITINS
TFTROTZESROVEBE  THEEBAR
BAIEBITRD1% - E—TREBBZR
BAzBREASRRZTHE &S
BRATREBBATARERER -

BMANRESE TERTHRAEHEER
RBEREZEMBEAL)RHER
BRECASBIFHNTESHE - It
S MEFM12EARBEABARREE
BRRIBILUFATES(RREZEM
BEAL)RHEBARACSHITRG
0.1% T 4 {88 18 5,000,000 & JT 2 iE I
B ARBLETRAINRKRRASE LER
RHLE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FENF+-A=1—HIFE

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 40. ARG EAX N 2R 5 (&)

BN EENHEED PoHwT SBUIP|OH JUSWISOAU| JBIS BUIYD

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

An offer of the grant of share options must be
accepted within 30 days inclusive of the day
on which such offer is made, with a payment
of HK$1 by the grantee to the Company. The
exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the board of directors, but in
any event shall not exceed ten years from the
date of grant.

The exercise price of share options is determined
by the board of directors provided that it shall
be at least the highest of:

(a) the Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s share on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; and

(b) the average Stock Exchange closing price of
the Company’s share for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
grant, provided that the exercise price per
share shall in no event be less than the
nominal value of the Company’s share.
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40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the

Company’s share options during the year:

40.

For the year ended 31 December 2008
E-EE\FL A=t —AULEE

UBRBEAXN 2R S (&)

TREBEFAALABREZEE :

Exercise Exercise
price per price per
share before share after
completion completion Granted Exercised  Adjustment  Outstanding
Category of Date of Exercise of the Capital ~ of the Capital  Outstanding during during for the Capital at
participants grant period Reorganisation  Reorganisation at 1.1.2008 2008 2008 Reorganisation 31.12.2008
(note a) (note b) (note ¢) (note b)
R-FRNE
RaEfzrn4 fktEE  t2A=1-A
it RRESzAE  JBRAEE  W-BBNE MCBENE RORRNE fetiag AR
S82EH ebilakd (Wita) PL L (hitb) -B-REAGE b fik (Hize) (Kiitb)
Employees 8.3.2002 8.3.2002 - HK$2615B  HK$26.150%T 18,893,258 - - (17,003,932) 1,889,326
| 73.2012
Employees 13122004 13.12.2004 - HKS1.9518  HK$19.5107 21415,112 - - (24,673,601) 2,741,511
k8 122,014
Employeesand 2232007 22.3.2007 - HKSO473E  HKS4730ET 15,085,056 - - (13,531,950 1,508,506
consultants 21.3.2017
EERER
Employeesand ~ 31.5.2007  31.5.2007 - HKS0.7045  HKST.040%T 78,684,455 - - (70,816,009) 7,868,446
consultants 30.5.2017
EERER
Employeesand ~ 11.7.2007 1.7.2007 - HKS0.634ET  HK$6.3407 97,983,415 - - (68,185,073) 9,798,342
consultants 10.7.2009
EERER
Employeesand ~ 20.3.2008  20.3.2008 - HKSOA15%T  HKS$11463E7 - 127,440,000 (10,009)  (114,686,992) 12,742,999
consultants 19.3.2010
EERER
238,011,296 127,440,000 (10,009)  (328,897157) 36,544,130
Exercisable at the
end of the year
RERTE 36,544,130
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FENF+-A=1—HIFE

40 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The exercise period commenced on the date of
grant.

The exercise prices per share and the number of
share options have been adjusted for the Capital
Reorganisation that became effective on 2 May
2008 (note 26).

The closing price of the Company’s share on 2 April
2008, the date on which the share options were
exercised, was HK$1.06 (adjusted for the Capital
Reorganisation). The weighted average closing price
of the Company’s shares immediately before the
date on which the share options were exercised was
HK$1.044 (adjusted for the Capital Recrgantsation).

The fair values of the share options granted
during the years ended 31 December 2008 and
2007 were HK$3,608,000 and HK$32,282,000
respectively which had been expensed as share-
based payment expenses during the years.
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(b) EBRIOTEEREREZHECENR=ZZZN
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() A2ARHBR-"ZFZNFODA-AGEBER
BETEER) WM ER1.0658 7T (5
RABHEFHAE)  BEBRERTE
ERA  ARRRG ZNEFEHWRHESR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The fair value of the share options granted on 20
March 2008 was measured, using a binominal
option pricing model, by Grant Sherman
Appraisals Limited, an independent firm of
professional valuers. The following table lists the
inputs to the model used:

For the year ended 31 December 2008
E-EE\FL A=t —AULEE

40. IR AN 2R S (&)

R-BBNF=A-tABHZBRE
ZATEDREE A BAB T EEEE
17 PR ERA ARG AW
EEMKE o TRIRH AR AR
ZEH

20 March

2008

—EEN\F

=RA=+H

Option life B % 7 2 A 2 years
2%

Grant date share price i BHRE HK$1.00
1.00/8 7T

Exercise price TEE HK$1.146
1.146%8 T

Expected volatility (%) FEHA R 1R (%) 95.35%
Expected lives of share options B8 B5 R TE HR S HA 2 years
2F

Dividend yield (%) B 22 (%) 0%
Risk-free interest rate #2 ) Pox I 2= 5.752%

The expected lives of share options are based
on the historical data over the past five years
and are not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility
reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may
also not necessarily be the actual outcome.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

41.

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

No other feature of the share options granted
was incorporated into the measurement of fair
value.

At 31 December 2008, the Company had
36,544,130 share options outstanding under the
Option Scheme (2007: 238,011,296), representing
18.72% (2007: 12.19%) of the existing issued
share capital of the Company.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group
has set up a defined contribution retirement
scheme, the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), for all the eligible
employees of the Group. The Group did not
provide retirement benefits for its employees
prior to set up of the MPF Scheme.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are
required to contribute 5% of their monthly
salaries up to a maximum of HK$1,000 per
employee and they can choose to make
additional contributions. The employer’s monthly
contributions are calculated at 5% of each
employee’s monthly salaries up to a maximum
of HK$1,000 (the “Mandatory Contribution”).
The employees are entitled to 100% of the
employer’s Mandatory Contribution upon their
retirement at the age of 65 years old, death or
total incapacity.
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BE-ZZEZEF+-A—HE KKEEA
FFEAEREER Y —EEHABITERK
TE — BEELAEEHE(RES
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BAZERINREEBERFH % (RS U
1,0008 T BR)FTE (@I MR o
EETRGSBmMBIN s #itHHTERET
ERENBE 2 BEBEE 2 mBIEHER -

Annual Report 2008 3R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material
related party transactions during the years
ended 31 December 2008 and 2007:

(i)

During the year, the Group entered

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FENFF+-A=1—HIFE

42. ERBAEALRS

(@) BRAZREMBHMRHEMU T FIIKE
N REBE-ZEZN\ER-FZ
tF+ZA=T-BHLEFER K
EEETTIERFEALRS :

() ER AEERTESEEE

into the following transactions with the TTHRS :
China Star Group:
Name of company Nature of transaction 2008 2007
NCIECE XEME —EBN\F —EELHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Paid or payable to: U T AT EFHES
BRAX
1.  China Star Salaries
FE2 e (1,260) (1,300)
2. China Star Amount due by
the Group
hEE REBEMARIE (600) (700)
3. China Star Laser Disc Amount due by
Company Limited the Group
HEEEHEHRERAA REBEMNRIE - (1)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

156

(i)

(iiif)

(Continued)

On 1 August 2007, the Group entered
into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement with China Star pursuant to
which the Group would acquire a 100%
interest in the issued share capital of
Exceptional Gain Profits Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of China Star,
and a sale loan at a consideration of
HK$447,000,000. The consideration
would be satisfied by the issue of
a convertible note by the Company.
The major asset of Exceptional Gain
Profits is its 50% interest in Kingsway
Hotel
was determined after arm’s length
commercial negotiations and with
reference to an independent property
valuation conducted by DTZ Debenham
Tie Leung Limited on an open
market basis valuing Kingsway Hotel
at approximately HK$894,000,000
at 31 July 2007. The transaction
was approved by the independent
shareholders at the special general
meeting of the Company held on 31
December 2007.

Limited. The consideration

On 31 December 2007, the Group
and China Star entered into a deed of
variation pursuant to which the parties
mutually agreed to extend the long-
stop date in the conditional sale and
purchase agreement dated 1 August
2007 from 31 December 2007 to 28
February 2008.

42. EXBEEALTRZ (#)

(iii)

R=—FEZELtFENA—HB K
SEHEAEETIEGRHGE
Bz Bl AEBEKK
% Exceptional Gain Profits
Limited (FEI 2 22 &K B
AE)EBITR A 2100%
EaREEER REA
447,000,000 % T o R AE# L
BATBITABBREBRRM -
Exceptional Gain Profits &
* Z & E A H RKingsway
Hotel Limited Z50% % ©
REDKBATEEEBLS
ZHEZRTERATRAMH
MBSEEEETZBIYEM
BEFE2HEBER-_ZZFL
FtA=+—HBZEBEANA
894,000,000 7T ) B EE °
ZXZEREAAFAR-_ZEZL
F+ZA=+—-HETZRR
BRIARE LB IRRALE -

R-EZEEtF+ZA=+—
B NEBEEGPEETZET
2 Bt STAREMEER
BR-ZEZBLENA—HFTX
ZEGRHEEHZEZHREIR
H-_ZEZT+tF+=-A=+—H
ERZE-ZENFZA=TN
E|o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) (Continued)

(iv)

(vii)

On 28 February 2008, the Group and
China Star entered into a deed of
variation pursuant to which the parties
mutually agreed to further extend
the long-stop date in the conditional
sale and purchase agreement dated 1
August 2007 from 28 February 2008 to
31 March 2008.

On 31 March 2008, the Group and
China Star entered into a deed of
variation pursuant to which the parties
mutually agreed to further extend
the long-stop date in the conditional
sale and purchase agreement dated 1
August 2007 from 31 March 2008 to 30
May 2008.

On 29 May 2008, the Group and China
Star entered into a deed of variation
pursuant to which the parties mutually
agreed to further extend the long-
stop date in the conditional sale and
purchase agreement dated 1 August
2007 from 30 May 2008 to 31 July
2008.

On 31 July 2008, the Group and China
Star entered into a deed of variation
pursuant to which the parties mutually
agreed to further extend the long-
stop date in the conditional sale and
purchase agreement dated 1 August
2007 from 31 July 2008 to 31 October
2008.

(viii) On 31 October 2008, the Group and

China Star entered into a deed of
variation pursuant to which the parties
mutually agreed to further extend
the long-stop date in the conditional
sale and purchase agreement dated 1
August 2007 from 31 October 2008 to
31 January 2009.
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EFE\F A=+ —AILFE
42. ERBAEALRZ (#)

(@) (#&

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii

)

R-BENFZAZ-+TNR
AEBREREER LB R
BBl TNSEMEEEE
RZZZLFNA—-BFTYZ
ARt EEHZ 2 REHRA
—EENFE-A-TN\HE
—PERE-ZZENFZ=ZA
=+—B-

R=-FBEENF=A=+—8 "
REBEFPREER LIETR
BBt (TS EERER
R-ZZBZELFNA—HITYLZ
BRHEEHEZREIRE
—EENF=ZRA=1RHE—%
ERZ-ZEZENFHEA=T
E|o

R=BENFHEA=+NA"
REBEDEEF LB R
BBt TNSEMEEEE
R-ZZZLFNA—-BFAZ
BERHEEHR CREIRE
“EENFRA=TRE-D
ERE-ZZBENFLA=1T—
H o

R-ZZZNFLtA=+—-8H"
AEBEREER LB R
BBl TNLTEMEERE
REZBELFNA-BITYZ
BRTEE R 2 REHRE
—EENFELtA=+T—-HE
—SERE-ZZNEFE+A
=t—He-

) RZZEZBNF+A=Z+—8H

REBEDEEFT LB R
BBt TNSEMEREE
RZZZLFNA—-BFYZ
BRHEEHR 2 REBRE
—EENETRA=T—HE
—PERE-ZZTNNF-A
=t+—H-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

158

(Continued)

(ix)

On 23 December 2008, the Group
entered into a deed of termination with
China Star to terminate the conditional
sale and purchase agreement dated 1
August 2007.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material
related party transactions with Ms. Chen
Ming Yin, Tiffany, a director of the Company,
during the year ended 31 December 2007:

(i)

On 19 July 2007, the Group entered
into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement with Ms. Chen Ming
Yin, Tiffany pursuant to which
the Group would acquire a 100%
interest in the issued share capital
of Modern Vision (Asia) Limited at
a consideration of HK$684,000,000
(subject to adjustment). The major
asset of Modern Vision (Asia) Limited
is its indirect 50% interest in a lot of
land with the area of 4,669 square
meters located in the Nam Van Lakes
Zone, Macau. The consideration
was determined between the Group
and Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany on a
“willing buyer — willing seller” basis.
The transaction was not approved
by the independent shareholders at
the special general meeting of the
Company held on 21 November 2007.

On 5 November 2007, Ms. Chen Ming
Yin, Tiffany granted an unsecured and
interest-free loan of HK$45,000,000 to
the Company. The Company repaid the
loan on 27 November 2007.

42. EXBEEALTRZ (#)

(a)

(&)

(ix)

R-ZZBENF+ZA=T=
A AEBEEDHET AL
2 URIER-ZZZLEN
B—BiYZ2ERHGEER

3
iR ©

BRAGE M BE®RE M D P H
BEN RBE-ZZELH+=A

=+

—BLEFER AEEEALQ

AESHRARLTETUTEKRESE
BALRS

R=-ZBELtELtA+NA-
AEEHEKRPREZ LT IHKF
HEEHmE B X&EE
#5 Uk & Modern Vision (Asia)
Limited 2 % 17 R A< 2 100%
¥ & A {8 %684,000,000
& JT(A F # & ) o Modern
Vision (Asia) Limited ZE*&
EEAHER—BURRMEE
B B EE 4,669 F B K2
T Z250% EEER o KE
DRASEEHERPRZ L L
[EREEEER |2 BEEETE -
ZRXRGRARAR_ZZELE
T—RBZ+—HBRITZREH
BIRE EREBRRALE -

R-ZEZELtF+—-AHEB &
A &z + [ ARAD TR H AR
% B & 5X45,000,0007% T °
ADPBAER=ZFZLtE+—A
“ttHEEREER-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 42,

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Compensation for key management
personnel

Remuneration for key management
personnel, including amount paid to the
directors of the Company and certain of
the highest paid employees, as disclosed
in notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated
financial statements, is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2008
E-EE\FL A=t —ALEE

EXBEALRS (E)

() ETEEEASEHM

TEREBAESFMN(BESRESYHK
BRMEFIIRI2APENTAE
RAEBERETEREFEEZSE
BT :

2008 2007

—EEN\E —EELF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Salaries e 4,080 3,875
Contributions to retirement RINERETEHRR

benefits scheme 24 24

Share-based payment expenses LURHFERX XN 2Bx 349 4,345

4,453 8,244

43. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 43. EEEHA

At 31 December 2008, the Group has
pledged certain of its investment properties
with fair value of HK$853,835,000 (2007:
HK$852,081,000) and its bank deposits
of approximately HK$23,470,000 (2007:
HK$16,832,000) which were held by Beijing
Shama to secure the bank secured bank
loan amounted to HK$319,418,000 (2007:
HK$329,018,000).
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EEEFEBALESEEEATE
#853,835,000/8 T(=Z & & £ &
852,081,000 B T ) 2 & TR EW %
% #23,470,0008 T(Z B T + & :
16,832,000/ 7T ) ZRITFR » UIEA
EREIEKHERITEN319,418,000% 5T
(ZZEZ+F :329,018,000/8 7t ) 2 &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008

gt_‘t—v

FENFLZA=F—HILFE
44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Financial risk factors

160

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety
of financial risks: market risk — foreign

currency risk, credit risk,

liquidity risk

and cash flow and fair value interest-rate
risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(i)

Market risk— Foreign currency risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong,
the PRC and Macau and is exposed
to foreign currency risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Renminbi. The Group
does not hedge foreign currency
translation risk because translation
gains or losses do not affect the
project company’s cash flow or the
Group’s annual results.

MR EE

(a) HMBEREZR
AEEZEBHAZSEHHER
™ 15 & B SNERRE - FER

FTE%Z N /)lu@ﬁéﬂﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%umiﬁﬂ
FEMNERE - ANEBZEERR
EEGEEEIRY B TS 2R
M BRESHEHAEEM KR
BeBRERRZE -

(i) mEmEE — IERE

AREERES  PEIREPL
g WEASHITEREMEL
ZHER  FEHEARES
Bo-HRELRBLEZER

NAIZBRERERAEB 2 F
B WK B EE I
PE @ B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i) Market risk— Foreign currency risk
(Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in foreign currency exchange
rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Company’s profit/(loss)
before taxation (due to changes in
the fair value of monetary assets and

For the year ended 31 December 2008
E-EE\FL A=t —ALEE

44, B ERERE (&)

(a) HMBERBREZEE

(i) wmEmEE — MERE(E

TRETBRABEME B4
BA% AQRBRBANGEF
(BR)UNEER(HRER
EEREBBELAFEEZH HR
BETEEB CHRE -

liabilities).
Increase/
(decrease)
Increase/ in profit/
(decrease) (loss)
in Renminbi before
rate taxation
BRBE AT
ARBER %A (BB)
EFH (TR 8 GED)
% HK$°000
=)/ FET
2008 —EENF
If Renminbi weakens against fHAREEBTEE
Hong Kong Dollar 5 4,107
If Renminbi strengthens HMARESBTHE
against Hong Kong Dollar (5) (4,107)
2007 —EELHF
If Renminbi weakens against MARBLBTRE
Hong Kong Dollar 5 1,957
If Renminbi strengthens against fi A R#E 58 THHE
Hong Kong Dollar (5) (1,957)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

162

(ii)

(iii)

Credit risk

The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk. It has
policies in place to ensure that
distribution of films and sub-licensing
of film rights to customers with an
appropriate credit history.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk
arises from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amount of the each
financial asset, including trade and
other receivables, as reported in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk
by ensuring it has sufficient liquid
cash balances to meet its payment
obligations as they fall due.

The Group closely monitors its
exposure to liquidity risk by reviewing
the cash position report monthly.
It analyses efficiency of fund
management appropriately on the
drawdown of bank loans and appoint
dedicated personnel to ensure loans
are serviced on a timely and accurate
basis.

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its
non-derivative financial liabilities. The
tables have been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of
the financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The tables include
both interest and principal cash flows.

44, B ERERE (&)

(a)

Mg REREEGE

(i) =EEE

AEEBYBREREEETR
o REBRTZBERI AR
ROEBZEFERE TR
BROTETREREFRTE -

rEEAZ2FERRBEYHTF
FENMESE  ReRBEE
REREEEBERITBREEH
EE(BREEZRAMERR
8) 2 BREE °

(iii) B E 2 R

FEBEZBEREZADREE
EEBRTIHMRESLE  UE
BEHRBESER

REEZEBEABARESMKNR
BRERVNERHAZ Z2RBE
EEE - ZREEE DR
TERRRZELTEERZN
R UREFEEASUER
BN R ERA -

TREVNAEEREFTES
MEBZBRTENIMAE - &
RERBEAEERBRZAM
ZEFEAHZEREBERTR
RERn8mme - 2RkBER
ERAERERNE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk (Continued)

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Less than

1 month

YR-faA
HK$°000
FET

44.

1t03
months

-Z=f8A
HK$’000
FET

2008

Continuing operations

Accruals and other
payables
Receipts in advance

Discontinued
operations

Accruals and other
payables

Receipts in advance

Secured bank loan

“2INF
REGLER

st ERR RN

WA

BUHA

BRILEERHS

st ERRAEN
A

BUHA

RERETER

32,956
417

13,961
39,470

17,526

86,864

17,526

Less than
1 month

HYR-1ER
HK$’000
FET

1103
months

-E=f@A

HK$’000
FET

2007

Accruals and other
payables

Receipts in advance

Secured bank loan

=
AR A
8

liee
BERRTER

19,245
47,041
738

10,718

67,024

10,718
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FENFF-A=1—HIFE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44. I EEIE (&)
(Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BIREEZEGE)
(iv) Cash flow and fair value interest rate (iv) BELRERRFEFERRE
risk

The Group’s cash flow interest-rate
risk arises from bank borrowings. The
Group’s fair value interest-rate risk
mainly arises from fixed-rate short-term
bank deposits. The Group currently
does not have an interest-rate hedging
policy. However, the management
monitors interest-rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest-
rate exposure should need arises.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below presents
the effects on the Group’s post-
tax profit or loss for the year (as a
result of change in interest expense
on floating rate borrowings). For
floating-rate borrowings, the analysis
is prepared assuming the amount of
liability outstanding at the balance
sheet date was outstanding for the
whole year. The sensitivity to interest
rate used is considered reasonable
given the market forecasts available at
the balance sheet date and under the
economic environments in which the
Group operates, with all other variables
held constant.

REBZRSREF @B K
BiR1TEE - AEEZ QA FE
MEEBEZREESTZHR
THER o ANEE R EEM
FRE DK - A - EEE
SEEFNZEAR  LKEBR
FEREPEAT RS o

THHRMED T2 EAEEH
ZAFERBERNNERZ
%%mngFEZﬂgi
HEH)  BFEBEMS
ZD M T RR R A ﬁHZ*E
BEEEREZFAEREEN R
H-ENBRAMBAMEHE
BA%E REERFREMERE
AREREELEEMELER
BT TANRSRERES
g

2008 2007
—EEN\F —EELHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Hong Kong dollars BT
If interest rate was 2% R = EF2%
(2007: 2%) higher (Z2Z2tF 2%)
Post-tax profit or loss for REERFBRFNEE
the year (492) (527)
If interest rate was 2% i FIZET#2%
(2007: 2%) lower (ZZ2ZLF 2%) AFE
Post-tax profit or loss for BRELEEE
the year 492 527
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s
financial assets, including cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, deposits,
prepayments and other receivables, and
financial liabilities, including accruals,
other payables and amounts due to related
companies, approximate to their fair
values due to their short maturities. The
face values less any credit adjustments
for financial assets and liabilities with a
maturity of less than one year are assumed
to approximate to their fair values.

The fair values of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes are estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate
available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

In assessing the fair value of financial
instruments traded in active markets (such
as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss) is based on quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date. The
quoted market prices used for financial
assets held by the Group are the current
bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market is
determined by using valuation techniques.
The Group uses a variety of methods, such
as estimated discounted value of future
cash flows, and makes assumptions that are
based on market conditions existing at each
balance sheet date.

The carrying values of the current financial
assets and current financial liabilities
approximate to their fair values.
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(b)

AR

rEEsREE(BRERERAS
ZEY BEZRKFE -EE A
NHREREMBERHRB)REHE
B(RERTER  HMEMNKIER
KEMNEEARRE) ZREER
HREMARZE  WEEQFEM
H-HBARIR-—FZEREE
KEEzHEREMAEEARIR
RBEEQNFEESE °

HRBEZERBEQIFEDELSE
BERESRTARK 2HEFRT
BARSHRESREBMMAET o

EFERRREBT S LEEZE
BMTAWRLIFEFABRERZ
TRMEE) 2D FER - DERE
ERAZHERESE - ARAKHE
FEZEeRMEEZTEREDRK
ZBEAE-

VERXRERT S LEE 2SR
TEZAVEDRBGEEELEEE
AEBRAGFARRRSREBZH
REESZEL L URBERESE
EHFEZTRFEHRR °

RBEREERABDEREEZIR
EEEAE A FEES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c) Capital risk management

166

The primary objective of the Group’s capital
management is to safeguard the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern,
maintains a strong credit rating and healthy
ratios in order to support its business and
enhance shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it, in light
of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or raise and repay debts.
The Group’s capital management objectives,
policies or processes were unchanged
during the years 2008 and 2007.

The Company monitors capital using
gearing ratio, which is the Group’ total
borrowings over equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company. The gearing ratios
as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 were as
follows:

44, B ERERE (&)

(c)

EXxEmER

FEBEREAZTEZBEBRARE
FEERFBELE RN EFBEA
EEMRRRBREERURSHEER
REEFARREE -

FEEHERHERAEBARBLEE
BREBFHAR  RESHAR
BEXRGRE  AKETHEDRRIK
BZRE - OBRREREBER - BT
HROABEREEGEHE - N2
ENER-ZZEZTLF FKEHZ
EXAEEER  BXIBFHEST

%o

AARRAAELE(DAEEL
BB A BRI A (R
BERER - RZBBNER=
TTLE+-A=t+-B2ARKL
BT :

2008 2007

—EEN\F —EE2LF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Amounts due to related companies ETEIEATFIE 600 701

Convertible notes ClE: e S 105,803 =

Secured bank loan BEBRITEN - 329,018

Total borrowings HBEE 106,403 329,719
Equity attributable to equity RATRIEFEAEA

holders of the Company IR 894,423 1,046,080

Gearing ratio BEtkE 11.9% 31.5%
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FREMBRERMEE

45. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(a)

On 4 November 2008, the Company entered
into a placing agreement with Kingston
Securities Limited (“Kingston”). Pursuant
to which, the Company had conditionally
agreed to place through Kingston, on a best
effort basis, a maximum of 500,000,000
new shares of HK$0.01 each in the share
capital of the Company by a maximum of
5 tranches to independent investors at a
placing price, which must not be lower than
85% or more of the average closing prices
of the shares quoted on the Stock Exchange
in the last 30 consecutive trading days up to
and including the date on which the placing
price is fixed for such tranche and should
not be less than HK$0.05 per new share.
The placing agreement was approved by the
shareholders on 19 December 2008. The
first tranche of placing of 200,000,000 new
shares at a placing price of HK$0.102 per
new share was completed on 11 February
2009 and the second tranche of placing of
300,000,000 new shares at a placing price
of HK$0.091 per new share was completed
on 2 March 2009. The net proceeds raised
from the placing of 500,000,000 new shares
amounted to HK$46,720,000.

On 29 December 2008, the Company, CSL
and Kingston entered into top-up placing
agreement. Pursuant to the top-up placing
agreement, CSL had agreed to place,
through Kingston on a fully underwritten
basis, an aggregate of 39,000,000 existing
shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital
of the Company to not less than six placees
at a price of HK$0.102 per share and had
conditionally agreed to subscribe for an
aggregate of 39,000,000 new shares at a
subscription price of HK$0.102 per new
share. The top-up placing was completed
on 9 January 2009 and the net proceeds
from the top-up placing amounted to
HK$3,820,000.
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R-ZFZENF+—BMNA» XAF
HeFEFHEFRLATERE )
AVEERE Bl KQAFAEHE
BRUHEREZEERBSTER|ENEESD
BEZSHREEENBYREENR
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EREECOIB L ZH KM - &
EETSENREBEEEZMEEE
B (E#FEZA) LR E30EEE
X5 BREER TSR FHIR AU S
BE85% KU LR FABERERITK
f20.058 T - MLEHBEE R ===
NEFZA+hBERRME - &
FRHFBRM0.102B T 2B EEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEN\F+-A=1—HIFE

45. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued)

(c)

163

On 16 February 2009, the Company and
Kingston entered into the underwriting
agreement in relation to a proposed open
offer of not less than 217,093,498 new
shares of HK$0.01 each in the share
capital of the Company and not more than
367,093,498 new shares at a subscription
price of HK$0.10 per new share on the basis
of one new share for every two existing
shares held by qualifying shareholders
on 9 March 2009. The open offer was
completed on 30 March 2009 and the net
proceeds from the open offer amounted to
HK$34,339,000.

On 20 February 2009, the directors of the
Company proposed to reorganise the capital
of the Company (the “Proposed Capital
Reorganisation”) in the following manner:

(i) share consolidation — that every ten
existing issued shares of HK$0.01 each
be consolidated into one consolidated
issued share of HK$0.10 (the
“Consolidated Shares”); and

(c)

45. FERREH (&)

R-ZZBZEARF-A+7-H  XAF
EHeRNEIT L EHnGE RAEE
EEREERBRRNR-_ZZTNEF=
BABBEEmMREERMER —
AR RRAFEREMEOC.01ET
ZHBRHOZEE FRABMBER
BRHRMD0.10B T 2RBEET
217,093,498 R IR H K T
%2 367,093,498 IR FT A% 10 - A BF
BREER-ZEZTAF=RA=1+H%
B MARBREZMEBRETES
34,339,000 T ©

R-ZZBZEARF-ZA=+H &2QFH
EFEZRRATHEREALRATR
RIEERAEA]D :

(i) Bef — BEETRER
HECOIEBTZHEBITR
HEHAE—REMEO10E T
Z2EHEBRITROTEHR
@71 &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

45. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued)

(d) (Continued)

(ii)

capital reduction — that (i) the total
number of the Consolidated Shares
in the issued share capital of the
Company be rounded down to a whole
number by cancelling the fractional
Consolidated Shares arising from the
share consolidation; (ii) the paid-up
capital of each Consolidated Share
be reduced from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01
by cancelling HK$0.09 so as to form
a new share of HK$0.01; and (iii) the
amount of credit arising from the
capital reduction be credited to the
contributed surplus account of the
Company.

The directors also proposed to change
the board lot size for trading in the
Company’s shares from 5,000 shares
to 2,000 shares upon the Proposed
Capital Reorganisation becoming
effective.

The Proposed Capital Reorganisation
was approved by the shareholders
at a special general meeting of the
Company held on 22 April 2009 and
became effective on 23 April 2009.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FENFF-A=1—HIFE

45. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued)

(e)

170

On 11 March 2009, the Company entered
into the loan agreement with China Star.
Pursuant to the loan agreement, the
Company has conditionally agreed to make
a loan facility of up to HK$200,000,000 to
China Star. Each of the advances made to
China Star under the loan facility carries
an interest to be accrued at the prime
rate per annum as quoted by HSBC. The
drawdown of each advance is subject the
conditions, among others, that the Company
has sufficient fund available to make the
advance. Please refer to the Company’s
circular dated 30 March 2009 for further
details of the loan agreement.

The loan agreement was approved by the
independent shareholders at another special
general meeting of the Company held on 22
April 2009.

On 18 March 2009, Rich Joy Investments
Limited and Best Season entered into
a deed of termination to terminate the
revolving facility of up to HK$200,000,000
granted to Best Season.

On 8 April 2009, the conditional sale and
purchase agreement dated 26 November
2008 relating to the disposal of Shinhan-
Golden and World East by Riche to Mega
Shell was completed. Upon completion
of the conditional sale and purchase
agreement, the Group holds 20.36% interest
in the issued share capital of Golife.

(e)

45. GEHRSEE @A)

R-ZBZAF=ZA+—H  XAF
BEABEEFZERGE - REBEER
W& ARFREERGREERFE
E R # & % 3% 200,000,00058 5t 2
EXME REEXHBEDFREE
FH2EERRRELFTHREESE
FERBERE - BB ERARMTE
w4 (AR EE)EAATERHAE
SELHER - FEERBEZE—
THE FHLEERQAAR-ZTEZAR
F=ZA=+HHBZEXR -

ERMBEREARAR-ZZNF
MA-Z+T-HETZE —XRRE
BIRE LB RRALE o

RZZBEZFERLFE=H+/\H ' Rich
Joy Investments Limited X Best
Season®] M #& IE #E > KR IER
F Best SeasonZ E R &E & %
200,000,000 /8 T °

R-ZZEZFEARFEANE R=Z
ZENE+—-—AZ=+t7NHRRiched
Mega Shell i £ Shinhan-Golden
K World Easti] Y 2 BERHEE
BT ° RE R EE #R T K
% AEEREMNEZEBITRAR
#4H20.36% i ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBRERMEE

45. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued)

(h) On 23 April 2009, Riche gave an irrevocable
undertaking in favour of Golife and Kingston
relating to the subscription of 94,153,552
offer shares at a subscription price of
HK$0.10 per offer share pursuant to an
open offer of Golife on basis of eight offer
shares for every one existing share held on
the record date. The total subscription price
for the offer shares is HK$9,415,355, which
will be financed by the internal resources of
the Group.

46. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the board of directors on
23 April 2009.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

IFMBEE
For the years ended 31 December
BEt-A=1t—-HLEE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
“EEN\F CZEELE CZEERE CTTIF CZTIMNFE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEn FET FET FHET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (85)) (E%) (E51)
Results ES
Turnover EE L] 19,253 7,122 9,375 17,965 42,144
Loss from operations o (107,240) (44,749) (11,484) (29,324)  (267,730)
Finance costs HMEEA (3,350) - (9,615) (340) (340)
Loss before taxation R AEIEE (110,590) (44,749) (21,099) (29,664) (268,070)
Taxation credit/(charge) BEER /() 13,854 = (195) = (277)
Loss for the year from REBESEERK Y
continuing operation AEEER (96,736) (44,749) - - -
(Loss)/profit for the year ~ RECKLEE
from discontinued ERAREE
operation (B8),/ &7 (127,772) 70,443 = = =
Net (loss)/profit AEE(BR)/
for the year a R (224,508) 25,694 (21,294) (29,664) (268,347)
Dividends IR E - - - - -
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEENEE
At 31 December
R+=B=+-AH
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
“EENF CZEEtE ZETRE —ETIFf C—ZTMNF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FAET FAET FAET
Total assets BEAE 1,524,280 1,542,452 922,228 235,227 132,881
Total liabilities EEAE (620,857)  (492,476)  (518,696) (67,617) (64,310)
Shareholders’ funds BRES 894,423 1,049,976 403,532 167,610 68,571
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